
Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded. 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 39 50878 
 

 
 

 
Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Kate Arscott 
Tel: 24 74189 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SUSTAINABLE ECONOMY AND CULTURE) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Tuesday, 18th March, 2014 at 10.00 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
M Rafique (Chair) - Chapel Allerton; 

D Cohen - Alwoodley; 

M Lyons - Temple Newsam; 

P Wadsworth - Guiseley and Rawdon; 

R Harington - Gipton and Harehills; 

M Ingham - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

J McKenna - Armley; 

J Chapman - Weetwood; 

A Castle - Harewood; 

D Coupar - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

A Khan - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

J Marjoram - Calverley and Farsley; 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting). 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows: 

 
           No exempt items have been identified on 

this agenda. 
 

 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 18 FEBRUARY 2014 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 18 February 2014 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY 
 
To consider a request for Scrutiny from the 20’s 
Plenty for Us campaign group 
 

7 - 34 

8   
 

  SCRUTINY INQUIRY - THE ROLE OF THE 
LEEDS LET'S GET ACTIVE SCHEME IN 
PROMOTING PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
To consider evidence as the second session of the 
Board’s inquiry on the role of the Leeds Let’s Get 
Active scheme in promoting public health 
 

35 - 
52 

9   
 

  QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
To consider performance information for services 
within the Board’s portfolio 
 

53 - 
60 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
D 

10   
 

  RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
To consider progress in implementing the 
recommendations from previous Scrutiny inquiries 
 

61 - 
80 

11   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider the Board’s work schedule for the 
remainder of the municipal year 
 

81 - 
104 

12   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 1 April 2014 at 10.00am (pre-meeting for 
all Board Members at 9.30am) 
 

 

   THIRD PARTY RECORDING 
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable 
those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable 
the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts 
named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of 
practice 
 
a) Any published recording should be 

accompanied by a statement of when 
and where the recording was made, the 
context of the discussion that took place, 
and a clear identification of the main 
speakers and their role or title. 
 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the 
recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of 
the proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be 
no internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and 
end at any point but the material 
between those points must be complete. 

 

 

 
 



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	��
������������������������

�

��������	
���
	���������
��	�������	��
	��������	
	

����
���	����	��
������	����	
�

��������	
�

�

	����
���� ���!
���	�����������

� �

	����
�����"�
	��� �#���	��
	��
��$	������%���&�		���%�������	��
'������������

�����'�&��	��	��
(�)��*�	�
	�

�
�

��	 ����	��� !		
������+����	
��
����������������
���
��	�����
��
	�����,�#
+���������������
��������
�������������
��
+�	�����������
������	������	�
�����
	-�
�

.� ��	
����
������/
�	�������	��
������#

��	���	�� ���	�����
	��	��
0
����	�����1�
	
����	���
��
���0��
��	��2
����������
	���3���
����
�����4���	��������56�4��	
������������6�

�
��	 
�"#�$��%&'	&(	
%!"#&!�)#�	��"*'%�$+	�'��$�!�!		

������+����	
������
���������
	������	�����������������������������	�,�
�

�,	 �-&#&.%�!	(&$	�)!�'"�	�'/	�&�%(%"��%&'	&(	�*)!�%�*��!		
'�
�
������
������	���+���������������
���

	����
�����
��	��+����
�

	����
��(�)��*�	�
	��	�����	��	���������
�����
�����	����
���

	����
���7�
)���+
�����	��%����/
���,�
�

��	 �%'*��!	0	��	1�'*�$+	�'/	�	��)$*�$+	����		
�����2�
�8������������	
����
�����������	��
������0
����	�����1�
	
���
�	���
��
���0��
��	��2
���������
	����%�	
����������	������/
�	�������	��
��
����#

��	���	�� ���	�����
	��	��0
����	�����1�
	
����	���
��
���
0��
��	��2
����������
	���3���
�������������
	�������������
���������
��,�
�

�3	 �"$*�%'+	�'4*%$+	0	�*#�*$�#	&$.�'%!��%&'!5	�'.�.� �'�	6%�7	"&  *'%�%�!		
����2
�����
	�
��������������������
	�
�������	!
�����	�
��
��
����
���	�����
	�9�
�	������	��+�����
��
	�����,�$	�����	��	����
�������������2
�����	��
�	�+����������9�!
������+���-�
�

.� �

	����
��"
��	���:���
	��1;��
�������������
��"���
����	��0*�����

.� 7����������������
��
��1	������	��<�'
���	�����'�����

	����1	���	��

.� ��
	����������
	��������=��������
��
����	��0�
����

.� ������+�0�����#����
��'�����	��>�	
���

.� '������;.���
	��"�����$	�������
�
���������
	��
���	����+������+���.��������������	����
	���
��7���������
	�
�	������	���	�������������
	��	�������	���
��
���8�������	����	��
�	�����	��
������,������������
�����
����������
��������	��

�������

	����������������
�����
��������
	�����	���
������
	���
���
��
����	�"����,��������
����	��
����
��	
�����
���������
����,�

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	��
������������������������

�

�
����1;��
�����������������������	*����+��	�������
���
��������	!
�����	��
��������	���������
	�+�������"�������

��������
�����������?���������
��
�
��
�����	��������������
��	�
��������������������������������
	����

�����������
�
���	����,�
�
�����
��
+�	�����
���+������������	�����
���
	-�
�

•� )����
���	����	���

	����
����
��������	����

������

�����	����!
����
����
������������������
���
�������	�
�����
	�
	������������
���

	����
���9��
�	������	��

������
�����

���

•� �����
���
��@������	�9�
���	�����
	����
�����������A&�+
�*�	���	�"�������
�
��
*�������	�����������+��	����

����	�������
���	�����
	��

•� �����
BB������������������
/������*�	������+
�*��	�
����

���

•� �����
��	������
����
���+�
������

��
	��
��
�������������	��
�����	��
�
���������������������	������������

•� �����
���
����������
����	������	���
��	��
�
�����
�����
��
��
����
�	��
��	�����
���	��	��������
����	���

•� 0
����������������
��
����	��	������	����������������
��5C�

•� '	���
���������	���
��
�������
�������	���
��
��������������	�������	��������

�������������
������"�����	������������
	
���

•� $	���.��	�����
	���+
�*�������
���������+��	��������	��	�����	�����	���
�	���	��	��������	����	�����������
	���
��������
���
��+
�*�

•� )
�*����	�����
����+��������'�����

	�����	��
����
�����
��
�����������+����

�������
���9���
�����

•� �������
���	���
���

���;�����	�����
��	�
�����
��������	
���
��
���
����	������	���	���������������������
�������	
�����+���������������
���	���

•� '
���	����
�������
���	
���

•� #���
��������	
����
������+
�*�	����	9����
����	��+
�*��������	���
+���������������������������������
��
��
	�������
���
��
�����	������	��

•� �����������
��
����+����
��������	�������
��������������
����
��
	�������
����������	����	����������	����������
������+�����������

•� �����
��	������
��"������
����
���*	
+	������@��	�������9�

•� �����
���
���
������������	�������	���
��	�
��

•� �����
�
�������
�����	�	�����	����
���

	����
�����	�����
�����	�������
���
�������3�������	��0��
�����	�������
����	������������������
��������	�
�
��
���

•� �����
������
�������
�������*�
��������

	����
�������:
�*9����������

•� ����������	���
��	�+���	�������
����������0����
���'������	�����+����
������
	���
�������	�����������
	�����+�������+����	��������
���������

•� ����	�����
��	�
����;����	��
��
��
	����������+�����
����������	�
�
��
	���������
���"�����������

	����

•� '���������
��
��
����
��	�

��������������	������	���������*��	��
��	
��������	����
��
	�������������
���������

������	���
	��	���	������

��
��
	�������
���	*��
��
	������

���+������������

•� �������
���	����	���������
������)����$	���	����	������	������C�������
�		����������
��	��
���	����D�

•� 7��������������
���	�������	���
�����
���9���	������	��+���������������	��
�������������
�
����������
���
������������*�����
����	���

Page 2



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	��
������������������������

�

•� ����	�����
������������

��+����+����	����
����
�
����������������	���
��
�
����	��������
�����	����	������	�����
��

*�����������	���
��	�����
�����

•� ����������	���
���
��
���������
���	���	�������
���������
	�

•� �����
���
���
��
����	����
�������	���
	
������������
�����������

•� �����
���
������	����

•� �����
��	������
���
������
��
�����;�����	���������
������;�
����
	����

��	��
��������
����	��
	������
��
�������	�����	*����
���/
����
���	�����	����
���
��������

�����3��	����	������ 
����"���
��)
�����
��

•� ������

	��
���
	����
��	���	�
�"�������
������'�����

	������	������
�;����	���
�����

�*����
������
����	��������	������
�������
	
���

�
�����2�
	8	������������
�����������������������
	�
�������	!
�������	
���,�
�
4�

	����
��%���&�		��/
�	������������	�������,������
��	����������
���
	�
��
���������,6�
�

�9	 �&*$	/�	�$�'"�	�$&.$�!!	��-&$�		
����2
�����
	������������
���������
���
	����������
	���
�������
���	��
������
�

�����3��	���(��	����������	�%
��,�$	�����	��	����
�������������2
�����	��
�	�+����������9�!
������+���-�
�

.� �

	����
��"
��	���:���
	��1;��
�������������
��"���
����	��0*�����

.� ��
	����������
	��������=��������
��
����	��0�
���

.� 1������	��������=������� ��

������	��0��������

.� E��
���"
�*+

����

�����3��	��������

.� '	���+�#�����#����
�����	��
���7��		�	��
�
=���������	��
�
�����������
����	����
�������	�
������
	������������������
��
��
�����������������	�������
��
+�	�����
��-�
�

•� ����
���
	���������	�����
��	����������������������������
	�?�%
����

•� ������
	���
����"����������	�����	���

•� ������
	���
�������������������
	�
�������

	���9��+��������

•� ��������
����
	�
�������*��
��������

����	�����		�	���
�������

��9���	��
�

�����3��	�������������E�+����

•� 3
������+
�*����	���
������
	���
	����������������
��	
������

•� '	��	��������������������	����
����
�������	����	���
��	��������
	������
�

���

•� �
��
	�����
	��+������/
���������	�����
��	������

•� ����������	�����	����
��������������	���	��������	�����
����
	��
������
����
�����������

•�  
�������
����	����
����
	�����*�	����
����������������������	�
������	�
���������
���
����������

•� 7
��������	��
����	�����*��	����������	��

•� �����	���	�����������*�	����
����
	��
���������	���	�������+�����
�
�
�
�

Page 3



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	��
������������������������

�

�����
��
+�	�����
���+������������	�����
���
	-�
�

•� ����������*���������
	��������
	��������	��
������
��	������
���*����
	
�����
�����*�����
������'��	�����	�����������������+��������

���
���

���
���������	9��0�������������

������+���	
���������������+

��������
�
����
������

	�����
������,�

•� �����
��	������
���������E�+�����
����
������������������+�������*��	��
������������������
������������
��	���	�
�����������
�������

�����3��	��,�$��
+�����������
��;��
���������
�������	�����
������*,�

•� �����	��
��
	�
���	�
�����
	��	���
���	���
	�����+��������
���
��	������
�	��
��	����
���;�����������������
�������+����	���
�
����������	������������,�

•� ����������*�������������
����������
���
�������
��
	�����������
���
���
+�������������	���	�������
����������������	
��
	������

�������;��
�����	��
���
��������*��
�����2
���,��

•� ����	�����
���
����������	���
	�
���	�
�����
	���

��������������	��

��
��
	���������������
������

�����3��	����
����
��

	����
����	���
���
��	������,�$��+�����������
�����	�������
����
	�
���	�
�����
	���

������
�

	����+��������	������������
��
��������������
������������F��
�����
����
�
�������������9�����	��F��	�����
��
�������
�����

�����
�����
�������	���
	�
���	�
�����
	���

����������
��������
����������������	
��
���	��������������

	���,�

•� ���������;���������������	��
���	�������

�����3��	����	������������
�
������������
����������	����
����
����;��������

������
��
��
	���������
��
�����,�

•� �������		�����
�������
���
��	�����	������	�����	���

•� ��������+���
��������"����������	���
�
��	������
��
��
	�������
�
��
�
���"���������+�������:
�*�����,�

•� '��
������
	�������
�������

�������;��
����������
��	�����������

•� �
	�������
	�
������������
���������
����
	��
���
���+
�*���	��
����	����	���+����
��������
���	�����
���
�������
���
	�

•� 7
��	������
�
������	�	��
�������

����
�����������������	���	���	��������
���

������"����������
�������

������
	��
������	��
����

•� "�	*���
�����"������
		���������+�����������
�������������
�
�����2�
	8	�
������������
��������
���������
����������2
���9�������	��
	�
�C�'������������	���
��������������
���
	�������������	�����	�+��
	�����������,�
�
4�

	����
���'���������	��%�������	���������������	�������,������	��
�

	����
�� �#���	��
	���������������	�������,�C����
��	����������
���
	�
��
���������,6�
�

�:	 ;&$<	�"7�/*#�		
����2
������������������
���
������#����
��0��
��	���	���������
�����
���	��+���������

������������������
	�
������2
���9��+
�*������
��,��
�
�����2�
�
�

�6� ���������+
�*������
���������������
�/�����
�����������
	�
�����
������
��
���������
���
	������

�����3��	���
	��C�'���������,�

Page 4



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	��
������������������������

�

�
�6� �����������	
����
������1;��
�����2
���������	��
	����%�	
���������

���	
���,�
�

��	 
���	�'/	�% �	&(	��=�	����%'.		
�
�������������������������,�����4�����.�����	��+�������������G,?�����
��
2
�����������,6�
�
4���������	����	�����������,����6�
�
�

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 

Date: 18 March 2014 

Subject: Request for Scrutiny 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 
 

 

Summary of main issues 
 
1. A request for Scrutiny has been received from the Executive Board. This relates to a 

deputation originally presented to Council in November 2013 by the 20’s Plenty for 
Us campaign group.  
 

2. A copy of the report which was presented to Executive Board on 14 February 2014, 
including details of the original deputation are attached as appendix 1. The relevant 
extract from the minutes of the Executive Board is attached as appendix 2. Anna 
Semlyen, 20’s Plenty for Us Campaign Manager, who presented the deputation to 
Council, has been invited to attend the Board in support of the request. 
 

3. The decision whether or not to further investigate matters raised by a request for 
scrutiny is the sole responsibility of the Scrutiny Board.  As such, any decision in this 
regard is final and there is no right of appeal. 

 
4. When considering the request for Scrutiny, the Scrutiny Board may wish to consider: 
               

• If further information is required before considering whether further scrutiny 
should be undertaken; 

• If a similar or related issue is already being examined by Scrutiny or has been 
considered by Scrutiny recently; 

• If the matter raised is of sufficient significance and has the potential for scrutiny 
to produce realistic recommendations that could be implemented and lead to 
tangible improvements; 

• The impact on the Board’s current workload; 

 Report author:  Kate Arscott 

Tel:  247 4189 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

• The time available to undertake further scrutiny; 

• The level of resources required to carry out further scrutiny; 

• Whether an Inquiry should be undertaken. 
 
Recommendations 
 
5.      The Scrutiny Board is asked to: 
 

(i) Consider the request for Scrutiny in relation to the 20’s Plenty for Us campaign.  
(ii) Determine if it wishes to undertake further scrutiny of this matter. 

 

Background papers1 

6. None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 8



�

�

����������	
�����������
�
�	���������������	
��������������
���������

����������������
���������

	����������������
� !���

"��#�����	��$%&%'()�*� !+"��,�)%-��(��$"��&.�&'/)�

���������	����
�����

��
����
		�������� ������ �����

�������	
��
��
����������
�������
� �

����������������
�������������
�����
�����	�������
������������
���
������
������

������ �����

��������������������� �������!
��"���� ������ �����

#�������������������
�������������
������$�����������
������ ������ �����

�	���
��
����������������	���
�����������������
����������

�����������������

"�����
������
��
00��0��

%� &�����������
�������������#����
����������	���
������%'���	�� ������������������
!������� ����� ���� ()*�� +������ ���� ,�� !
��
���� ���
������ ���
���� ������ ������� ���
��
������-����
�.�������������������
�����������
�/&��
��()0������������
��
��
�����
()���������������������
������������
�������������-����1�

(� ���������������������#����
�����������������
�������������-����*��������������������
��
���
��
��������������.������������ �������������2������
�����3��������������
���
��� ���������� ���� ��.���� ��� ������1� � -�.��� ������ ��������
	��
��
3��� ����� ���  ������
�
�����
���()�������������
	������� ���������������������
���
����
2����
���
����
��
������ ������ ���-����*�4����!����!�������� 3����	���
�������������� ������������� ���
�������� ������� ��
���
��
������.���������������
�� �������� ���� ���������
���	��
���
��
��������
�������������
	��
������
���������3����������������1��

'� -����������
���������������()������������� �����
���
�����������
��4
��
�����
��
�
2����������� �����
 �����
���	��
�����
����� �����������������������1�-����*�
����
���
��� ���� ���������
����� ��� ()����� ���������������� �����
��� ������� �
�����  �� ����
#����
����������
���

•� &��������
���	��
���
����
���������
������������
�������������-���������
	��
�()�
����������������

�5������
��������6
��
�7��
2�
��

&�����89'%(�

Page 9



�

�

•� ()����� �������� ����������  ����� ����	�����
������������ ��	��� ���� �
������
��
�� ���
��
�
���
��������������.�����������������

•� 7�������� �� ���� �������� ��� ������� ���� ���� �������� ��� ��������� �����
�������	���1�

:� &��� 
����
��� -����� �
�� 
������� ��� ���� ������������� ��� ��
����� �
������ ��
������
��������� +������ ���������
������ 
��� �$��������� 
��� ����������� ��
������ .�����
������
��
�
��� ��������������������������
������
�����������������-�����������������
�����
���()���
��1��� �
�2���
����
��������������������
����������������������������
�������������
�����
�.
���
����	�������������������������������
�����������������
������������
���
�������������������������.������
���������������
�����
���.���1�

;� ��������� ���� ���
$
�������� �����
���������()���������������
��� ������
�����.�
�������
���������	����
�������
����
����
��������.��� ������!���������������������
����������� �����������
	
��
 ���������
���
�� ����������
��������
 ������������	�� ���
��
���������� �������
����� �
����� ��
�� ��
�� ��� ���� 
��
� .���� ������� ��� 
� /&��
�� ()0�

����
��1�

�����������
��0�

&���<$�����	��4�
��������������������

��� ��������������������� ����������
�
������������������ �����������������
������������
�����$����������	��
�����
���
����������������-����=�

���� �������������������
�������������
�������
����
�������������������	��������������()�
���� ������ ������� ��� ���� ����� � .���� 
� 	��.� ��� �$�������� ���� ������������ ��� � 
���
���������
��
��
��
������������������=�

����� ������������.��2�.�����
����������
���������������!������������
��()*��+����������,��

��� +� ���� >�
���� ���	����� ��� ���������� ���� ()����� ������ ������� 
����
$������
������ �������� ������������������
���������� ����� ������������
���������
���
�
���
���
�������.�
	������ ���� �
��� �������� ���� ���� ���������������� �������
��� �������

����
�2�����=��

�	�� 
�2��.������ ����()*��+������ ����,��!
��
���*��.��2� ��� �
������ ��������������� �����
������ 
��� ������ �������� ��
�� ����� �
�����  �� ������������ 
��� ������ ��� ���� 7��������
4�
��
�7���
��
 ���<�������
���!�������������������������
����=�
���

	�� �������
������>�
�����&�
�������+�
������.���� ���������� ����������������
����1�

�

Page 10



�

�

�� �����0�������
0��������

%1%� &���������������������������#����
����������	��� ������!����������%'�����	�� ���
()%'����������()*��+����������,��!
��
���1�

%1(� &��� #����
����� ���������� ��
�� ���� !���� 
������ 
� ����������� 
����
��� ��� ����
���������
��������()�����������������
�
���
����
����()������������������������
�
3����������� 
����
������ ��!�������������1�

 � ���12������
�������
���

(1%� ?	��
�����
����3���������-������������
��������������.�.
���������.������
�� ����
���� �
������ ���� ��	��
�� ���
���
�.���� ���������� ���� ��� ��� ��� �
�
�� 
��� ��������
��
�� ��3������ 
�� ������ ��.���� �	��� ��������� ��	��1� >�.�	��
� ����� ��� 
� �������� ���
����������������	������
��������
�����
��������
��	���������������
�������������

��� ��3������ 
��� 
� �
����� ��� ����������� ��	��������1� � �� �
������
�� ������ .����
���
������	�����
 �����
�������� ������������������
��
�������
�����������������
�
���������
����������������
�����������������1�&������������.����������������
���
()���������������
������
���
��2����������������.���������
�������������1���

(1(� &��� ��������������������	������
������������()������
	������� ���������������

��� �
	��  ���� 
�	��
���� 
�� 
� ���
���� ���
�� ������ ������ ��� �� 
�� 
��
��  ��
��������
��
�����������*����
���
�����1�&��� �����������������
������������ ������
��
���
��
�����
������
�����������
����������	�	
������
���������
���������������.����

� 	������� ��� @8A
� ������
���������� 3�������� ��� ����� 
���  �� �����
� 
���	�
�����
���������������
��	���������������
����� ���
2��������� ��������� ��������
�������
��	�� �������� �����	��� �����
�����
� �������� ����������� 
��� ���������
� 
���  ��
������
�������������
��3�������
�������
������������
��� �� ������1�-�.����������
�
�� 
���� ������ ���� ��� ��������� ��
���� �����
������� 
�� �	������� ��������� ��
��
���
�	
��
����
��
���$�����������������
���������
���
��
������.��������
����
.���������
��������
��
��B
���������	�������
��
��
��������������	
����������	��������
����� ��2���� ��� ��2������ ���
� ��
������������ ��
��
������� ��	���� ���
��
��������
��
1�
-����������
���������������()������������� �����
���
�����������
��4
��
�����
��
�
2����������������
 �����
���	��
�����
����������������������������1������
�����������

������ ��
	��� �������������� ����������
��� �������
����
�.����� ��� ������
��
������
����� ��� ��
�� ��� ��������� � �����
� ���	������� �������� �������� ��� �
����������
�����
�������� 
��� ��������� 
����
� 
�� .���� 
�� �������
�  ��
	����
�� 
��� �������
��
��� ����
���������������
 ���������������	�����21�

(1'� &.����"����������������������
������
��
��������
�������������
�������������
� ��
������ ������ �����������
 ��� ���
���������
� ������
�������������
��������
���	��

��� ����
��
 ��� ��
	��� �
������� .���� �����������
��  �������� ���� �����	��� ��
����

�����	��������
����������1��C������������
���
�������
�������� ����������	�������
���� ��
���� 
������� ����� ��
���	���� ��1�1� ��
 ����
� �����
��� 
��� 	
����
�� ��
�����  ��
������
������$�������
���
�������	����
��
���	�����1�&��������
������
����������
�������
�������������������
��
�
���������������� ���������	�����
 ����������������
����3����
������������
 ���������3�������
�����������
�
����
�����
��
���������������.��
	��
����� �������� ��� ���� ������ ���
�� �������� ���� ������������ ��
	��
� ��
����� ��� �
������
��	���� ��� ������
�� 
���	���� 
��� 
� �
����� �������
�� ���� ���� ��
���� ��� �
���� ����1� ��� ���
�����
���� ��
�� ���� ��D�� ��� ���� 
��
� ���� ���������.���� 
 ��� ��� ��
	��� �
�� �����2�

Page 11



�

�

.�����������������
������������
��������$����������3����
���
���������
�����
��
�����
���� ��� ������	��� 
��� ��
�� ���2�� ��� ��������*�� �
����� 
��� ���� ����� ��� �
��  �����
3�������1�4��������
��������
������������ �������.
��.����
	��� ���
��()������������
�
�� ���������� ����	���  ���� ��
�� �
����� 
��� ��
����  �������� ��� �
��� ����������

������ ���� ����� ����� �������� ��
����� ���� !�������� E�������� !���� 
��� 4���� !����

� �����������-����1�

(1:� 7���������%@@)�
�-�����!����!�������
������������
��
������������
	��������������
��
������
��������
������
���()���������������������	����
���
�����
����������
���� ��
�� ��3������ ��� ���
�� �����������1� � ������ 
������
� ����� �������� �
	��
�������� ��
�� ��3������  �� ;)A� ��� 
	��
���  ��
�  ��
���� ��� 
� �
��
�����
������������ ���� ��
����� �
������ ��
�����
� ����� �
	�� ������  ���� �$�����	�� ���
���������� 
��� ���������� �����
���� � 3�������� ����� ���������� .��� ���
������
.����������
������
��������
�����1�&�������������D������
	������������ ����
������
��D��
��������������	�������������
��
�1��

(1;� >�������
���� ���� �����
������ ���� ()� ���� �������� �
	�� ��������� ��
�� ������
���������� ��������������� �� ��
������
��������
������
�������;)���������������
����������� ������()%(��
	�������.���������
�����1�������	�� ���()%%
���.�	��
�
���� #��
������� ���� &�
������� ����������� ��.
� ����� ���$� ��
� ����������� .�����
���
$��� ����� ��� ��������� ���������� ������������� ���� ��
����� �
������  �� 
���.����
���
��������
�����������������
���������������������.������������()����������1�

(19� -�.��� ()� ���� ������ ������� �
��  �� �
������
����  �������
�� ��� ���������
�� 
��
��
.����� ��������
�� 
��� �������� ��	������� 
��� ����
� ����� 
�� 
������ �������
�
�����
� �
�2���
� ��
��������� 
��� ������ 
��
�� .����� 
��� ���� �
��� ��� 
��� �
3���
�������������1��&��������������
������������	��
�����
�����
���������������� ��
���������� ��
����� ���.�
� 
�� ���� �
3������ ��� ������ 
��� ���������� ���� ��� �����
������������ 
��� �����
���� 
�� ��
�� ��
����� 
���  �
2���1� &��� ��	������� ��� ����
�����
�������
	����
 ��������!�������������������
������
� ������������
�������
�$����� ���� ���� ��� ()���� ������
� .���� 
�� ����
���� ��� ���� ������� ���
������ 
���
���������
�� 
��
�� ��� ���� ����1� � &���� �
������� 
����
��� .
�� ��������
� �
	����
����������� ��������������
�������$�����	��
��
�.����
����
��
� ��
���� ���.
��
�������������
�������
 ����������������� �� ���� �������
�������
������
����
���.�
�
���
�����
��������������
����������
����1�

(18� #������ ���� �������� �����
���
� .����� ���������� ��� ()%(
� �	��� :)� ��.� 
��
�
��������
��� ����������������.�����.���� �������	��
������()��������������
������
;()�2����� ���������
�� �������� �� �����������C
����()%:1� �+���
�
������
�����.�
 ������
�������������$�����.
��������
����.����
��� 3����������������
�.��������
����� ()%:� ��� ()()� 
��� ����	��� 
� �������� %()� ���
�� 
��
� �������� �������� ��
��
��� ��������������������������
����������.������
�()��������������%
())�2�1�&������
��
����������')������� 
���������� ���
����$��
�����(
)))�2��1� ���
�������
�()�����
�������� 
��� 
���� ����������� 
�� �
��� ��� 
�������
��� ���������
�� ��
������

�����
������ 
��� ����  
���� ������ ������� �$�
������ �����
���� 
�� .���� 
�� ����
���������!����!������������������1�

(1F� ?	��
��
� ���� ������������������������
����.���� ����	���
�()����������� ���������

������9)A����
����� 
����������������������
��������������������������� ��()()1��
����
������ �����	��
�����
�
� �������������!����!����������������������.
�� �����
-��������4�
���������������
�������������()��������
������������������������������

Page 12



�

�


 ����������������1�&���
��������
�� ��()()�
��� ���
����������
������������������
��
�������
����.���� �����
����.������
���������	�����������������()�����������������

��
1��

3� .�
��
00��0�

'1%� ��� ����%'���	�� ���()%'�!��������������
�
�#����
�����.
�������	��� ���������
()*��+����������,��!
��
���1��+��������� �������
����
���
��
�����
�
���
�����
�����
������
����������

•� !���������� /&��
�� ()���0� ������ ������ ������� ���� -����� .����� .�����  �� 
��
�������
 ��
��
��
����
�������
����
����()�������������������������
3���������
��
��� ��� -����� B� ��� �
������ ����� ���� ���
 ��������� ��� 
� ��������� �������� ���
�$
����������	�������
������������������
��������1�

•� �������������
����
���.����������
���������������������
������
��������
������
���
��
��
� 
���
� ������
���
�()���������� ������
������ ����.����������� ���

��
������������������ �����
�����
��������������.�������������
����������.�����
���������1�

•� &��� �����
����� 
���� ����������� ���� ����� ���� �������	�� ������������ 
���

�
�2�����1�

'1(� ��� �
��� ���
���� ���� !������� ��� 
���
��� �����.���� ������ ����������� .���� ���� �.��
�����
�����
��
�
�������� ����
�����
����������������
���
����������������������
�
����
�����������	�����������
���������$�����	������������
����������1��&�������
���()������������������
���D������
�� ������	��.������
���� ���������
������

��� ���� ���
��� ��� �������� ��� ���������� ��� 
� �����������  
���1� � ��� ����� ����
!������� ��
���� �
��� ��� ���� �������
��� 
��� ���� ������� �	��
��� 
����
�����

������
����  �� ���� �����
����1� ()�� +������ ���� ,�� 
��� 
���� �
��
������� ���� 
�
��	���
������
����
��������������
��()�������������
�����������
�����
����
��������
������ ���� �� 
�� 
��
�1� � ��� 
������
� 
��� ������ �� 
�� ������� .�����  �� ������� 
��
�$��������
�.����')���� ��
��� ���������� ����
���� ������
����.�
������� ����� 
��
�������
 �	���������	��
������� 	�
������������������������������
������������������
()�����������
��
�1�&���!
��
�����������������
����������������������3�������������
������ ����
� �
3��� 
��� ����
��� ��
�� ���.��2�� .����� ������� ���
��� .������ �����
����
���
� ��������������
��
��
����������
.�����
������������������ ����	��
��������
�
	�������������.�����
��
�����������������()�����������������1�

'1'� &����������������������������-����������
����������������������������� ��������
�����������
���������	����������
����
�������.���������
������������	�������������
.���� ���������� ���� 
�2� ��������
���� �����
��� ��
�� ����� ����� ��� �$��
� ������
�
�
�������������������� �������
��������������.��
���.�����������
����
�����
��
���
�  ���� 
����	���  �� ������ 
����1� &���� ��
.�� ��� ���� �$��������� 
���
���������
������ ��� ���� ������
����� ��� !����� +������ ?�������� ��!+?�� 
���
�$�������������.�����.����
�������� 
������������.���	�����������
�
����.����
��
�����
����
�����
��������������.���������	����
��� �����������������������������

��� �
��
����  �������� ��� ����
����� D�����.����� ������� �������� ��	�������� ��� ����
������1� ����
���
�� ���������
����������
���� 
�2��� �������������������
���
�������
��������� �������	��������� ��
������
������
���������� ��������������������
����������������.��2��������
���������������������������������
��������1��

Page 13



�

�

'1:� &���
�������
�����-������
�� ��������������������
����
�������
���()�����������
�������������������
��
��
��
��������������
�.��������������������������������������	��
.��2����
��� ��
�������	��������������
���
���2���������
��� ��
�������	�������
���� ���� .����� �������� 
��� ��������	���� ���� ����� �����1� � &���� ��� ��.�  �����

����	��� ��
���� ��
�������������
���
���
�2�����
�����
������
�������
����������
�������
������
�����.�����
��������������������
���
��
�����
����
�������
��	��1���������

	
��
 �����������������
�����������������������
����������������	��
�
���������������
�
��� ��� ��������� ��� �
���
����
� ����� .���� ����	��� 
������ ()"')� �
���� ()� ����
���������
�����
�1���

'1;� &������������������������	���������������
����������� ����
������ ��������������� ���
�����
���� ��� ����� ���� ������ ��� G;� "� G9��������� ���
� ����
���.����� ����
����
����
-��
��&�
�������+�
�����������������
�����������������������
�G'���������������
�1��
&�����
����
����
�����.� ����������.�������
���.
������������������������������
�������	���
������
��
�/&��
��()0���������������2��������
2���������
����
�������������
��������	��
�����D���������
��
���	����� ��()�����������������
������	
�������	���
��� ��������1� ,����
����� ���� ���� ������� �
��  �� ���� �
��� 
�� ���������	���� ���
��
�������� 
��� ��������� ��������� 
�������
����� 
������ ���� ���������� 
�� ������
������1�

'19� ��� -����� �������� 
��� ���������� ������������ ��� �������� �
��
���� ���������� 
���
�����	�� ���
���� ������
���.����
�	��.���� ���2������.�
����$�������()�����
��
��
���������
������������������
�������
�����
�������������1��

'18� &���� 
����
��� 
���.�� ���� 
� ��
���� ���������
�����  
���� ��� � 3����	�� �������
1�
&��� ��� ��� ��� �
��
������ ��� 
�� 
��
� .����  �� ����� 
�� ���� �	��������� ��������1�
>�.�	��
� 
�� ���� �����
���� ����������� 
��� ���� �
��
������  ����������� 
���
��������������
������	
��
������������
�
�����2������������������������.����"�

•� 7����������
����
��
������
��������������������$�����	��������=�

•� <$�������� ��� ������ 
���
������ ����� 
�� ��������� �
�
���� 
��� �
�2�
� 
��� ���
�$�������()����������������
������������=�

•� !����������������=�

•� !����������������=���	����
�������
������������	
�������������1�

•� ����������������	
����=�
���

•� 7��������� .���� ������ �����
��	��� ����� 
�� 
���	�� ��
����� ���������� ����������
�
����
��
 ������������
	���
���������	��������������.��
� �����
������1�

'1F� &�����
�������������������������
��
����������������������	��.����������������.��2��
���.���������!���������	��	��1����������
������-����
��$������������������
�����������
�����
��+����������B�.����� ������������
��
�.������������.���������
������"�
���.����
��������
������
���������������
������������.�����������
���
 �	��(8����

��� +���������� ��� ��.� ����������� ���  �� ���������� ��� �����������	���� ���� ��
�����
�
��������
����������������������������1��

Page 14



�

�

'1@� <���.����
� 
����������� .����� 
��� ����
���� 
�������� � 
� /&��
�� ()0� ������� �
	��
��
�����������������
������	���
���� ��������
��
�.����
��
��������������
���������
��� ������ 
�������� ������� ��� 
��
�� ��� ����
�� �����	
����1� ��� 4�������
�
� ��� ���
�����
���� ��
�� ��������	�������
� /&��
��()0�
����
���.��������� ��� ����
�����	���
��	����
���
��
���������
����$��
�����G8�������1�&���
��������
���2��-����
��
��
����
������������ ���� �����
�� ()� ���� �������� �����
�����  
���� ��� �
��
���� �������1�
?	��
��
� �������������
��
�/&��
��()0�
����
���
��
����
���������������������� ��
�
�����������������	��
����
�����������	���
���.��������������� ������������������

��� �
����
�� ��
���
� ���� .����� ������ ��� ��� ����������
� 
��� ���� ����	���
��

����
���������
��
����������1�

'1@� &����$������������������!����!�����
�
��.����
������()*��+����������,��#����
�����
�������������������
��������������������
�������
���������������.�����
����
���
�����1�+������������ ���������
����� ��� ()���� �������� ��� 
��
��.����� ������
���
.�������� 
��� ������� ��� 
� ����� ������ ����� ��� .��� ���������*� �������� 
���
������������������������
� ���
�.������� �������
��� �
�������
��
��������
$������
���� 
.
������� 
���  �������� ��� ���� �$������� 
��� ��
����� ��������  �� ���
����
�����������.�������� 
������
������� ���
���� ��������1�&���� ��� ����
��
�.�����
���� ��	��	���������
���
��� ���������
���
����������
��()*��+������ ����,��.���� ��
��	
��
 ��1�

�� �������������0
�����
��0�

�4�� ���0�����
���������2�2�������

:1%1%� 5��������� 
��� �
��� C�� ��� �������
������ 
��� �
������ ���� ���� �	���� �������
������
�=� ������
������
�.
��� ��	�
�� �� ��
���
�� �� ���� �������1�&��������
�����
�
�����
��
������������
 ��������������
��������
�2������
�����������.��������4����
!������� 	������ ����.��2� 
������
�������.���� ���
�� ������������ ��� 
��
����� ����
�������� ��	��.�
��� ��
������
���
��������
��������������1� �&����� ��� �����
��
������������ ���� ���������� ������� ����� 
�� ()*�� +������ ���� ,�� ��� ���
��� .����
�����
���� 
�� 
� ���
�� ��
��� ������ ��	��� ��� ���������� �������� 
��� ������ ���� ���
�������
�2������
������������1�

:1%1(� ��� ������ ��� ������������� ���������� ������ ������������ �������� 
��� ���� ����� ���
 ������
��������
���
������� ��
������ ����������������������
��������������
��
���������������������������
���������������
����.�����������
�������������1�����
����()*��+����������,��!
��
�����
	�������������
� ��� ���������	��
����
�2������
�
��
������������� �������������� ��������������
�����������������	
������
���
 
�������
�����������������
����
�����������.���������������������1��&��������
���2������5�
��7
����� +
���������� �
�� �$�����	�� �$��������� ��� �����.��2� 
���
�����
������������$�����������+� ����>�
�������	�������� ��������������������	������
����	����
����������	�����������
������� ��
	�������
���������
����1�

:1%1'� &���#����
������
��
������	�����C�� ����������������.�������������
������������
 �� �����������
� .����� 4�
������ ���� �
�� .���� ��� ��������� ��� ���� ������ ��� ����
�����������������������������������1�

�

�

Page 15



�

�

�4 � �5���
�
�����	
���0
�
�6�����0
�������'���2���
���

:1(1%� -����������
���������������
�������������	��.
����������	������
���
�����
�����
�����
��������������
��������������
������������
��
��
�1��E����.����
��
�������
����
��
�
��
������ .���� ���� ���
������ ��� ���
����� ����� 
��� .���� 
�� ����
���� ��� �
��
����
����������
�����������������
��3�������
������2��������
2���������
���������������1��
��� ����
� �����
����� �
	�� ������ ��������� ��� ������ ��������  ����� ��� 
��
��
�
�2���������������������������#����	
�����
���������������������
��
�
��
������
����
��������
�
����������2���������	����
��
������� ������
���.����
����
�������2������
��
��3���1��>�.�	��
��������������������
������ �������������.������
����������������
	��
 ��
����
�����
�����������������
��������
�����
�����.��	��	����
����������.�����
�����
��������������1�

:1(1(� &��� <��
����
� #�	������� !�������� 
��� ������
����� ���
��� ����������� .
��
����
���� ���� ()����� ������ ���������� �������� 
������ �������� 
��� ���������
��

��
�� 
��� ��� 
��
����� 
�� 
�� 
������$1� &��� 
���������� ����������� ���� �����.����
2���������	�����
�����

•� C
2�� �����������
�
���
����
���� ���.
�2�
��������
�������
�����
���
�������
����������

•� �����	��������
������������������������
������������

•� +��	���� �
���� �
��
��� .����� ��������� ���� ��
�� ���� 
��� ��������
��
�  ���
�
������
����  �������
�� ���� ������.���� 
��� ������ ���
������
� ���
 ���� ������
�
�
�����������������������
���
�
�����������
����������������

:1(1'� ��� ���
��	�� ���
���� .���� ����������� ���� 
��� ��� ���� ���������� ���
�����
��
�
����������1�7���������
��	�����
����.������������������
����3�������������
���
�������
�����
��������
������
��������
�������������
����������������1�

:1(1:� &��� ���
�������������� ��������� ��
�� ���� ����������� ������������ �
�����.�����

����������
�� ���
�	
��
����
����
������ ������������
���
�3��������� ��� ����
���������������1�

�43� �����
�����
�
�0������
�
���
��
�
�0�

:1'1%� &���4����!����
� �����������������	�������������������������-�����
����
2�����������

�  ������ ��
��1� � &.����� �����"���"����� �������� ������ ���� ��� ����� 
� ������  ��
�����	���� ���� �
����� 
��� ��
����� ��� ����� ��� -����� ����������  �� ��
 ����� �
���
��������
�� 
��� �������� 3�������� ��� ���
�� ������������ 
��� ��������� ��
�����
����������� ����
2�� 
� ��������� ������ ������ ��� ���� 4���� !���� ���� !����������� 
���
!�����E��������!����
� ������1��

:1'1(� &���
� ����������-�����!����!������������
��
�����������
������������
��������������

������ ���� ����� .���� �����
����� �
	�� ���� ������������ ��� 
� ()� ���� ������ �������
���	����� ��� ������ 
��
1� � &���� 
��� ��� ����������  �� ���� ����� ���2������ -��
��
&�
�������+�
��� 3����	��/&�����
����������
�������������������������	������
�.��2����
���
���	����������������2�����0� �.�����������$�����	��()������������.������������
���
���� �������������� ����.
�2���� 
��� �������� ���� 
��� 
�������� ���������������
����
��
	��������������������������
�������������������������� ��������
������������1�

Page 16



�

�

�4�� ��0�����0�������������������
��

:1:1%� &�������	�������()�������������������������
������ ���������
��������� �����	����
��
���
���������
��������������������2������-��
��&�
�������+�
�����-&+�1�7����
�������������
�������.������	
�������������� ������������������� �������������
��
�
�����
���
����������
�������������������� ������������
���	����
	���
�����
���
�.����
�����������
�� ����������� ��� �������
���������
�����
��1� �&����������
��	
���� ����
������ ��� ����� �������� �
��  ���� ���
�����  �� ���� ��
����� ��� H�	��������
����������
�.������
	��
���.���
������
� �.�"������� ���������� ����������������
�
��.�	��� ���� �����  �������� �
�� �����  �� �
������� ��� ������� 
��� �������� 
��� ����
!������*�������
�����
������������������1��&��������
��
����
��������
������
������
��
�����
� ��������� .���� +������ �������
� �
$������� ���	��� ������
���� .�����
����������������
��
�	��
���� �����������
����1�

:1:1(� ��������������������
��������������������
������������������
������	��
���
����
������
�
��
���� ����������� ���  ����� ��	��.��� 
�� �
��� ��� ���� ��$�� ������ ��
�� ��-&+�
���������
�������
�
�.�����.������������ ��������������
���������
���
�����
�������
��������()��������������������
����
����������������������()%:"%81�

�47� ,�2���'���
���
��08�&���00����'�������
������������'��

:1;1%� &�����
���������
��������
�����1�&������������������ �������!
��"��1�

�49� �
01�.���2������

:191%� �������������������
������!������*����������
�����
����������
�����.��������	���()�
���� ������ ������� 
������ ���� ����� ��� 
� .
�� .����� ��� �������	�� 
��� �������	�� ���
�����	���� ��
���
����1� �4������������������	�����
������
��
�������������.�����
���
����������
��������������
����������������������2������ 3��������
�������������

��� �����
���� ���� ����� �������	�� ���� ��� ���
���� ��� 
���� 
����	��1� �� .���� 
��
�
 
����
����
��
������
��/&��
��()0
�.������
������ ������������-��������������
���2���
����
������
�������
�.
����������	��
�����������
������
������������ �����
�	�����2��� 
�� ���
������ .����� 
���
���� ����� ��
������ ��� �����	������� ����
��������
���
�����������1�

7� ������0
��0�

;1%� &��� !������� ��
���� ��� �
��� ���
���� ���� 
����
������ ��� ���� ()�� +������ ���� ,��
!
��
����.�����
��������������.���� �������������4����!����
� ������
�������
����
.���� ���
��� ��� �
	���� 
� ������ ���	
���� ����� 
��� �
���
� ��������� ������������ 
���
 ������ ��	���������1� -����� ��� ��
������ ����� �����
���
��
��.����� ����� ������
�������
��������
���.��2����������.�����������
��
������������.��2��
����
����������
��
��� 
��� ��
.� ��� ������ �$��������� 
���  ���� ��
�����1� � &��� ()*�� +������ ���� ,��
!
��
���*�������� ������ ��� ������$��������� ���.���� �����������
�������������� ����
�
����
���	
�������������������1��

;1(� &������������
��������������!������*��
����
���
�����������������
��
��� ������
2���
.���� ���� �.�� �����
����� ���� ��.��� ������ ������� 
������ �
���� 
��
�� ��� ���� ����1��
&����.��2� ������������������.���$���������
��������
�����
������
����������.����
�������������
���
��������������
� ����	
��������������
����
���.��������������

Page 17



�

�

��������������
	
��
 ���
���������������()������������������ �������.�����.��2����
���������
����3������
��������	���� �����������������.
�����.��21���

;1'� �����
������
�/&��
��()0������������
����
�����������������
�������
2��
��� ��
���
��
��
����
���������������������$������������� ����������������������� ���������	�����
���-�����
�����������
	������������ ���������������������.�������
��������������
�������
��1�,����
����
�����
����
������������������
���
�-�����()�������������
������  �� ��
����� 
�
����
� 
�������� ��	����� �������� .�����  �� ��������� ���� ����
������
��')��������.��2
����
����������
	�����.����� ��������
��
�������������
�������
���������
�������	����
��
��������1���

9� �����������
��0�

91%� &���<$�����	��4�
��������������������

��� �������������������������������
�
�����������������������������������
�����
������������$����������	��
�����
���
����������������-����=��

���� �������� ���� �������
����� ��� ���� �
�������
����
��� ��� ���� ���������	�� �����
���� ��� ()� ���� ������ ������� ��� ���� ����� � .���� 
� 	��.� ��� �$�������� ����
����������������
������������
��
��
��
������������������=�

����� �������� ��� .��2� .���� �
������� ��� 
��� �������� ���� !������� ����� 
�� ()*��
+����������,��
���+� ����>�
�������	������������������ ����()�����������
�������
����
$������������ �������� ������������������
���������� ����� ����
��������
���������
���
�
��� ���
�������.�
	������ ���� �
��� �������� ����
���������������������������
��� �������
����
�2�����=��

�	�� 
�2��.����������()*��+����������,��!
��
���*��.��2�����
������������������
��� ����� ������
��� ������ �������� ��
�� ������
����� ��������������
��� ������ ���
���� 7�������� 4�
��
� 7���
��
 ��� <������� 
��� !������� ���� ������
��������
����1=�
���

	�� ����� ��
�� ���� >�
�� ��� &�
������� +�
������ .����  �� �������� ��� ����
���������
����1�

:� ���12��������������0%��

81%� ����1�

�

���������������������������������������� �������������������
%
�&��� 
�2����������������������������������������
���
	
��
 ��������.���
�����������!������*��.� ����
�
����������������
�������������
������$�����������
����1��&����������� 
�2����������������������������������
�� �������.��2�1�

Page 18



���������	
�	�
�
�
��
���	��
�������	



���
����
������

����
���������
���
 �!"�#�
��
����$��
��%�"&!
#���&�'(



�!����
�� 
#�)�
$�%�
�*��"+
��
��%�"&!,
 +&"+
�+�%!�
���
-�
!��'��
�+��
�&.�
#&�%���,
���

*!����
-�'&�
-$
&�����%"&�'
�+�
*�����
&�
$�%�
��*%���&��(




��
/�	���

�&��&
/&�'+(



�/
�
/�����	

�$
��#�
&�
����
/�#!$��
���
�
�#
	��&���!
��#*�&'�
����'��


���
�
��
�!���$
���
%�,
���
�
�#
��*������&�'
�
�
�!���$
���
�����(

�
�#
�!��
�
�&�$
��
���)

��%�"&!!��,
 +���
�+�
����!
�
#*+
&�
*�!&"$
���
���&����&�!
�����(

�+��)
$�%
.��$
#%"+
���

�+&�
�**���%�&�$
��
�*��)
��
$�%
����$(






�
 ���
�
"���&'%�%�
����!
�
#*+
��
-�
�����
*�!&"$
��
 �!!
���
���&����&�!
�����(



�
#*+
&�
�����"��-!�,
#�������$,
�&'���,
����%!�
�
#*+
!&#&��
���
�+�
#�0��&�$
��
�����
 &�+

�1"�*�&���
���
-$
�+�
�����&"
�%�+��&�$(

/&'��,
���
+%#*�,
%�!���
�-��!%��!$
��"�����$(

�+&�

#�)��
&�
-��+
"+��*��
���
#���
*�*%!��
�+��
+%#*��
2����(




��
���)
345
��
�������
 &!!
'�
��
�
#*+(

��0��
�����&�!�
���
-�&�'
�1�#*���(


�&#&�&�'
�*����
 &!!
"���
����"�&.�!$
&#*��.�
�����$
���
�+�
6%�!&�$
��
!&��
���
�����
���&�����(


��&�'
�
#*+
"���&�����!$
 &�+
�&'��
���
��
�
 &��
����
-��&�
&�
-�����
�+��
�+�
�"+��!

"��"+#���
�**���"+
"%�����!$
&#*!�#�����(

�����&�'
��
 &��
�
�
#*+
�1����
��
*���&-!�

+��
�+�
-&''���
&#*�"�
���
"�#*!&��"�,
&�
��
���&��
#����'�
��
��!!
��
��&.���
���
&�
#���

"���
����"�&.�(

����
����"�&.�����
&�
�
-�!��"�
-�� ���
#�1&#&�&�'
��&.��
"�#*!&��"�
 +&!��

#&�&#&�&�'
"���(






��
��#�
�����,
�"+��!
"��"+#���
�
#*+
!&#&��
 &!!
��!$
"�����
�
*��"+ ��)
 +���

!&#&��
"+��'�
#��$
�&#��
�!��'
�
0�%���$(

�+&�
 &!!
���
#�)�
�����
��
��&.���(

7+��
+�!*�

��&.���
"�#*!$
&�
��
%���������
�+�
!&#&��
-�"�%��
�+�$
���
"���&�����
�"����
�
 +�!�

"�##%�&�$(

��#*!&��"�
&�
-���
 +��
#��$
�'��"&��
"�!!�-�����
��
*��#��&��
���
�+�$
���

�����"��
-$
�+�
*�!&"�(

�

��
��
*�*%!��&�$,
895
��
��&.���
�%**���
���&����&�!
�
#*+
�*���
!&#&��,
�""���&�'
��

�+�
:�&�&�+
/�"&�!
���&�%���
/%�.�$,
��
����!
�

&�
�
�����*���
*�!&"$
�+��
+&��
#��$
-%�����
�

�����$,
+��!�+,
��.&���#���,
"�##%�&�$,
*��.���&��,
���%"��
�-��&�$,
���%"��
*�!!%�&��,

&#*��.��
"$"!&�',
 �!)&�',
���%"��
���+#�
���
&#*��.��
!%�'
+��!�+,
&#*��.��
*��*!�
 &�+

+����
*��-!�#�,
#����!
+��!�+
*��-!�#�
���
���%"��
��&��,
 +&!��
�!��
��.&�'
��"&��$

#���$(

���)��&�'
&�
)�$
��
&�(




7&��
�
#*+
!&#&��
���
*��.��
��
-�
����"�&.�
�
�� ��
"��%�!�&��
&�
�
"!���
'�&�,
$��

�+�
 &���
+��!�+
-����&��
��
&�"������
�"�&.�
���.�!
���
 ���+
#%"+
#���(






����!
�

&�
�������-!�,
��
�-�%�
;9
*��
+���,
 &�+
�1"�*�&���!
�����
��
���%��
���#


&#*��.��
6%�!&�$
��
!&��(

�
#*+
!&#&��
���%"�
���'��,
����,
*�!!%�&��
���
��&��(

���$

�1*����
�")�� !��'�
�+��
!&#&��
���
�+�
�&�'!�
-&''���
&#*�"�
�������-!�
&����.���&��
��

���&"�!!$
&#*��.�
:�&��&�
����$(




�.��
<�
#&!!&��
*��*!�
�� 
!&.�
&�
*!�"��
!&)�
���"+�����,
:&�#&�'+�#,
:�&���!,


��#-�&�'�,
�1����,
	� "���!�,
�&��!��-��%'+
���
�45
��
�+�
������
:���%'+�
+�.�
�!!

�'����
�+&�
*�!&"$
��
���&����&�!
�
#*+
!&#&��
�.��$ +���(




��1&#&�&�'
�
�
#*+
!&#&���
"���
����"�&.�����
&�
-���
�"+&�.��
-$
&�.���&�'
&�


��%"��&��
��
��&��
�+�
!��'=���#
"�#*!&��"�(

��+��
�%�+��&�&��
+�.�
��%��
�+��
��&�&�'

"�#*!&��"�
�+��%'+
*%-!&"
+��!�+
��%"��&��
&�
 ���+
�+�
"���
��
�"+&�.�
!���&�'
-�+�.&�%�

"+��'�
�� ����
�!� ��
�*����
���
��&�&�'
�"�&.�
���.�!(


Page 19





7�
$�%
)�� ,
�����
 &!!
+���
�+�
�����
��*���
��
�+�
��%�
��
>���"�
��1�
$���(

�!!


"$"!&�'
'��%*�
���
��)&�'
���
 &���
�
#*+
!&#&��
��
*����"�
"$"!&���
���
*��#���
&�"������

"$"!&�'(

��
&�
���
��
�+�
���
:�&��&�
�$"!&�'
��#*�&'�
�&#�(




��
*���
��
�+�
��%�
!�'�"$
�����
"�%!�
����%�"�
 &��
�
#*+
!&#&��
���
���
"$"!&�'


�����
&�"�����
�.��
�
5
��
�+�$
�&�
&�
:�&���!,
 &�+
�
����
��
���%��
��
�.��
;8
*��
;<
�*���(





�+�
	� 
�����?:�������
�$"!&�'
/%*��
�&'+ �$
&�"!%���
�
#*+
!&#&��
�!��'


��&'+-�%�&�'
�������(

��
$�%
�""�*�
�+��
�+�$
���
������
�+���
��
*����"�
"$"!&���
��
���
���#

�+�
/%*��
�&'+ �$,
�+��
$�%
"��
�%��!$
���
�+��
"$"!&���
 �%!�
-����&�
���#
�
#*+
�"����

�����
!&�
���&����&�!
�����(






�+�
-����&��
&�"!%��
��.&���#����
 +��
9
)
*��
+�%�
��
<4#*+
2����
 ���


&�����%"��
&�
���#��$,
"��
��&.���
"+��'��
'���
<�5
!���,
�+�$
-��)��
<@5
!���
���

��6%&���
<�5
!���
�%�!
�
�+��
&�
<A*
*��
!&���
��
�
��1
"%�(

��
��.��
�&#�
�
�
#*+
#�)��

�����&"
�#���+��,
'�*�
-�� ���
�+�
"���
��"�����,
&�
&�
���&��
��
#��'�,
#���&�'
#���

���&"&���
�!� 
��
�����&"
&�
%�-��
�����(

���'���&��
���%"��(




�
#*+
!&#&��
"���
4

�&#��
!���
�+��
2����
 &�+
+%#*�(

��
&�
��
!��'��
#�������$
��


&#*���
+%#*�(

�����#�%�+��
�
#*+
!&#&�
"���
0%��
;99

*��
������(

��"�!
�%�+��&�$
"����

���
�-�%�
;9
*��
+���
��
*�*%!��&��
�
���
#%"+
���
�+���
+%'�
-����&��(




��
&�
��!�=�����"&�'(

/����'
�%**���
���#
"�##%�&�&��
���
��
&�"����&�'
*�!&"�
��"%�


��
"�##%�&�$
*�!&"&�'
�%**����
�
#*+
�*���
!&#&��
 +&"+
"��
-�
�����"��
 &�+
�
B!&'+�

��%"+C
�""��&���!
*�!&"&�'(

�+�
�"���#&"
&#*�"�
&�
&#*��.��
�����&"
�!� ,
�+�**&�'
��
����
&�

#���
*!������,
+�%��
.�!%��
�&��
�5
���
�+�*
�����!�
&�"�����
 +���
�
#*+
&�
&�"!%���(






�+�
+��!�+
&#*��.�#����
���
#���&.�,
�+��
$�%
+�.�
��!!&�'
�#&��&���,
&#*��.��
�&�


6%�!&�$,
���
�
�+&��
��
��#�
��&.���
�� ����
#���
�"�&.�
���.�!
#����
!&)�
 �!)&�'
��
"$"!&�'(



��
$�%
 ���
�����
��
+�.�
�
-�����
6%�!&�$
��
!&��
���
���%"��
&��6%�!&�&��D

/!� ��


�*����
���%"�
��&��(

�+���
"%�����!$
�%����&�'
�+�
'�������
&��6%�!&�&��
����
��
!&.�
������

-%�$
�����
���
�+�������
-����&�
#���(

�
#*+
���%"��
+��!�+
&��6%�!&�&��
-$
�1����&�'
�+�

!&��
�1*�"���"$
��
�&���.����'��
*��*!�,
*���&"%!��!$
*���
-�$�(




�!����
�'���
�
�
#*+
 &��
����
*�!&"$
���
�����
���
����%�"�
�+&�(

�+��)
$�%(


���������	





���
����
������

�+��)
$�%,
����(

��%�"&!!��
	��+(



���	������
	�/��

�$
����
��$��,
�
#�.�
�+��
�+&�
#�����
-�
��������
��
�+�


�1�"%�&.�
:����
���
"���&�����&��(



���	������
�
������

�
��"���
�+��,
����
��$��(





���
����
������

�!!
�+���
&�
��.�%�D

��
��
�
���

����	

�+��
&�
�������(





�+��)
$�%
���
������&�'
���
���
 +��
$�%
+�.�
��&�(

��%
 &!!
-�
)�*�
&����#��
��
�+�


"���&�����&��
 +&"+
$�%�
"�##����
 &!!
��"�&.�(

�+��)
$�%
���
'���
���������(







Page 20



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� �

���	������
�	����������
��

�����
����
���	��	����������	�
��
�������
�
����
� �

�	���
!��
������������
���
���	���������
���	 
��� 
������
��
�����
�	��������
"�	�������� 
�������

��
�����	������
��	����#����	���	�������	�
�����	�

���
�������

�����
	��������	��
"�	������
�� 
�������
��
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��#�
�
$����!���%�

•� 
	���
���
���������������
���������
��
	�������������������	
��	��
���
���

•� ��������
�
����
�
��
���
�����������
�	��
���
������

������!���������
����
�����
�!���
�	��
���
���

•� ���������
���
�	����
!�
&��	�	�������
�
�	��

������������	����
	��
��
�

�����������	
������
 
����
��
 �������
����	
'����	���	���$�	������	�����




���
������	
(	���)
 ���*'���
�




�������
������	
���+��,--.�.


����
��
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������
������
����������	


�-������������



�

��
�����	
��������

��/
��
������
�
�
����������
�����
�



��������	%�








��������









 �����










�������












!�������









"����




�������%�
�
������������0
�1�������
���������������������������������
	���
&���������������������������������������
�	������
�����������������������������������������������������������������	�������
�����
 �
�
��
�
23�
	�
���
4���
��!���
�	�� 
5�

�
#�

$������
��
���
����������
����%����

%���
 "�����������
 &���
��
����������
����





(	���)
 ���*'���
�� 3���
��	��3��6

��7!!�

���
$

���
	�����������

�"�	�����)
	��

)��	�3��
��� 3
�!���	�

�8������ 
�
���
(	�	�
��

�"�	�������������

9������:	��� $�	�������3���
�� $�	�������3�	��
��

3������
�0���	�
���	�� $�	!!�
�(	�	�
�
��� $�	!!�
������

��

9	���3���
�	��� $�	!!�
�(	�	�
�
��� $�	!!�
������

��

;	��	��<
<
�����4	*
��
	4�	��

���	�
���	���3���
�� �


���	���(��������7!!�

��

3
�
��(������ '����	����
�����8��������
����� $�	��

������

��

�
	��'
����� '����	����
�����8��������
������ 9����������

��

���������
��=	�� $�	!!�
�(	�	�
�
��� $�	!!�
������

��

�

�

�"�	�������� 
����������
�����	���
���
��	��������	
�����
���
���

�








 '
 


� '
 


Page 21



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� �

(�

�������
��
���������
�������
�������
��
��������
����
)��
��������	���
�

�

$�
�	����	
�������������

����������	���

��
 �� ���������
������
�	��
�������
�
����	�

��
���	�����!������
��!$�	����
���	�����
����
�����)
	��(
��
���	����	��

�����
�
��!����
��������>����)
	��(
��
���	���)
	�
��(	�	�
�
���$
	�#��
����
"�
�����	��
 �
���!���
���
	���
���	��������	�
�#��$�����
 �
���	��!�
��
�����	�
�	���
��	�����
�
���������
����

��������������
� �
�������!��
�������
�	��
�������
��!$�
����	�

�	�����
�
������
�
!�����!���
������	��
#�

$�
��
 �
���!�������?��
��	���)�������	���� 
���
�	��������
�!�������������
�%��
�

•� (
��
��1���	4
����
�� �
���	���	����	������

•� ��
�
	�������
����
�����
����

�@��

•� ��
�!����
��������
�	�	������!���
�������)�
	��$�	�������3�	�@�

•� ��
��

�����
!!

�� 
����	��
��
	��	�����
��
����@��

•� �
��
����/	�
���!�/
������!����?��
��	����
�
�����
��!����
�@��

•� ��
�!����
����
��!�'��
�?��
�@�	���

•� ��
��

�����
������
��
������	����� 	��
�!������
�#�



���	��
������!�������
 �
����
�!���������	
�������
�
�����
��
��	��	��	��!���	��%�

�5� $�	����
�����
���
��!��������������������

���������	��	�
��
��	����!���
�

	��	�����
��
��������	�
���!�����
	��
��������
��	����
�������������

������
������
��������
�#�

��5� $�	����
�����
���
��!���
�����	������
��������������?��
�����)���������

�����
��	�����	����
�
���
�
����	��

�����!���	����6���
�������
� �
������
��
���
�
�
���	���
����������
��!���)�
	��$�	�������!������#�����
��
�
�
�!���	�������!�������
���
��	�	�
�����	
��
 
����
���
	���
��������
�	�
�	��
��!�����
	�����
�
������
�����������������
��	���!������#�

���5� $��
�����
��	���	������6

��
�������������)�����������
�
� �������!���*���
�
���������
���!�
�������
��	�����!���	����6�����

������!������������	��
�����
�	�
��	����	
���	�
��������
�������	����
���!�
����	����6�����

���#�

� 5� /
 �
����
�
���������	���!������?��
������

��!���
�	��
��	�� 
����)�����
	����	
��
������
�� 
��
"�	����
!!

�� 
��
�
�
��	��	����
��	������
�
	!!���	��
�
����������	����
��
������
	���
���
�������!������
���
	��
����!�
��
�
�	�
	��	������
�
����
�
� 
�	�
��!�!����
�������������	��
�#�

�
$�
�	�� 
�	
�������
�
�	���� 
�����)���������	�
�)
	�
������$
	��	���	��������!�A�
�
�
�
���	 
��

��
����
�
�������	�!����
����
�
�
��
���������
��
�#�7�������	���	��
�����	��
��������
������
��
�������
��������
�	���� 
�����	�
���	���������"�	�����
	��
���
��#�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 22



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� +

&���������
�������

�
/


��� 
�	��
�� ��� ��
� �!$� �
���	������ ��	�� 
	�
� ����� 
!!

�� ��� 0� 
��
�� ����� 	�����
������ ��������������
�����
�
��
�#��$�
��
������	�

�
�
���	�
����
	��	��������
�����
�������

� ���
� ��� ���� ��

�� ������� 	��� ������ <��
��� 	��� 
�
	���� ����������� 	� ���
�
!�
&���
� 	����	
�� ��� ��
� ��
��!� ������� ��

�� ������#� ��� �	���
��	����
�
� �
�
����	�� 	���

�
������� 
�
���� 	�
� ������ ��
�� 	�� 	������ �
������� ��������	�4
���� ��	��������� 	���
���
�� 	�
	�����
�� 	�
� ���� �	��� �!� 	����	6��� �������� ����
� ��
��������� ��

�� ������� ���
������<��
��	�
��

���
��
��!����������
����#��
�
�
$�
�
�
�	��
��	����������%�
�

•� ��
	�
��	��
����������

��������	�
	����������!
	���
����
�
���

���	�
�	��
	���
���#�

�

•� ��
	�
�������?��
�������	�������������
���!�!
	���
�#�$�
�
�	�
����������
����	��
����
�
��
��	 
��������

������	������
���!���6����	

��
���#�$�
����
��!�
!
	���
���
������
!�������
��
����
�������
���!���	�
�������
����
�
����������
�
#��

�

•� �!!

����
��!�����
���������	������
��������
�
�
��!����������
�#��
�
#*���
�������
�
�������	
����
������
��!���	!!�
�
	������!
	���
��	���������	����
�
���
 �������

�����
�
��	�������	�
���
�
�
&

��� 
���

����

���
��	�����
�
��
	���
���
�
�
�

�
�����4

����

���	������
���������#��$�
��
���	������!����
�����
"���
�������
	��
!
	���
��	��!�
"�
������
� 	����
 
����
�
���
�!
	���
���
�
������

�
��!����	!
���	��	�����
�
��
	���������������
�<��
����
�
	�������
�
�����!�<��
���������������


��	��������������

���
����	�
��
�
!���#�
�
#*���

�����

�
������)�������
�
��������

�������
�
�

������!�������	�����	���	�4����#��$�
�
�	�
�
�
�	��
��	�������	�������	�
���
�
���

����
�
�	��
	����
�	�� 
�������	���!����
����	!!�
�

	������!
	���
���
�
������

�
�#����������
���
�
����
��
��!��� 
�����	���	�
	�������
	����
�!���
�����������

��#���
�
��

�

+�
�����
��
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������
������
����������
�
2
����
�
�*�,	#��!�����	�
�	��
������	����	�
��������
�������	��	���,�#��!�����	�
�	��
������
	��
� �

��!��
��������
 
��5�

�

+��

���������
������
��
����



2��
	�
���
4���
�	�������	�
���&��
���5�

$�
� ������	�����
�
�����6

�� 
��������
��
��
�
�












�

$�
� ������	�����
�
�����6

�� 
��������
��
��	�����
������������
����	�

�
�

�

,





Page 23



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� ,

�
����

�!�
��

��������������
����	�
��������
�������	��
�

�

 �����
�������
������	

�
$�
�	��������!���)

������������
��������	��	����
������	
�������
�
����������	 
�	��������
��

��������������	

�	��������	�������������
�������
�)�
	��$�	�������3�	�B��2)$3+5���4
��
��6

�� 
�����������
���
���%�
�

�#� �
�����#�$������� 
�
���

�� ���������������

�����
�	
�� ����	�������������=
���
C��4����
�	�����
�)

��������/
����#��

�#� 
�)-������#�$���	4
������	���	�������
������	����	�����
	����������	��	��
�
��	�����������
��!���=
���C��4����
������
��

�����������	������D��
���������������
�	����	��
	������
��
�������	��#��

+#� .������
��

���#�$��
��	�

���
�"�	������!���!
��!��
���
��� �����������4�������	���
 ��������=
���C��4����
#��

�

$���
����
�� 
����
�	�� 
���6

�� 
����
�!���������)$3+�E������	��F�	�
�	����
	��
������
�
�������
�
�
�%�



•� ���	��
�����
����������
�
��������
��
������

�
������
������
��
������

���������
����������
���
�����
��
�������
�
���
����
��
�����������


•� ���	��
����
���
����
����
���
�������
�
���
��������
�

����
��
��������
������
��

������
�

�
��
�����������
������
�
����


•� ���	��
�����
������
�
�
�� 
�
���
�
�
������
��
��������
��
�
�
������!
�����
�


�������
�
���
������������!�


•� ���	��
�����
�����
��
�����!
���
�������!�
�������
�

��������
������
��
����������


•� ���	��
������
��������
�����
�
���
������
��� 
���
���
����������
�

���
�����

�!�����
���
 �������


�

�

+��
��������
���������
�����

��
	�
���
4���
�	�������	�
���&��
����

$�
�����
��
� �

��
2��
��������
� �

���� ������	���
������
��5�
�












�

����

�!�
��	����!���
��
� �

��
2��
��������
� �

���� ���������
������
������	���

�!�
��

������!�
��
��
� �

5�
�

�

3��
�������!�	��
� �

�
2���
����	
�������	��5�
2��
	�
��

�
"�	�����	����	�

�������
��
�
��5�

�

 �����
�������
������	



�

�




,








Page 24



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� .

�

/�
!���
�������
0
)���
��
)�
�������
1��)

(	4
�	����
��
�
��!�	�����!���	���������������
����������
	�������������	��
���
��#��$����

�������
���
%���
 �����
������	�������� �� 
�
�����
�
	�
����
������!�����
�

������
��� 
����
"�	����������������	���
�����
�1���	!!�!

��	
4#��



�
��������
&��������

�
����
�����!���	��
	��	���
��	�������
��������
�
	�
��� 
���
 
�	���
	����	����������	��
� 
��>�G��!���6���
�����
�����
�������
��
�����6����
���

����
�������
� �
�������!���
�
�
����#����	�������!���
�
	��	�����	�	�����
	�
���������	�!� 
��
	��	 
�	�
����������	��
	�������.G��!�	���
�����
	��	���
��2	����&�>+�	���	���5��

������������
����
���!�	��
�����
6����
�#���
�
������
2���������
 ������

�
$�
�����	�����6

�� 
��!��������
�
�
���	��	��	����

��
	��	�����
��
����#�$�
�
!��
�
��
����������	������!���
������	��
��	���

���	�
�������
��

���
����6����	

��
���#�$��
	�����!�����
� 	��������<
���!���
�<��
����
�� 
�	���	�
	��!���
�<��
������
��
������!���	��

� 
�
�������
�������
��<��
��	���

����
�����
��	��������
�	

��
�����
��4�������
��4���
	����	�4
��	

��������#��
�
$�
�	�
	��	�
���
���!�
���������	���	�������	�����	���	���	���	�������	��
��	���
	��
��
�
!��
� 	��������<
#�
�
H�����������
��������
������!���
��
����������������#�������
��
�	�������
������	�����
���
�������������
���
���	��	�
	���	 
��

����
���
���������
�	��
���
������

���	����	 
�
�����

���	�4
�������
�����
���!���6����	

��
�����
��4���#�$�����	���

�����
�	��	��
���
�����
	���
�	���������
�������	 
���
���!���	������	�
�����	

��
�����
��4�#�
�
9� 
����	����
�����
���!�
	��	���
��	�
��
��
����	�����
�	������
�<��
��	�
���
	�
��������
������
������
 
������������

������
��	���������	��
����������
�����!	
����������
��
�
�
!�������
�
�
������
��	�
���
�
��������
�	�
	����
��	�#�
�

•� 0���
���!��
��������������

•� ����������

���
���

•� 7��
�� ���
�	��
���
���

���
��������
�	�
	��

•� ������	�����������

����

•� ��������������!����
&�
��	��!������#��

•� 3����	������
�

$�
�
���
������

���������
���
�����!�����	�
���
������	��
�!��������!��	�
�	���
	��
2����1�+5�	�����
��
 ��
�����

����������
���!����
������	��
�!���!����
�!��	�
�	���
	��#�
�
������
 ������


�

•� �� 
����	�
���

����� 
���	���	

��
����	�	�

•� �
�
����
��������
�
&�
����!������������1<��
�

•� 7����
��� 
����	������!�
&�������
���������1
� �����
���

•� �
�
����
�
������!���	!��������	���

•� �����	��
������	�����

Page 25



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� A

•� /
��������'����	���	���$�	������	�����:�	���!���	���� 	�����	� 
����
���
�
�


��	���$�	!!�
�/
���	�����7��
��2$/75�

•� �������

��
�
�
��!�����
��� 
����6

�������


� 
�I�

•� (�������
!!

���
#�#�
	��������!����
����

����� 
���	���	

��
��������
��
�
=�
�
��������
���
�/�	���	!
��B���
�����$�	 
��$
	�����������
����������������
�
�
�
����
�
��	���������� 
�	���
�
��	����������
�
�����
��	�������
�������	����	��
�
	�	�
�
���	���������
���
��
�
�
�#��
�

2��
�����
���
����
��
��������
���
���������
�����������

�
0��
�
�

2�����
��������	


�
7�������������������!��
�
�
��������������

����� 
���	���	

��
�����	�����
��



�

3�

4����
�����������
0
����
���
��������
������
��
������
)��
���
����
��1���
��

��
��������
��
����������



�










5��


































%�

�
 �����
�������
������	


�
$�
�!�����������	4
����
���	�
�
������
�������������
�����
�
��	������!���
�������
�
�
�
�#��

•� ��
��
�
���
� �

��

•� (
����

•� =	���(
��
���

•� �
�������

•� )�
	���
���
����

•� 3	���������
����2�!�	����
	��
5�
�

2�����
��������	


0��
�
�

6�

4��
���
��
��������
��
����
��������7



��
	�
���
4�	����
�
 	���	��������!�
	���
"�	�����
�	�	
�
�����
�����	4
����
���	����	���
���
��	��	����������������	�
��������
����
� �

����!��
������

8�������
���������������


































2��

















































������






























����������








































9�����
������������


















&���































&�������
























































































































��
:�����




















��'


;����
��
������<




















��'���
�����������





'
 


,





'


,








,





Page 26



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� -






















"����























 �����
�������	
��
�	��
�	����	���
����
�	!!

�
��	����
��	�
����
���4
�������� 
��
	��
�������	���	����	�4������
������
���	������#��

���1���������









































��������
�����

































8��������



















�����
=�����






















 �������









































$������

























���������
















�



















"����
������
�������
�



 ��������
���������

















>>>>>>























:����
�����������

































�������
��
��������
���
��������






























?����������










































��������
����






























���
�������������





























������












































�����������
���
�����������









































����






















































������������
���
�����������























��������
��������
��
���
���������
�������
��������
��
��������



 �����
�������




�

@�

 �������
���
��������
������



$���4�	�������	������	�
�	��
������2�
��
5����
�!	
��!���������!���	��������
����
���	��
������ 
�	����
�	�� 
����	
�����
"�	�����
�	�	
�
�����
�����	4
����
���	�����
�
!!

���!���
�
�	���
��


@��
 �������
������	


(	4������������
�����	����

�������������%�
�

•� ��	�	��
	������
�
	�
��
�	�

���!���� � 	���!��������	�
	�����>-G��
•� (	4
�������
���
	�	�������	�4����
�
�
��
�
���	�����	����
��
	�������!
����
�
•� /
��

�����������	�������
#��

•� ����� 
�"�	������!���!
�!�����
���
	��
���������

•� 3�� ��
��	!
���	��	�
��������
����������
���	�����	����
�
����	����
��

�	��������
�
������������������
������	��
���
���
���	�
�������������������
�	����	���������	���

'


,


,






 


,


,


,


,








,





,
 ,





Page 27



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� J

�����
���
�

•� 9�
	�
�����
�
��
�

�	���
���

�!���
�����
����	 
����������
������

2�����

��������	

0��
�



�

@��
%�������
������	


•� $�
�
����	���������
��
��������	���"�	�������
����

���������	�
��
��

������
 
���
���������!!�
�������
����
���	���
��
��������!	�	��	

��
����	��	�
���
"�
�

��!�
�
��

����

���	����	!
���!
	���
���������

��	���	����!��������<��
�1�������

�

•� 3
�

� 
�������	

����	!!�
��	����
�
	�
�
���
������������
����	����	����������
�
�
 
���!������	

�
�����������!!
��!���
 
����
�
�
�	���	��
������������������
�

���������������


��	��������������
���
����	�
��
�
!���#�

�

•� 3��
���	������
���
�
	�
����
������
��
��
�������� 
��
�
���

����	����������������

���
��	�
���������� ������	���	!
���!����
�
����	���	������
���	���������	������
�
	����
��
��������	���
����!���
��
������	��

�

•� K����
�����
���	���
���
�
	�
�� 
���������������������
��
�	�� 
�����	���	�
	��!���
�
�
�
�
�����
 
���
 
����
	���
�����	4
�����
����
���	���������������	��������4����

���
��������(
��������
��
����
����	
�����
�����
���������
�#�

�

•� ��

��
	������!
	���
���	���	 
�	�����������	
�����
�
��
�
���
� �

����������
�������������	�
�����
����������	����
�	�������	�
�!
	���
��	�
���
��	���	����!���
�
�
�
�
��
��������

���

�

•� ��
�
	�
��!����
��	���
�	�

�
�������	���
��	����!����	��
��!
	���
��
#�#���

��

�����������	���	�4�����

�

2�����

��������	

0��
�



�

A�

4���
����
��������
�������
������
���
��������
�������������
���)���
���

������B�����������
����������7�

�





































5��

















































%�


�
 �����
�������
������	

�
$�
��������
������!��������
�
�
��������	 
�	��
�
!�
�	��	!!

�������
���
	���
��	�
	�	�����
�������� ��
�	��	!
��
� �����
���!�����
���
	��
��������#���
�

2�����
��������	


0��
�
�

�
�
�

,
 


Page 28



�

��������	
��	��
���
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�
��
��
��
������� >

�*�

����
����
��������
�����
������B�����������
����
���������
�������
)���
����

�����
;����
��
��������
��������������
)��1�����<7
































5��

















































%�



�
 �����
�������
������	

�
����� 
��
����������	!
���	����	4
��������
��!�	���
�	��
 
���	�����
�
���	�
���	�
����
	���
�����
������	�4����
�
�
�����
����#�
�

2�����
��������	


0��
�
�

�

���

�����
����
��������
��
���������
��
����������
���
�����
��
���
�'�����
��

�������7


�



















5��

















































%�





 �����
�������
������	

�
����	���
��
�

� 
����	����
��
�
�
���	 
�	����
������� 
����	
������
�
����	���	���

�
������� 
�����������#�'��
 
�����
��
��
����������	��
	��	���
���	��	��
�
!�
�	��	!!

�����
	������

�������#�
�
�

2�����
��������	



0��
�
�
�

,
 


'
 


Page 29



� �
�
�
�

� �
#
�

8
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�



2�
�
�


��
�	
���
�
�
�
��
	


��
�
�
�
�!
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�


�
�
�


�
��
�


�

��
�


��
��
�


�


	
�

�
��
�


	
�
�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�


�
��
!�
�	
��


	
�
��


��
�
�
�!
�
��


	


�
�	


��
�
�
5�

� 2
�
��
�
�





�
��
�
�
�
�
��



$
�
�
�
�
��





�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�



(
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
!�
�


�


�


�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�




�
��
�
� 


�
�
�	
�
�
�

	




��


�
��
�
�	
��
�
��


�
�

� � �

7
�
�
�
��
�
�

�




��


�
��
�

�
�


��
�
�
��

3
	
�
��
H
�
�
�

��

� � � � � �

�
�

�

� � � � � �

�
�

�

� � � � � �

�
�

�

Page 30



�

� ���

�(�
9����������
�)�������
���
��������

��	�
��
�
������	��	���� 
����
�	
������	������
��
��!������
�
"�	�������� 
�������

��
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��


0	�
� K���$���
� �	�
�

9����7�
��
�
�
'��	�����	&����
�

3��6

��(	�	�
���
$�	�������3���
��
�
$�	!!�
������

�����
(	�	�
���

�,1�.1���
�
�
�,1�.1���

�
�

�+�

$���������
��������
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������

�������

2��
	�
���
45


�
����������������	����!��
� �

�3�	�������
�!���	�

������������
�
��
����������������������	����!�3��6

�������������
�
���������������������	�
��
�����������
�	��

��	������ ��
�������
�	�������	�
���	���
������������������3�
	�
���

�!�����
����	���
�
�������������
������������������7��
��2��
	�
���

�!�5�
�

�
�

�/�
 ����������



����
����
��
8�������
����









����
���������










�

,





�

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 5th March, 2014 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

FRIDAY, 14TH FEBRUARY, 2014 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor K Wakefield in the Chair 

 Councillors J Blake, A Carter, M Dobson, 
S Golton, P Gruen, R Lewis, L Mulherin, 
A Ogilvie and L Yeadon 

 
 

177 Response to Deputation - "20's Plenty for Us" Campaign  
The Director of City Development and the Director of Public Health submitted 
a joint report setting out the Council’s response to the deputation presented to 
the Council meeting of the 13th November 2013 by the “20’s Plenty for Us” 
campaign group. 
 
Members welcomed the approach being taken by the Council in respect of 
this issue and specifically supported the matter being referred to Scrutiny 
Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) for further consideration. In 
addition, the Board welcomed the range of benefits being realised as a result 
of the initiative, with specific reference being made to the promotion of more 
active and healthy local modes of travel. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the submitted report, together with the success of 

the current programmes in the context of the overall road safety record 
for Leeds, be noted. 

 
(b) That the continuation of the targeted approach to the progressive roll 

out of 20 mph speed limits in the city be endorsed, with a view to 
extending the opportunity to all residential areas as resources permit. 

 
(c) That approval be given to work being undertaken with partners both 

from within and outside of the Council (such as the ‘20’s Plenty for Us’ 
group and Public Health services) on the promotion of the 20mph 
speed limits, with a view to maximising all related benefits by securing 
the greatest possible public support and compliance. In addition, 
approval also be given to explore new avenues in order to obtain 
funding for the introduction of schemes, publicity and marketing. 

 
(d) That the ‘20’s Plenty for Us’ campaign group’s work in raising the 

profile of this issue be acknowledged, together with the group’s request 
that this matter be scrutinised, and as such, this issue be referred to 
the Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) for 
consideration. 

 
(e) That it be noted that the Head of Transport Planning will be responsible 

for the implementation of such matters. 
 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 

Date: 18 March 2014 

Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry – The role of the Leeds Let’s Get Active scheme in 
promoting public health 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. In April 2013 the Scrutiny Board carried out the first session of an inquiry into the role 
of leisure and culture in promoting public health. This piece of work is being carried 
out jointly with participation from the chairs of the Health and Wellbeing and Adult 
Social Care Scrutiny Board and the Children and Families Scrutiny Board. 

 
2. It was agreed to refresh the terms of reference for the inquiry to reflect the council’s 

successful funding bid to introduce the Leeds Let’s Get Active scheme, and the 
revised terms of reference were agreed at the Scrutiny Board’s meeting in June 2013 
(Appendix 1). 

 
3. The first session of the new inquiry took place in July 2013. As a result the Board 

agreed a number of comments and recommendations relating to the draft scheme 
(Appendix 2).  

 
4. City Development have provided the attached progress report in relation to the 

scheme, and the Head of Sport and Active Lifestyle and colleagues, including 
representatives from public health and Leeds Metropolitan University, will attend the 
Board. The Executive Members for Leisure and Skills and Health and Wellbeing have 
also been invited to attend the Board and respond to members’ questions and 
comments.  

 

 Report author:  Kate Arscott 

Tel:  247 4189 

Agenda Item 8

Page 35



 

5. Following today’s discussion the board will need to consider whether any further 
ongoing scrutiny monitoring and evaluation is required or whether to produce a final 
inquiry report at this stage of the scheme. 

 
Recommendation 
 
6.     The board is requested to consider the issues raised by this session of the inquiry 

and to decide whether any further scrutiny monitoring and evaluation is required. 
 
Background documents1 

None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 36



Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture)  
 

The role of the Leeds Let’s Get Active Scheme in promoting public 
health 

 
Terms of reference 

 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 At the beginning of the 2012/13 year, members of the Sustainable 
Economy and Culture Scrutiny Board decided that they wished to carry 
out an inquiry into the role of leisure and culture in promoting public 
health. This fits with the Vision for Leeds 2011 to 2030 ambition that by 
2030, all Leeds’ communities will be successful, including an aspiration 
that Leeds will be a city where healthy life choices are easier to make 
and local cultural and sporting activities are available to all. 

 
1.2 A working group meeting was held on 30 August 2012 with 

representation from City Development directorate, Children’s Services 
and Public Health to scope the proposed inquiry. Input was also 
received on behalf of the Health, Wellbeing and Adult Social care and 
the Children and Families Scrutiny Boards, given the cross-cutting 
nature of the chosen topic.  

 
1.3 The working group had a wide ranging debate about the potential 

scope of their work and how to define the remit of the inquiry so as to 
be a manageable piece of work likely to produce useful outcomes. We 
concluded that the inquiry should focus on addressing health 
inequalities. We were particularly interested in considering the 
accessibility of provision. 

 
1.4 Since the original decision by the Board to undertake this inquiry, the 

council was given the opportunity to bid for funding from Sport England 
from the ‘Get Healthy, Get into Sport’ fund. The fund was designed to 
support projects that can demonstrate health gains through sport and 
physical activity and, vitally, provide a robust evidence base. The 
Scrutiny Board was briefed on this bid at its meeting on 20 December 
2012.  The bid was successful and the programme will be  implemented 
as the Leeds Let’s Get Active (LLGA) scheme. 

 
1.5 Leeds Let’s Get Active seeks to explore methods to remove barriers 

that exist for the least active people in Leeds in relation to participating 
in sport and physical activity. It hopes to initiate a change in culture 
whereby inactive people take small steps to being active, feeling 
encouraged to take part in sport and physical activity in an environment 
where they feel welcome and comfortable. The ultimate aim is to help 
reduce the significant health inequalities that exist in the city. The 
project will test the barriers to participation (getting the inactive active) 
and what methods most effect behaviour change. The bid is based on 

Page 37



3 key strands: a core sport/fitness activity offer in leisure centres; a 
community multi-sport offer; and a behaviour change intervention within 
the Bodyline Access Scheme. 
 

1.6 As a result of these developments, it was agreed that it would be 
appropriate to revise the focus of the scrutiny inquiry to enable the 
Board to play a more active role in contributing to the development of 
the proposed scheme and its subsequent monitoring.  
 

1.7 It was agreed that the first session of the inquiry should follow the 
format set out in the original terms of reference, but that the remainder 
of the inquiry would be deferred until the 2013/14 municipal year and 
the planned activities revised to reflect the new focus of the inquiry. 
Accordingly an initial inquiry session was held on 9 April 2013, which 
provided an overview of how sport, recreation and culture can 
contribute to health outcomes and an outline of what currently happens 
in Leeds. 

 
2.0 Scope of the inquiry 
 
2.1 The purpose of the inquiry is to make an assessment of and, where 

appropriate, make recommendations on; 

• The development and implementation of the Leeds Let’s Get Active 
Scheme. 

2.2 It is hoped that the Board’s work will contribute to the evaluation report 
on the scheme that has been requested by the Executive Board. 

 
3.0 Comments of the relevant director and executive member 
 
3.1 Scrutiny Board procedure rules require that the Board consults with the 

relevant Executive Member(s) and Director(s) on the terms of reference 
for its inquiries. Any views will be communicated to the Board. 

 
4.0 Timetable for the inquiry 
 
4.1 The inquiry will take place over the course of the 2013/14 municipal 

year.  
 
4.2 The inquiry will conclude with the publication of a formal report setting 

out the board’s conclusions and recommendations.  
 
5.0 Submission of evidence 
 
5.1 Scrutiny Board meeting – 16 July 2013  

 
This session will provide the Scrutiny Board with an opportunity to 
comment on the development and marketing of the Leeds Let’s Get 
Active scheme prior to implementation in the autumn. 
 

Page 38



Scrutiny Board meeting – 18 March 2014 
 
This session will review the progress of the scheme over its first few 
months of operation and any proposed developments 
 
The board will then consider whether any further ongoing scrutiny 
monitoring and evaluation is required or whether to produce a final 
inquiry report at this stage of the scheme. 

 
5.3 Witnesses 
 

The inquiry will be supported by officers from City Development and 
from Public Health. Other witnesses will be invited as appropriate, 
including the relevant Executive members and scheme partners, 
including health service commissioners, research and delivery 
partners.  

 
6.0 Equality, Diversity and Cohesion and Integration Issues 
 
6.1 Where appropriate, all terms of reference for work undertaken by the 

Scrutiny Boards will include 
To review how and to what effect consideration has been given to the 
impact of a service or policy on all equality areas, as set out in the 
council’s Equality and Diversity scheme, and on the council’s Cohesion 
and Integration Priorities and Delivery Plan. 

 
6.2 The objectives of this inquiry particularly reflect the following theme 

from the council’s Equality and Diversity scheme: 
Service Delivery – Leeds City Council provides fair access to services 
which meet the needs of our diverse communities and individuals.  

 
7.0 Monitoring Arrangements 
 
7.1 Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of 

the final inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the 
agreed recommendations will be monitored.   

 
7.2 The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed 

arrangements for monitoring the implementation of recommendations. 
 
 
8.0 Measures of success 
 
8.1 It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry 

has been successful in making a difference to local people. Some 
measures of success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry 
and can be included in these terms of reference. Other measures of 
success may become apparent as the inquiry progresses and 
discussions take place. 

 
8.2 The Board will look to publish practical recommendations. 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 
 
16 July 2013 
 
Leeds Let’s Get Active Scheme 
 
Comments to Executive Board 

 
The Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) considered the Leeds Let’s Get 
Active Scheme proposals at its meeting on 16 July 2013. The Scrutiny Board makes the 
following comments and proposals for consideration in finalising the scheme to be 
presented to the Executive Board on 4 September for approval. 
 
General 
 
Members of the Board strongly welcome the scheme and its aims and objectives. We 
are pleased that the council has been successful in obtaining the funding for the pilot 
from Sport England and public health, and we are keen to play our part in seeing the 
project succeed. 

 
Involvement of the Scrutiny Board 
 
The Scrutiny Board has made these comments on the scheme proposals at this point in 
order to influence the final scheme that is presented to the Executive Board for approval 
and the launch of the programme. The Board will continue to monitor the 
implementation and progress of the scheme as part of its ongoing inquiry on the role of 
the Leeds Let’s Get Active scheme in promoting public health. 
 
Specific issues 
 
Marketing  
The Board stressed the importance of targeting the marketing of the scheme to ensure 
those that it is aimed at and who can derive the most benefit from it know about it and 
are supported to take part. The role of local community and faith groups, as well as 
health professionals and other local workers such as youth service staff in being aware 
of the scheme and encouraging people to take part will also be important. 
 
We recommend that officers tap into the local knowledge of ward councillors in 
developing the community offer. 
 
We also recommend that schools be approached as a good way of contacting 
parents in key target locations, particularly through letters home. 

 
Transport 
We felt that transport was an important issue, and could potentially be a barrier to 
participation if people could not afford to travel to a location offering free sessions. On 
the other hand there may be opportunities to encourage walking or cycling to access 
these opportunities in some cases.  
 
Whilst we were reminded that, as a pilot, the scheme is limited in what it can 
deliver, we recommend that the transport issue needs to be kept under review as 

Page 41



the project progresses, and adjustments made if it proves to be a significant 
barrier. 
 
Community offer 
We discussed the geographic spread of the offer and remain concerned that some key 
target communities in terms of health deprivation will not have easy access to the 
scheme. This includes people living in pockets of deprivation within the more affluent 
parts of the city. We were given details of the proposed locations for the community 
offer, and the rationale for the selection of locations. We were also told that it is hoped 
to complement this with other provision that it is not formally part of the Leeds Let’s Get 
Active scheme.  
 
We really welcome the ambition to use other pots of funding to complement the 
scheme. Nevertheless we were disappointed by the low targets for the community 
offer aspect of the scheme itself, and would strongly recommend that officers 
explore all available options within the requirements of the grant funding to 
increase this offer as the scheme develops. 
 
We also specifically discussed the facilities at the NHS Quarry Hill site, and 
agreed that the Chair of the Scrutiny Board would write to ask if the NHS would 
consider including these facilities in the free offer, given the obvious benefits to 
the NHS of getting inactive people to be active and the lack of council facilities in 
the local area. 
 
Targeting of specific communities 
We noted that most, if not all, of the targeting within the scheme is currently on a 
geographic basis.  
 
We recommend that consideration be given to the needs of other non-geographic 
communities that are identified as suffering from health deprivation, for example 
the gypsy and traveller community where life expectancy is among the lowest in 
the city.  
 
We also recommend that some single sex provision is included in the offer, or 
provided as an additional feature, to meet cultural and faith needs. 
 
General comments 
We are pleased to note that there is interest from Clinical Commissioning Groups in the 
idea of exercise on prescription. The evaluation of the Bodyline Access Scheme will 
hopefully encourage them to fund more of this type of activity. 
 
We stressed the importance of sustainability in terms of people continuing to have 
access to provision and to participate in activity. We will be very interested to follow the 
research aspect of the project in tracking people’s ongoing levels of participation. 
 
We noted the importance of gathering qualitative as well as quantitative data in order to 
understand the motivations and barriers for people taking part in activity, and that 
research is a key element of the scheme’s objectives. We discussed the use of 
accelerometers as an accurate measure of activity undertaken, but acknowledged the 
cost implications of such an approach. 

   

Page 42



 

 

Report of Head of Sport and Active Lifestyles 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 

Date: 18 March 2014 

Subject: Leeds Let’s Get Active 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Members will recall the Leeds let’s get Active project was reported to this Scrutiny 
Board on July 16th 2013. The project officially commenced in September 2013 and 
followed a sustained period of development prior to “go live”. It is still very early days to 
draw firm conclusions, however, there are positive signs with a larger than expected 
number of initial sign ups being achieved. The project requires a degree of academic 
rigour in order to test some of the processes and impact and as such Leeds 
Metropolitan University is now actively engaged in the project. This report outlines 
progress to date and specifically responds to questions/requests that this Board agreed 
to following their meeting in July 2013. 

Recommendations 

2. That Board members note the report and provide feedback on progress to date. 

 

 

Report author:   

Mark Allman/Rachel Brighton 

Tel:  2478323 

Page 43



 

 

1. Purpose of this report   

1.1. The report aims to update the Board on the development, implementation and 
progress of LLGA to date. The report seeks to provide the Board with additional 
information following comments made at Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and 
Culture) on 16 July 2013 

2. Background information  

2.1. The Sport and Active Lifestyle (S&AL) services offers a valuable contribution to the 
achievement of health and wellbeing outcomes across the city of Leeds and it is 
working to secure Leeds’ position as the ‘most active big city in the UK’.  

2.2. The latest national survey (Active People 7) looking at adult participation in sport and 
active recreation across the country has seen Leeds top the list of England's core 
cities. Leeds is also the seventh most active local authority area in England out of 326. 
The survey also shows 31.2 per cent of people in Leeds now take part in sport or 
active recreation three times a week or more. The figures represent a rise of more 
than 10 per cent from 2005-6, when 20.6 per cent of residents were taking part. 
Despite Leeds topping the core cities table, the survey also found that 42.5 per cent of 
the population said they had done no sport or active recreation during the previous 28 
days. Sixty per cent of people in Leeds also said they did not take part in any type of 
30 minute sport session in a given week 

2.3. Scrutiny Board will recall from the first session in July 2013 that Leeds City Council 
was successful in applying for £500k of Sport England funding from their “Get healthy 
get into sport” grant programme.  The “Leeds Let’s Get Active” project is one of 14 
national pilots looking at different ways of increasing the activity levels of those who 
are currently inactive. Sport England has joint funded LLGA with the City Council, as 
they estimate the cost of physical inactivity to the city at least £10.4m every year. 

2.4. The Sport England £500k was matched by Public Health who also committed funding 
of £60k, continued from the previous Bodyline Access Scheme project, making total 
funding for this pilot project £1,060k. This project also contributes towards the 
Council’s Olympic legacy programme “Inspire a Generation” and represents a 
significant step forward in trying to reach those people who could most benefit from 
being active. 

2.5. Scrutiny Board will be aware of the significant health and life expectancy inequalities 
which exist within Leeds. This pilot project will contribute towards reducing these 
inequalities by increasing participation in physical activity, targeted at those who are 
presently inactive and doing less than 1 x 30 minutes of physical activity per week, and 
whilst providing a universal free offer, the offer is greatest in those areas with the 
highest need. The project sees an offer that includes; free, universal access to all City 
Council Leisure Centres (which includes gym, swim and exercise class provision); and 
free physical activity opportunities in local parks and community settings. LLGA has 
been running since September 2013 and is make progress against its Sport England 
Targets. 

Page 44



 

 

2.6. The LLGA offer has been devised based around parameters as set out in targets by 
Sport England which have been based on the original funding agreement. Despite 
providing a universal offer, the targets  focus on reaching and supporting inactive 
people.  It is important therefore to note that both promotion and marketing strategies 
and the LLGA offer itself have been targeted and selective in the methods.  

2.7. Leisure Centre Offer  

2.7.1. The offer in every leisure centre (17 in total) is  one free hour every day (off peak) 
with an additional hour per day for 4 leisure centres that serve the most deprived areas 
of the city: John Charles Centre for Sport, Armley, Fearnville and Middleton leisure 
centres.  

2.7.2. The timeslots that have been allocated to the leisure centre free offer are mainly 
during the daytime and are all off-peak sessions. These sessions have been carefully 
chosen as they have both the capacity to incorporate new users as well as being most 
appealing to the target market.  

2.8. Community Offer  

2.8.1. The community offer is designed to provide an alternative route into physical activity 
in a non-leisure centre setting. A total of 102, 10 week blocks of low intensity activity 
suitable for inactive people will be delivered over the 18 months of the pilot project and 
will include: Active Family multi-sport sessions, Social Walks, Beginners Running 
Groups and fitness classes.   

2.8.2. The activities are delivered in community parks, however during the winter months 
some sessions are being brought into indoor community venues. Locations identified 
for delivering the community activities are within an LSOA within the 20% most 
deprived communities (based on Indices of Health deprivation). Areas classed as 
‘pockets of deprivation’ can also be selected if they fall within the 20 – 30% most 
deprived for health deprivation. 

2.9. Bodyline Access scheme 

2.9.1. This scheme aims to build on the Bodyline signposting scheme already in place for 
healthcare professionals, when a patient can receive a Bodyline membership card for 
3 months for £5. LLGA aims to test various levels of intervention received throughout 
the referral process. 

2.10. LLGA Targets 

2.10.1. LLGA has been live since 30 September 2013 and is due to run until March 2015. 
As part of the grant condition the project formally reports to Sport England on a 6 
monthly basis and seeks to achieve the following targets; 

a) To increase the activity levels and participation in sport of those inactive in Leeds. 
especially in areas of highest health inequalities 

b) To establish better links with health partners 
c) To better understand the barriers for healthcare professionals in discussing physical 

activity and how to address them 

Page 45



 

 

d) Development of a universal offer incorporating free gym/swim across a number of 
leisure centres in areas of highest deprivation and health inequalities 

e) 270,000 new visits 
f) 16,500 new card members 
g) 1350 previously inactive new participants completing 1x30 minutes physical activity 

per week 
h) Free multi-sport community offer focussing on family participation – 102 10/12 week 

programmes (840 people) 
i) An increase in the numbers of those accessing the Bodyline Scheme achieving 

1x30 physical activity per week 

2.11. Progress to date 

2.12. LLGA has now been live since 30 September 2013 and as of 13 February 2014, 
has over 16,448 registered members - 100% of the target set by Sport England. Pre 
and post LLGA physical activity analysis is being completed by Leeds Metropolitan 
University. Some interesting early information is coming through tells us;  

a) Total registrations are over 16,000 
b) LLGA registered members were predominantly female (60.5%)  
c) 50% of LLGA registered members were aged <35 years. Areas of deprivation were 

well represented in the cohort. Weekly figures have demonstrated a range between 
29% and 43% of LLGA members ranked as living in areas classed as top 20% most 
deprived. 

d) 6,676 LLGA registered members have attended an LLGA session 
e) Since 30th September 2014 LLGA have seen over 28,000 visits to leisure centres 
f) Initial attendance data from Block 2 of the community programme (20th Jan – 

March 2014) is showing positive upward trends in relation to numbers registering 
and attending the available community activities. Already 48 participants have 
registered and total visits are at 124. 

g) The Bodyline access scheme has received 453 referrals from a variety of health 
professionals since Monday 30 September 2014 with further analysis considering 
conversion of inactive to active based on the level of intervention that a referral 
receives.  

2.13. LLGA was also challenged with increasing sport and activity among the most 
inactive groups across Leeds. At this point in time, follow-up data collection is still in its 
infancy however early indications are that the project is having success in converting 
those previously inactive to doing some sustained activity. 

2.14. Seven hundred and forty five previously inactive members had attended at least 
one LLGA session.  A further 177 inactive members had attended LLGA sessions 
weekly for at least four weeks. 

2.15. As expected there is a proportion of LLGA members who have not attended an 
LLGA session. This is not unexpected. The challenge for the project is, having now got 
contact details, is to identify and break down barriers to making a first visit. Methods 
include; 

a) Production of a video for first-time users to visualise the unknown environment 
b) Production of a community brochure detailing member stories. 

Page 46



 

 

c) Further training for leisure centre staff to offer a supportive environment to new 
users. 

d) Working with partners to consider further barriers. 

2.16. Remembering that to take part in the project the participants need to sign up and 
receive an LLGA card in order to capture their details and evidence participation. At 
this early stage it is not sensible to draw any firm conclusions, however so far progress 
has been encouraging with the number of people signing up to the scheme being 
ahead of target. The challenge for the project is to convert the “sign ups” into actual 
visits and sustained participation.  

3. Main issues 

3.1. Following a presentation to the Board on 16 July 2013, members made the following 
comments 

3.2. “We recommend that officers tap into the local knowledge of ward councillors in 
developing the community offer”. 

3.2.1. Sport and Active Lifestyle Officers have attended meetings such as Neighbourhood 
Improvement Boards and Ward Briefings in areas where the community offer has been 
planned to take place. Officers have also engaged with the area support teams to 
understand the best ways of contacting and working with elected members. Officers 
wanted to better understand local issues, barriers and needs. These meetings have 
also included discussions about any community groups that are available to tap into 
and venues that are suitable and accessible for the target population. 

3.3. “We also recommend that schools be approached as a good way of contacting 
parents in key target locations, particularly through letters home.” 

3.3.1. LLGA is continuing to target the most inactive people and have therefore engaged 
with specific schools across the City. To coordinate our approach, we have been 
working with the schools currently engaged with the change4life demonstration site 
work. Currently there are four multiagency Change4life partnerships facilitated by 
Public Health which are engaging around 20 primary schools. The areas were 
determined as they had high levels of childhood obesity, high levels of deprivation and 
had an infrastructure deemed positive in supporting such work. They were also 
selected as they had differing communities in terms of things like green space and 
ethnicity. Ways of engaging parents have been determined by staff specifically in each 
site based on insight of the communities and their preferred methods of 
communication. This has included attendance and sign up at parent’s evenings by 
leisure centre staff and awareness raising to staff who regularly engage with parents’ 
groups.  

3.3.2. LLGA continues to be presented to a number of teams and partnership groups 
which include the Active Sport Officers (service representatives whose work 
specifically focusses on children and young people), Health and Wellbeing 
Partnerships (which are represented by cluster managers and school reps ) and at the 
Sport Leeds Board which includes representatives from children’s services. 

Page 47



 

 

3.3.3. LLGA are making links with the Healthy Schools team and will work to further 
identify schools to target which may include secondary schools. We have also 
promoted through the Active Schools Partnership and Breeze. 

3.4. “Whilst we are reminded that, as a pilot, the scheme is limited in what it can 
deliver, we recommend that the transport issue needs to be kept under review 
as the project progresses and adjustments made if it proves to be a significant 
barrier.” 

3.4.1. The community offer aims to take physical activity opportunities to the local 
community to support those who may be unable to or do not wish to access leisure 
facilities. 

3.4.2. LLGA partners who work directly with communities are key in understanding and 
feeding back barriers to accessing LLGA sessions. Transport has been identified as a 
barrier for some families through the Richmond Hill Change4life demonstration site. 
The partnership have worked to break down this barrier and have both provided local 
information on public transport access to the LLGA sessions and will be looking at 
providing transport for families during the summer to access these sessions.  

3.4.3. LLGA provides a product for which partners may utilise and support in achieving 
their own targets. In the past some Public Health, Health and Wellbeing contracts have 
required organisations to support their service users in accessing physical activity 
within LCC leisure centres which may have incurred cost to either the individual or the 
organisations. LLGA removes this cost, potentially allowing organisations or 
individuals to spend money on transport and try to remove further barriers. 

3.5. “We really welcome the ambition to use other pots of funding to complement the 
scheme. Nevertheless we were disappointed by the low targets for the 
community offer aspect of the scheme itself, and would strongly recommend 
that officers explore all available options within the requirements of the grant 
funding to increase this offer as the scheme develops.” 

3.5.1. The LLGA community offer is limited by the scope of the original funding bid 
approved by Sport England which focuses mainly on the leisure centre offer. The 
criteria for the community offer has been reviewed and enhanced to ensure that 
pockets of deprivation within the city will be included within the locations selected for 
future blocks of activity. The number of activities to be delivered in Block 3 has 
increased slightly from the original proposal to take advantage of the spring / summer 
weather. If the current programme of activities is deemed successful then additional 
funding could be diverted from other areas of the LLGA budget to enhance the delivery 
in future Blocks of the community offer. 

3.5.2. LLGA is providing the team with learning opportunities on how to best deliver the 
community offer should further funding become available in the future. The community 
offer could be expanded in the future should the research findings provide robust 
evidence of positive impact. 

3.6. “We also specifically discussed the facilities at the NHS Quarry Hill site, and 
agreed that the Chair of the Scrutiny Board would write to ask if the NHS would 
consider including these facilities in the free offer, given the obvious benefits to 

Page 48



 

 

the NHS of getting inactive people to be active and the lack of council facilities 
in the local area.” 

3.6.1. LLGA met Quarry Hill (QH) Leisure Facility manager 9 September 2013 to discuss 
options of including the site in the offer (impact on income and loss of income etc). The 
manager was keen to show support for improving the health and wellbeing of local 
communities. Due to limitations of what the facility could offer, based on current 
provision and stipulations on access, as well as processes that would be needed to 
monitor LLGA member participation, it is not feasible to incorporate QH as part of the 
offer. QH are however willing to offer subsidised lower priced options for those 
deemed in greatest need of low cost physical activity opportunities.  

3.6.2. Further work needs to be completed to support QH in making an offer appropriate 
to the most vulnerable communities. The Active Lifestyle Officer covering this area will 
pick this up and ensure an ongoing relationship is maintained to support communities 
most in need. 

3.7. “We recommend that consideration be given to the needs of other non-
geographic communities that are identified as suffering from health deprivation, 
for example the gypsy and traveller community where life expectancy is among 
the lowest in the city. “ 

3.7.1. It is important that LLGA taps into the knowledge and contact/relationships that 
partner organisations and community groups already have.  

3.7.2. In relation to migrant communities – the team have been in contact with (through a 
variety of methods) and promoted the scheme through; The Red Cross, PAFRAS, 
RETAS, City of Sanctuary, LASSN, The Refugee Forum, Touchstone, GRTAS and the 
Leeds Refugee Forum. Methods of support have included the provision of marketing 
materials, attendance at team meetings and provision of briefings for staff to then use 
to promote with their service users. 

3.7.3. Our significant engagement plan demonstrates the amount of work taking place to 
support stakeholders in promoting the project with their users. This has included 
working with those who support; women, those with disabilities or mental health 
problems; BME populations etc. 

3.8. “We also recommend that some single sex provision is included in the offer, or 
provided as an additional feature, to meet cultural and faith needs.” 

3.8.1. All LLGA sessions have been carefully chosen as they have the capacity to 
incorporate new users with support from qualified staff, however, the scheme is 
continuously being developed so times and sessions may change throughout the 
duration of the scheme. To ensure that lots of people can benefit from the scheme, we 
have provided the same offer at weekends – this is so that those people with weekday 
commitments can still take advantage and enjoy the benefits of getting active for free. 
Following comments from scrutiny related to single sex provision, the LLGA team have 
approached Sport England for advice; given this was not a feature of the original bid 
(i.e. a universal offer). Future sessions may be able to be changed to suit the needs of 
the communities however it is important to note again that we are unable to deviate 
too much from the original Sport England approved bid of a targeted universal offer. 

Page 49



 

 

3.8.2. The current offer is allowing us to learn from members about any particular barriers 
and is also allowing us to understand the costs associated with particular sessions in 
terms of income loss. Once the programme has been running for over six months, we 
will be reviewing the offer and working with community groups to better understand 
their barriers. This allows us to get a clear picture of attendance patterns and 
participation rates of the most inactive populations. Programmes can then be 
discussed in terms of income loss to support those communities in getting and 
remaining active. Other single sex sessions are available outside the LLGA project.  

4. Corporate Considerations 

4.1. Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1. The project continues to engage a wide variety of stakeholders as part of the project 
delivery. Importantly the project team consider community groups already working 
with key target groups as being essential in ensuring that the project reaches those 
people who are inactive and based in the highest areas of deprivation as they will 
have some of the best communication channels. A series of workshops and events 
have been delivered as part of this holistic approach. In addition to this the project is 
also engaging directly with, for example, Sport Leeds, West Yorkshire Sport, public 
health, Children’s services, Adult social care, Resources (revenues and benefits).  

4.1.2. In addition the Sport and Active Lifestyles service has also conducted two 
communication audits with Leeds Metropolitan University, with projects very similar 
to Leeds Let’s Get Active. The audits included Leeds Lets Change and Women into 
Sport and looked to identify the types of messages, images and channels the 
service should use to communicate and market to these groups. The findings from 
these audits have been incorporated into the Leeds Let’s Get Active programme 

 

4.2. Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1. These proposals have previously been screened for issues on Equality, Diversity, 
Cohesion and Integration as part of the Executive Board report on the 24 April 
2013.  In general, such considerations are integral to this whole report as one of the 
major aims of the proposals is to narrow health inequality, a key council objective.   
The screening noted:  

a)  The pilot project is designed to provide more assistance to get active in more 
deprived communities.   

b) The free swim and gym offer will be doubled at Armley, Fearnville and the John 
Charles Centre for Sport – all measured as having the most deprived catchment 
areas among the council’s leisure centres. 

c) The community offer and the pathways to the Bodyline offer will be focused on 
areas and individuals where the health need is highest. 

d) The free offer will be available to the whole population and across the whole 
council leisure centre portfolio. 

e) Consider whether some free sessions should be female only. 
f) Consider how access to free sessions is extended to disabled groups as far as 

possible and practical. 

Page 50



 

 

 

4.2.2. As the programme has progressed, the actions above have all been implemented, 
contributing to the success of the project so far. 

4.2.3. As well as offers in the community, the proposed 18 month pilot offers free off-peak 
access to a swim or gym session for at least one hour every day in all leisure 
centres, two at those in areas of highest deprivation.  Those currently unable to 
afford swimming and gyms should benefit most, wherever in Leeds they live.  This 
may particularly benefit those on low incomes, minority ethnic groups and older 
people. 

4.3. Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1. The proposals aim to narrow health inequality, a major council objective, by 
encouraging more people to become more physically active, particularly those in 
areas of higher deprivation where activity levels and life expectancy are lower than 
the city’s average. 

4.3.2. The overarching vision for 2030 is that Leeds will be the best city in the UK. This 
means all Leeds’ communities will be successful, including those who are currently 
less active and suffer poorer healthy life expectancy. 

4.3.3. City Development has as a priority to “Develop the city’s cultural events and 
facilities including changes to sports centres and libraries”, and a key performance 
measure is “To maintain visits to sports centres”.  This report directly addresses 
these priorities. 

4.4. Resources and value for money  

4.4.1. Continuing this pilot on the same scale should be neutral to the council’s budget in 
2014/15. The budgeted cost for 2014/15 of £771k is due to be met with £321k from 
Sport England, £250k from Public Health, £40k from Public Health and £160k in-
kind officer time funded by the Council in its base 2014/15 revenue budget.  

4.4.2. In terms of value for money, the impact on activity, particularly on the targeted less 
affluent areas of the city should have long-term benefits in lower health and social 
care expenditure on a range of physical and mental conditions linked to inactivity.  
The project is intended to improve our understanding of the level of social and long-
term economic return from investing in promoting healthy activity in this way. 

4.5. Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1. The provision of sport services by councils and their pricing or subsidy is not subject 
to statute so the main legal criteria are that these proposals are reasonable. 

4.6. Risk Management 

4.6.1. The main financial risk is that the free offer diverts more paying customers than 
anticipated, widening the loss of income and reducing the space in pools for 
previously inactive newcomers.  This would increase the cost and reduce the effect 
of the free swim part of the offer and it might have to be curtailed early to avoid loss 

Page 51



 

 

to the council.  To manage the risk the income loss and numbers of new 
participants will be monitored weekly for any disproportionate loss of income. 

4.6.2. The main policy risk is that this pilot produces an expectation of free access to high 
cost facilities and activities at a public subsidy that cannot be sustained.  To mitigate 
this risk, efforts will be made to offer additional paid sessions to new customers and 
to build up evidence of the benefits of the offer, so as to encourage future funding or 
sponsorship. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1. Modest investment in LLGA has allowed the development and testing of systems 
and methods to attract inactive people in Leeds to consider increasing their levels of 
physical activity. LLGA has a functioning online registration process and automated 
communication to continue to provide and test ways of creating a supportive 
environment for the target audience. Systems are also in place to capture large data 
sets which include baseline and follow up data using self-reported 7 day recall. 
There are currently 17 sites actively involved and a variety of coaches delivering 
LLGA in the community. LLGA has attracted our target market of inactive people 
and is supporting with increasing these levels of activity by breaking down the 
barrier of cost and creating a supportive environment. Insight and market 
segmentation has created a strong brand and is supported by a large number of 
partners and stakeholders across the City. LLGA is progressing well against its 
targets. 

5.2. LLGA is keen to maximise the opportunities and funding available to continue to 
support inactive people in becoming active. LLGA is presenting progress to date to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board (Wednesday 12 March 2014). 

6. Recommendations 

6.1. That Board members note the report and provide feedback on progress to date. 

7. Background documents1 

None 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 52



 

 

Report of Director of City Development  

Report to Sustainable Economy and Culture Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th March 2014 

Subject: 2013/14 Quarter 3 Performance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for the council 
and city relevant to the Sustainable Economy and Culture Scrutiny Board, in line with the 
process agreed at the Board’s meeting on 17 December 2013.   

Recommendations 

2. Members are recommended to 

• Note the Quarter 3 performance information and to consider if they wish to undertake 
further scrutiny work to support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

• Indicate whether the volume of performance information appended to this report is at the 
right level, or whether exception reporting would be more appropriate. 

 
Report author:  Fiona McAnespie   

Tel:  74767 

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



 

 

1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents a summary of the quarter three performance data for 2013-14, and 
provides an update on progress in delivering the relevant priorities in the City Priority Plan 
2011-15 and the Best Council Plan 2013 - 17.   

2. Background information 

2.1 Members will be aware that the delivery of City Priority Plan is shared with partners across 
the city while the Best Council Plan sets out the Council’s key objectives and priorities. This 
report provides an overview of the performance relating to both plans enabling the Scrutiny 
Board to consider and challenge the council’s performance as well as seeking to influence 
partners’ contributions through existing partnership arrangements. 

2.2 This report has 2 appendices: 

•••• Appendix 1 –  ‘Big Ideas’ Progress Update (relating to the City Priority Plan) 

•••• Appendix  2 –  Performance Summary (relating to the Best Council Plan) 
 

2.3 Members will also be aware that the current Best Council Plan is under review, and from 
Quarter 1 2014 – 15 progress updates are likely to reflect an amended set of priorities and 
measures. 

3. Main issues 

Quarter 3 Performance Summary 

City Priority Plan 

3.1 The attached progress update (Appendix 1) outlines progress against the ‘Big Ideas’ 
identified by the Sustainable Economy and Culture Board in line with the City Priority Plan.  
These derive from the three priorities aligned to the Board and their associated obsessions, 
shown in brackets: 

 

• Drive the sustainable growth of the Leeds economy to support the creation of new 
jobs and skills (maximising job growth) 

• Promote low carbon businesses, buildings, energy generation and connectivity across 
the City (becoming a low carbon city) 

• Raise the profile of Leeds and its cultural opportunities (enjoying an active and 
creative city) 

 
3.2  The update was discussed at the Sustainable Economy and Culture Board’s meeting on 

24th February.  Board members requested more detailed reports on progress for the six 
amber-rated ‘Big Ideas’, and these will be agenda items for future Sustainable Economy 
and Culture Board meetings throughout 2014.   
 

Best Council Plan 

3.4   Appendix 2 shows progress against the priorities relevant to the Sustainable Economy and 
Culture Scrutiny Board within the Best Council Plan. 

 
3.5  The Board’s attention is drawn to the two amber ratings relating to: 

• Leeds Let’s Get Active  

Page 54



 

 

• Cycle City Ambition Grant 
 
3.6  Leeds Let’s Get Active (LLGA) has been live since 30 September 2013 and is due to run 

until March 2015; the scheme aims to increase the activity levels and participation in sport 
of those who are inactive in Leeds, especially in areas of highest health inequalities.  The 
amber rating has been allocated because, while the sign-up of interested target members 
has been above expectations and the level of new activity is very positive, two strands of 
the scheme – the ‘community offer’ and the follow up of those who don’t get active – have 
still to achieve their full potential.  To improve these, the community offer has been re-
designed to take weather into account and the digital follow up of those who do not get 
active is being rolled out.  The project is well within budget and the impact on Sport income 
has been less than feared. 

3.7 A full update on LLGA is included on the Agenda for the Scrutiny Board’s meeting on 18 
March. 

3.8 The amber rating for Cycle City Ambition Grant (CCAG) has been allocated due to the 
complexity of the CCAG project, which comprises a number of strands e.g. arranging 
20mph schemes, working on towpaths.  The £29 million project funding was only allocated 
in August 2013, rather than April 2013 as originally anticipated. 

 
3.9 Procurement has commenced, but will involve timescales which cannot be shortened, 

despite the summer 2014 deadline for the overall project.  A concerted joint effort is being 
made both within the Highways and Transportation service, and with our strategic partner, 
Mouchel, in order to meet the deadlines. 

 

4. Corporate considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

This is an information report and as such does not need to be consulted on with the public.  
However all performance information is published on the council’s and Leeds Initiative 
websites and is available to the public.    

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This is an information, rather than a decision-making, report so demonstrating due regard is 
not necessary.  However, it should be noted that the Sustainable Economy and Culture 
Board’s remit has direct benefits to those living in the most deprived areas of the city, and 
those who fall within the protected characteristics. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city priorities in line 
with the council’s performance management framework.   

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

Page 55



 

 

4.5.1 All performance information is publicly available and is published on the council website.  
This report is an information update providing Scrutiny with a summary of performance for 
the strategic priorities within its remit and as such in not subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 There is a comprehensive risk management process in the Council to monitor and manage 
key risks.  This links closely with performance management. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for the 
council and city related to Sustainable Economy and Culture Scrutiny Board.  

6 Recommendations   

6.1 Members are recommended to: 

• Note the Quarter 3 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to support 
improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

• Indicate whether the volume of performance information appended to this          
report is at the right level, or whether exception reporting would be more appropriate. 

7.0 Background documents1  

7.1 City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 

7.2 Best Council Plan 2013 - 17 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 56



3 3 3 3 Obsessions

Maximising 
Job Growth

Becoming a 
Low Carbon 

City

Enjoying an 
Active and 
Creative City

Progress Update for Sustainable Economy and Culture Board – February 2014      Appendix 1

Test the potential for developing an international 

business conference and exhibition facility

Focus group met 4.10.13; 

update at Board 25.11.13

G

Increase the leverage of the city’s food and drink 

sector

Taken to the Board on

9.9.13

A

Create new business training hubs to develop the 

skills required for the 21st century 

Agenda item for the Board 

meeting 24.2.14

A

Develop a programme to help people of all ages 

improve their digital skills 

Agenda item for the Board 

meeting 24.2.14

A

Develop a new city-wide adult skills strategy, working 

with the city’s further and higher education providers 

Agenda item for the Board 

meeting 24.2.14

G

Aspire to achieve zero youth unemployment in Leeds A

South Bank – opportunities for regeneration, City 

Park and preparations for HS2

Agenda item for the Board

meeting 24.2.14

G

Drive a large campaign to influence human 

behaviour and culture change to meet the city’s low 

carbon targets 

University of Leeds to host 

a workshop to scope key 

issues/develop a plan

A

Position Leeds as the most active city in the UK Vision for Sport discussed 

by the Board on 9.9.13; 

update to the Board in ‘14

A

Create a lasting legacy from hosting the Tour De 

France Grand Depart 2014 

Agenda item for May 2014 G

Test the city’s appetite for competing against other 

UK cities for designation of European Capital of 

Culture 2023

Agenda item for the Board

meeting 24.2.14

G

P
age 57



P
age 58

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Objective Priority
Our Measures

(PI = Performance Indicator)
Target/ Milestone

Quarter 1 (Q1) Result

(*=cumulative)

Quarter 2 (Q2) Result

(*=cumulative)

Quarter 3 (Q3) Result

(*=cumulative)
Direction Of Travel

PI: Significant reduction in the running costs of the 

asset base

No target set

(£43.5m in 2012/13)
Reported annually

PI: Increase the number of buildings in good or 

excellent condition

>90% Buildings

(82% in 2012/13)
84% Buildings 84%* Buildings

85%* Buildings

PI: Reduce carbon footprint of our buildings

(cumulatively compared to 2012/13)

3% Reduction pa

(Target = 70,913t CO2 in 2013/14)

29.1% reduction

(11,685t CO2)

7.5%* increase

(29,565t* CO2)
Expected Mid-March

Asset Management Plan developed and approved

Ward Members engaged and involved throughout 

process

PI: Reduce the numbers of people Killed or Seriously 

Injured (KSI) on the city's roads

<=280 People

(300 in 2012/13)
70 People 127* People

208* People

PI: Maintain the percentage of roads assessed as in 

need of structural repair
5% Reported annually

PI: Reduce the percentage of highways' structures in 

need of essential repair
34.5% Reported annually

PI: Optimise the current amount of the business rates 

base level

(% growth)

% Growth to Equate to £5.28m Reported annually

PI: Number of new homes delivered and empty 

properties brought back into use.
TBC Reported annually

PI: Optimise amount of New Homes Bonus secured

(Reporting period: 01/10-30/09)

2000 Homes

(Band D equivalent)
1,997* Homes Reported annually

PI: Increased number of jobs in Leeds

(10/11 - 09/12)

TBC

(397,300 jobs

in 2010/11)

395,100 jobs

PI: Increased percentage of working age population 

that is economically active

>67.5%

(67.5% in 2012/13)
69.0% 68.8%

69.2%

PI: Maximise income from Capital receipts
£12m £4,467k £6,067k* £9,633k*

PI: 250 apprenticeship starts 250 Apprenticeship Starts 51 Starts 131* Starts

174* Starts

PI: 2700 residents supported into jobs 2700 Residents 747 Residents 1882* Residents 2628* Residents

PI: 6000 people with improved skills 6000 People 2007 People 6431* People 6431* People

Progressing key infrastructure projects 

including:

Arena

NGT

Victoria Gate/John Lewis

Leeds Station

Flood Alleviation

East Leeds Extension / Thorpe Park

Aire Valley (inc South Bank)

Kirkgate Market

West Yorkshire Transport Fund

All projects on track to agreed timetables with 

milestone met

Core Strategy 
Core Strategy submitted  April 2013; 

Examination Autumn 2013
Complete

Site Allocations

Site Allocations Issues and Options to 

Development Plan Panel April 2013 and 

Executive Board May 2013

Complete

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) CIL Examination Winter 2013

PI: 407 affordable houses provided 407 Houses 98 Houses 240* Houses 503* Houses

PI: 2200 new housing units delivered 2200 Units 518 Units 1134* Units
1791* Units

Establish an Elected Cultural Executive 

by October 2013

Produce delivery plans for major events 

in 2013/15 including Tour de France, 

Rugby League World Cup and British Art 

Show 8

Contribute to reduced health inequalities 

through Leeds Lets Get Active project

Development of a cycling legacy by 

March 2014

Submit application for Cycle City 

Ambition Grant by April 2013
N/A

City Growth Deal Develop a City Growth Deal proposal by March 2014 N/A

Successful bid for technical assistance funding

Establish Leeds City Region Green Deal partnership

Draft Best Council Plan 2013-17 Performance Summary: Quarter three 2013/14 - Appendix 2

Maximise employment opportunities for 

local residents 

Development and implementation of Asset 

Rationalisation Plan 

Quality highways assets, including 

carriageways and structures (e.g. tunnels 

and bridges)

Ensuring High Quality 

Public Services 

Ensuring High Quality Public Services

Promote sustainable and inclusive 

economic growth 

Attract large scale external investment in 

low-carbon technologies to Leeds

Promote sustainable and 

inclusive economic growth

All cultural organisations feel they have a voice and 

influence over cultural direction; and

Inactive people have become active

Enjoy an active and creative city where:

Deliver Local Development Framework

Develop a coherent approach to housing 

need

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 

Date: 18 March 2014 

Subject: Recommendation Tracking 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. Each Scrutiny Board receives regular reports on any recommendations from 
previous inquiries which have not yet been completed.  

 
2. This allows the board to monitor progress and identify completed recommendations; 

those progressing to plan; and those where there is either an obstacle or progress 
is not adequate. The board will then be able to take further action as appropriate. 

 
3. A standard set of criteria has been produced, to enable the board to assess 

progress. These are presented in the form of a flow chart at Appendix 1. The 
questions should help to decide whether a recommendation has been completed, 
and if not whether further action is required. 

 
4. Attached as Appendix 2 is a progress report on the final outstanding 

recommendation from the board’s inquiry report on young people’s engagement in 
cultural, sporting and recreational activities. 

 
5. Attached as Appendix 3 is a progress report on the 2 outstanding recommendations 

from the board’s 2012 inquiry report on maximising powers to promote, influence 
and create local employment and skills opportunities. Appendix 4 details the 
findings of the annual review undertaken to assess how well the new arrangements 
are working.  

 
6. For each recommendation, a progress update is provided in the table 

accompanying the report. To assist board members, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser 

 Report author:  Kate Arscott 

Tel:  247 4189 

Agenda Item 10

Page 61



 

has proposed a draft status for each recommendation. The board is asked to 
confirm whether these assessments are appropriate, and to change them where 
they are not.  

 
7. In deciding whether to undertake any further work, members will need to consider 

the balance of the board’s work programme. 
 
Next Steps 
 
8. Further recommendation tracking reports will be scheduled as required in the new 

municipal year, enabling the board to judge progress against outstanding 
recommendations. 

 
Recommendations 
 
9. Members are asked to: 
 

• Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring; 
 

• Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine 
the action the board wishes to take as a result. 

 
 

Background documents1 

None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 62



No Yes

1 - Stop 
monitoring

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

5 - Not achieved 
(progress made not 

acceptable. Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action and 

continue monitoring)

Has the recommendation been 

achieved?

3 - not achieved 
(obstacle). Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action.

Is progress 

acceptable?

4 - Not 
achieved 

(Progress 

made 

acceptable. 

Continue 

monitoring.)

6 - Not for review this 
session

Has the set 

timescale 

passed?

2 - Achieved 

Is there an 

obstacle?

Is this recommendation still relevant?

Recommendation tracking flowchart and classifications:

Questions to be Considered by Scrutiny Boards

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
Engagement of young people in cultural, sporting and recreational activities 

 
Report published April 2012              Last update October 2013 
 

 Recommendation Stage Complete 

3 That the Director of city Development and the Director of Children’s Services implement a system of 
accurate data collection and management which will identify the engagement and take up of Breeze 
programmes by young people and enable service provision to be targeted.  Progress to be reported back to 
the Scrutiny Board in February 2013. 

  

 March 2014 update 
 
Three different Breeze Card monitoring pilots were conducted in 2013 with learning taken from each so that the best process 
could be identified.  Two of the three processes trailed have been found to suit the different settings where data are collected. 
 
Breeze on Tour and Breeze events –  the new scanners trailed were a very safe and effective way of collecting data from 
such a large audience,  issues around data matching arose from the switch to the XN system, these snags in the new system 
effect all methods of data collection. The Breeze Team along with City Development BRM are looking at ways to resolve these 
issues and so enhance the quality of future data capture. 
 
The Inner South Wellbeing Pilot – this is continuing until the end of this financial year, and feedback and lessons learnt from 
this pilot will shape the development of the monitoring system on the Breeze Culture Network.  Early learning indicates that 
this is the most safe and cost effective method for external partners to collect and report on participants data.   
 
This method will be the one that is used to collect data from statutory and voluntary sector organisations accessing the Youth 
Activities Fund in future. Some development of the Breeze Culture Network is required to enable the system to be as user 
friendly as possible, this work is being scoped and will be implemented soon.   A programme of training is also to be rolled out 
to funders and those successful at securing funding.  
 
 

Director’s Response (Received July 2012) 
As part of the work on the cards outlined in Recommendation 2, the data collection the system offers is being rationalised and agreed 
between the two directorates. City Development is also developing economic and social impact information as part of its grant schemes.  
This will include a wide range of activity for young people and so is relevant to both directorates who are working together to develop 
robust measures for the Children’s Services Indicator ‘having fun growing up’ and the City Development Indicator ‘engaging more people in 
cultural activity’.  While progress could be reported in February, it is recommended to delay until April/May when a further report could be 
provided including data for activities for the whole of the 2012/13 financial year. 

4 
Not 

achieved 
(Progress 
made 

acceptable. 
Continue 

monitoring.) 

 

P
age 65



 April 2013 update 
A system is being trailed this summer in a range of venues. It will collect data that will enable elected members and event organisers to 
measure take up of their activity by young people.  It will show numbers, age range, gender and map where young people have come from 
to attend the event.  It will only use de personalised data so no individual can be identified.  The system will test a variety of collection 
devices in different type of venues from non-council run, indoor council venues and outdoor venues to identify which are the most robust 
and reliable technical approaches. 

 
To be tested and refined over summer 2013 
 
October 2013 update 
The ambition to collect data beyond Council delivered activities poses some data protection issues as well as financial considerations.  In 
order to identify the cheapest, most robust system that is both secure in terms of data and user friendly for organisations that are under 
resourced in staffing, we have piloted 3 approaches over the summer which are currently being reviewed. 
 
Breeze on Tour and Breeze events - Hand held swipes were used – through these we were able to collect card numbers and down load 
them on onto the system. The swipes were backed up by data collected on computers.  This system seems at first analysis to be both 
robust and safe in terms of data protection. We can confirm that 20,013 under 19’s attended the 6 Breeze on Tour events a 8 Mini Breeze 
events. 
 
The Inner South Wellbeing Pilot – Individual organisations that have been successful at securing Wellbeing funds were asked to upload 
attendance data onto a web based system via the Breeze Culture Network. This data has yet to be analysed.  
 
The Breeze Youth Activities Fund - Spread sheets have been circulated to all organisations who have been granted Activity Funding. The 
spread sheets will now be collated to give a picture of attendance at the activities funded.   

We will report back to Scrutiny both on the data collected and the success of the method. 

 

  

 

P
age 66



 
Maximising Powers to Promote, Influence and Create Local Employment and Skills Opportunities 

Report published May 2012                                         Last update July 2013 

 Recommendation  Stage Complete 

5 The Director of City Development works in collaboration with the Director of Resources to undertake annual 
consultation with Stakeholders to be reported back to the Scrutiny Board in July 2013. 

  

 March 2014 update 
The results of the annual consultation are presented in the attached report. 

 
Director’s response (received July 2012) 
The Directors of City Development and Resources will jointly review the implementation of the policy on an annual basis. The review process 
will include a review of the evidence base as well as seeking the views of key stakeholders such as the Planning and Developers Forum and 
a range of contractors and would be reported to the respective services and Scrutiny Board. 

 
February 2013 update 
The review process will include a review of the evidence base to include the number of contracts and planning agreements that have 
included obligations, the employment and skills outputs delivered as well as seeking the views of key stakeholders. The review of the 
evidence base would identify the number of contracts and planning agreements   

• within the scope of the policy framework 

• that included obligations   

• that included obligations that were delivered at 100% of target / between 75 and 99% of target/ between 50% and 75% of target 

• that included obligations that were not delivered or delivered at less than 50% of target 
The above information would be examined to ascertain whether there is any correlation between the type, nature and scale of the contracted 
activity / development.   
 
Stakeholder views will be sought on how the policy framework to secure employment, skills and supply chain benefits is being implemented. 
This would seek views through survey and discussions on the support and advice provided; compliance with the requirements including the 
provision of information for monitoring purposes; the benefits secured for their business including meeting corporate social responsibility 
objectives, up-skilling their workforce, public relations and publicity. It would seek information on any difficulties encountered and the 
changes or support required to overcome these.   
 
The review process will enable service managers to develop recommendations for changes to the policy framework and way in which it is 
applied. This periodic review would enable the policy to be amended to reflect changing economic circumstances including local and sectoral 
changes; changes in employment and skills policy and publicly funded provision; and that additional guidance and support is made available 
to officers, developers and contractors where appropriate. The outcomes of the review will be reported to the relevant services and Scrutiny 
Board.  
 

July 2103 update-The review process outlined in the February update will include consultation with key stakeholders that contributed to the 
development of systems and processes and that have direct experience of delivering within these. The work to undertake the review is 
currently being planned but is later than originally requested by Scrutiny Board to take account of a full 12 months of activity following the 
revised policy framework on procurement activity agreed by Executive Board in November 2012. The findings of the annual review will be 
reported to February 2014 meeting of Scrutiny Board. 

2 
(Achieved) 

üüüü  

P
age 67



 
Maximising Powers to Promote, Influence and Create Local Employment and Skills Opportunities 

Report published May 2012                                         Last update July 2013 
 

 Recommendation Stage Complete 

12 That the Director of Development and the Director of Resources collaborate to present a report to the 
Scrutiny Board in January 2013 on the delivery of opportunities in accordance with an agreed policy, an 
officer toolkit (with associated training) and robust operational monitoring systems 
 
The Directors of City Development and Resources undertake to produce a report by the agreed deadline 
detailing the number and type of employment and skills obligations applied and delivered, the use of the 
toolkit and guidance materials and monitoring systems. 

  

 March 2014 update 
The attached report provides details of the number and type of obligations delivered. 

 
Director’s response (received July 2012) 
The Directors of City Development and Resources undertake to produce a report by the agreed deadline detailing the number and type of 
employment and skills obligations applied and delivered, the use of the toolkit and guidance materials and monitoring systems. 
 
February 2013 update 
To date employment and skills obligations have been included in 15 S106 Planning Agreements, 6 have been progressed to develop an 
Employment and Skills plan detailing the delivery of opportunities. 300 people have been supported into jobs and 32 apprenticeships created 
to date. Further work is required to detail the outputs on the remaining sites as Employment and Skills Plans are developed by the developer 
and the service. 5 contracts have included obligations and delivered 110 jobs and 91 apprenticeships and a further 4 contract specifications 
have included employment and skills obligations and are currently being tendered.     
 
Given the lead time on development and contracting activity, it is not yet possible to report in detail on outcomes delivered.  
 

July 2013 update  The report on the annual review to be undertaken in November will be presented to the scheduled board in February 2014. 
This is later than originally planned due to the change in the policy framework required for procurement activity agreed by Executive Board in 
November 2012.  

2 
(Achieved) 

üüüü  

 
References to the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods have been deleted and replaced with the Director of City Development to reflect the revised 
delegations for Employment and Skills activity. 

P
age 68



 

 

Report of the Director of City Development and the Director of Resources   

Report to Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture)  

Date:  18 March 2014 

Subject: Delivering employment and training opportunities through the Council’s 
procurement and planning functions  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Scrutiny Board recommended actions arising from its inquiry into Maximising Powers 
to Promote, Influence and Create Local Employment and Skills Opportunities has 
assisted in strengthening the approach to securing employment, skills and supply chain 
opportunities for local people and businesses. This activity contributes to the Best 
Council Plan objectives to promote sustainable and inclusive economic growth by helping 
people into jobs and supporting business growth through access to supply chain 
opportunities and addressing workforce development needs.  

 
2. In a period of just over 12 months, 1,230 local residents have secured jobs and 57 young 

people have benefitted from the apprenticeships created or safeguarded. A review has 
been undertaken to report on outputs delivered to date and to assess how effectively this 
approach is working taking account of the revised ways of working and the views of 
stakeholders. The number of positive outcomes for local residents is expected to grow as 
the increasing number of contracts and developments in the pipeline commence 
including the Victoria Gate, Thorpe Park and White Rose developments that offer 
significant employment opportunities in both construction and with end occupiers. 

Recommendations 

Members of Scrutiny Board are asked to note the progress made to implement the 
recommendations of the inquiry into Maximising Powers to Promote, Influence and 
Create Local Employment and Skills Opportunities. 

 Report author: Alice Winter 

Tel:  3950440 

Page 69



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The report provides up-to-date information on the outputs delivered through 
employment and skills obligations applied through the Council’s procurement and 
planning processes. It also details the findings of the review undertaken to assess 
whether the framework is being applied and is effectively contributing to the 
achievement of Council objectives.     

1.2 This report has been prepared in response to the Scrutiny Board recommendations 
on Maximising Powers to Promote, Influence and Create Local Employment and 
Skills Opportunities, recommendations 5 and 12.   

2 Background information 

2.3 The Scrutiny Board established an inquiry into how the Council uses its 
procurement and planning functions as an enabler of locally driven, sustainable 
economic growth that benefits both local people and businesses. The inquiry 
recommendations were approved on 28 June 2012.  

2.2     Progress on implementing the recommendations has been reported periodically to 
Scrutiny Board with the last report submitted to the Board’s meeting on 16 July 
2013. The recommendations included provision for an annual review to detail the 
progress made and the opportunity to review the approach to ensure that it 
continues to contribute to the achievement of the Council’s policy objectives.  

 

3.0 Key Issues 
  
3.1 Outputs delivered to date 
 
3.1.1 Planning.  Within the period covered by the review (September 2012 to January 

2014) 40 planning consents were granted with employment and skills obligations 
during the period covered by the review. 25 applications met the trigger threshold 
for the inclusion of employment and skills obligations. These developments will 
provide a range of construction job roles and generate jobs with end users in the 
retail, hospitality, and customer service and security sector.   

 

3.1.2      Employment and Skills Plans detailing the obligations and how these are to be 
delivered has been put in place for 
14 developments. Each plan 
contains targets for local people into 
jobs, apprenticeships and supply 
chain opportunities. These have 
primarily been within the 
construction sector to date, with 
some opportunities with end users 
in the retail sector. 

 
3.1.3 Four developments have completed 

to date and the outputs are detailed 
in Appendix 1 Table 1. Employment 
and Skills Plans yet to be 
implemented forecast a further 
1,000 jobs. These do not include 

Trinity Leeds S106  
Construction  

• 55 Leeds residents into jobs 

• 19 Leeds residents into apprenticeships 

• 192 jobs safeguarded for Leeds 
residents 

• 9 apprenticeships safeguarded for 
Leeds residents 

• 29 Leeds businesses engaged in the 
supply chain 

 
Additional support provided to tenant 
businesses 

• 415 Leeds residents into jobs at 
Primark, Angelica, Craft house and 
OCS.  

Page 70



 

 

the Victoria Gate, Thorpe Park and White Rose Shopping Centre where the 
Employment and Skills Plans are still in development. The White Rose extension 
has the potential to support up to 50 construction jobs and up to 1,000 full and 
part-time jobs in retail and hospitality. Phase 1 of the Victoria Gate development 
includes the John Lewis store and will potentially create up to 700 construction 
jobs and 1,200 retail and hospitality jobs. The Thorpe Park development will 
potentially create up to 330 construction jobs and in the region of 10,700 other jobs 
over a 25 year period.    

 
3.1.4 Procurement.  54 contract 

specifications have met the threshold 
value of £100k and were subject to an 
option appraisal to determine whether 
the inclusion of employment and skills 
obligations in the contract were 
appropriate. A total of 27 specifications 
were considered not to be suitable for 
the inclusion of employment and skills 
obligations. Of these, 13 were 
considered unsuitable on grounds of 
value for money; 13 due to the nature of 
the contract being procured and one 
contract was tendered but did not 
proceed due to the quality of the 
submissions received.  

 
3.1.5 A total of 5 contracts have been 

delivered to date. These have 
supported 518 local residents to secure jobs and 99 apprentices. Appendix 1 Table 
2 details the outputs by ward. A further 8 contracts have been awarded including 
the Housing and Regeneration programme for Beeston and Holbeck and Little 
London and the waste recycling facility. The majority of the contracts are 
construction services but also include the provision of support to young people and 
adult social care services. The remaining 13 contract specifications are still at 
various stages of the procurement process.    

 
3.1.6 Appendix 1 Table 3 details the cumulative outputs delivered to date through 

employment and skills obligation by electoral ward. In total 2,308 individuals 
gained employment of which 1,233 were residents of Leeds with 417 (48%) of 
these individual resident in the most disadvantaged wards. 148 apprenticeship 
positions have been safeguarded or created through the obligations with 31 
safeguarded positions and 26 new positions secured by Leeds residents.  

 
3.1.7 In addition to the job outcomes, obligations have enabled 121 site visits (2,997 

young people), 19 research projects and 123 work experience opportunities. 27 
‘Meet the Buyer’ events were held and 161 Leeds based businesses have been 
engaged in the supply chain and a further 160 business have been engaged from 
across the Yorkshire and Humber region. 

 
3.2 The Review Process 
 
3.2.1  The Procurement, Planning and Employment and Skills services undertook to 

jointly review the implementation of the policy on an annual basis. This periodic 

First Direct Arena 
Contract obligations – construction phase 

• 80 Leeds residents into jobs 

• 9 Leeds residents into apprenticeships 

• 122 jobs safeguarded for Leeds 
residents 

• 24 apprenticeships safeguarded for 
Leeds residents 

• 144 weeks of work experience (16-18 
yrs. and 18 yrs. plus)  

• 82 Leeds businesses engaged in the 
supply chain 

 
Additional support provided to SMG 
Europe resulted in Leeds residents 
securing 210 of the 300 jobs available.  
 

Page 71



 

 

review will enable the policy to be amended where appropriate to reflect changing 
economic circumstances including local and sectoral changes; changes in 
employment and skills policy and publicly funded provision; and ensure that  
additional guidance and support is made available to officers, developers and 
contractors where required. 

3.2.2 The review process has included a review of the quantifiable inputs and outputs; 
the information systems and processes; and the view of key stakeholders.  

3.2.3 The review of the quantifiable inputs and outputs has sought to identify the number 
of contracts and planning agreements   

• within the scope of the policy framework 

• with relevant obligations   

• that included obligations that were delivered at 100% of target / between 75 
and 99% of target/ between 50% and 75% of target 

• that included obligations that were not delivered or delivered at less than 50% 
of target. 

The above information has been examined to ascertain whether there is any 
correlation between the level of outcomes achieved and the type, nature and scale 
of the contracted activity / development.   

    
3.2.4 Stakeholder views have been sought through surveys on how the policy framework 

to secure employment, skills and supply chain benefits is being implemented. This 
has sought views on the support and advice provided; compliance with the 
requirements including the provision of information for monitoring purposes; the 
benefits secured for their business including meeting corporate social responsibility 
objectives, up skilling their workforce, public relations and publicity. It has also 
sought information on any difficulties encountered and the changes or support 
required to overcome these.   

 
3.3 Review Outcomes 
 
3.3.1    Delivery against Targets. Four developments with S106 agreements were 

completed and delivered between 75% and 99% of the target outputs set. The 
majority of targets were achieved with the exception of the number of local people 
recruited into apprenticeships. This has reflected the uncertain economic climate 
with businesses concerned to safeguard existing apprentices rather than taking on 
additional employment liabilities before securing further contracts. However, there 
were areas where achievements were significantly above those projected 
including support for site visits, educational and community activities and 
increased work force skills development.    

 
3.3.2 Five contracts awarded by the Council that included employment and skills 

obligations have been delivered. One contractor delivered between 75% and 99% 
of the targets set and four delivered between 50% and 75% of the targets set.  

 
3.3.3 The key area of underperformance was the recruitment of new apprentices for the 

reasons outlined in 3.3.1 above. Where difficulties have been encountered in 
providing and or recruiting to apprenticeships a pragmatic approach has been 
taken in negotiating additional outputs for work experience and educational visits.    

 
3.3.4 Stakeholder views were sought primarily through a questionnaire to developers, 

contractors; procurement, planning and service commissioning managers. 

Page 72



 

 

Feedback was sought on the support and advice provided; ability to comply with 
the requirements including the provision of information for monitoring purposes; the 
benefits secured for their business including meeting corporate social responsibility 
objectives; up-skilling of their workforce; public relations and publicity. Key 
messages from the feedback are summarised below.   

 
              Benefits  

• The opportunity to inspire young  people to enter the construction  industry  

• The opportunity for involvement in the delivery of innovative community 
projects  

• Involvement with the “Build My Future Build my Leeds Competition”  

• Being able to evidence experience of delivering added value when competing 
for other contracts   

• Social impact is embedded in all new development supply chains   

• Recognition as a model of good practice in the industry  

• Raising the profile of the industry  

• Dedicating time from my team to act as mentors for young people  

• Living child friendly city through supporting the Families First programme 

• Sharing best practice and working in partnership  

• Opportunities to support engagement with local schools   

• A collaborative and consultative approach 

• Increased understanding of what’s expected and the support available  

• On-going support throughout the process of assessment and delivery  

• Providing independent scrutiny and a clear robust monitoring process 

• A single point of contact to provide guidance and support   

• Regular reviews to discuss concerns   
                       

              Challenges  

• The construction industry is characterised by high impact activity over the 
short term with a transient workforce that follows the work. This makes 
sustainable benefits very difficult to achieve  

• Understanding the many organisations and the many legislative rules together 
with funding opportunities is difficult when dealing with job seekers, work 
experience and  apprenticeships .A single point of contact has been critical in 
providing the guidance to support effective delivery and link to the right people 

• The type of build programme can often have specialist requirements in terms 
of build and skills which are not always available in Leeds, the City Region or 
the UK.  

• Delivering the level of outcomes in a challenging economic climate across the 
construction industry, in particular, supporting new apprentices. The 
establishment of a shared apprenticeship provision linked to the industry that 
can adapt and is flexible is a welcome addition  

• Delivering the wider benefits, on budget and time   

• Contractors have found the wording of the S106 difficult to understand and the  
implications of the risks in delivery    

• The inclusion of employment and skills obligations may deter bidders  

• Securing the support of the service area to understand the need to complete 
the toolkit   

 
3.3.5 Feedback from all stakeholders emphasised the critical need for early engagement 

to foster good working relationships that are both supportive and challenging when 
required.    

Page 73



 

 

 
3.3.6 Information systems and processes.  Effective systems and ways of working are 

critical to the effective implementation of the framework for delivering employment 
and skills obligations. Automated notifications, guidance and toolkits to support 
options appraisals and robust monitoring systems are in place and there has been 
increased contact and dialogue and joint working between the relevant services.    

 
3.3.7 A key objective of the framework has been to target opportunities to specific 

localities that may be adversely affected during the development phase and or to 
ensure that residents from disadvantaged communities have priority access to the 
employment opportunities. It is intended that this is achieved by targeting 
opportunities to named geographies i.e. localities / wards/ parliamentary 
constituencies.  

 
3.3.8 The targeted approach has differed in relation to the size and nature of the 

development / contract and the skill levels required for the job roles available.  For 
example the development of new office quarters for the West Yorkshire Police 
service covered a target area within a 50 mile radius of the site whereas a retail 
supermarket development in South Leeds had a target area covering adjacent 
wards. The distribution of job outputs secured across wards reflects both the 
existing workforce base of businesses as well as targeted interventions to recruit 
new employees.     

  
3.3.9 Developers and contractors have largely supported this targeted approach but 

successful delivery is dependent to a large degree on the outreach and 
engagement activity delivered by the Employment and Skills service. To ensure 
that future targeted approaches are maximised the service has realigned staff 
resources to support increased outreach activity to raise awareness of the 
opportunities, engage local residents, provide skills training where appropriate and 
advise on recruitment processes.  Working in close collaboration with the Area 
Committee lead member and ward members, this revised approach enabled 39 
briefing and ICT support sessions to be delivered to 1,090 local residents applying 
for the 300 jobs currently being recruited to at retail development in Middleton 
under S106 obligations.     

 
3.3.10 A number of the planning consents and S106 agreements were determined prior to 

the Scrutiny Board’s inquiry and did not take account of employment opportunities 
with end users of the development. For example the Trinity Leeds development 
included S106 obligations on the construction phase only. This agreement was 
completed but since then we have strengthened the format and content of the 
agreements and practices requiring the developer to submit an Employment 
Strategy that details how they will work with the Council during the construction 
phase and with the end occupiers of the development. This approach has been 
adopted for both the development of Victoria Gate and White Rose.      

       
3.3.11 A high number of contracts that meet the threshold for appraisal have been 

assessed as not suitable for the inclusion of employment and skills obligations. 
Contract length is a key determinant of the ability of the contractor to achieve 
employment and skills outcomes. It is proposed that contracts of less than 12 
months duration should not be considered. Further work is required to identify key 
gateway criteria or thresholds in addition to contract value that can be consistently 
applied to make best use of resources. The nature and size of the services and 
activities being procured have the potential to deliver very different volumes of 

Page 74



 

 

opportunities and should be balanced against the need to complete a resource 
intensive assessment process if obligations are to be delivered without significant 
additional cost to the Council.     

 

4.0 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 Key stakeholders including contractors, developers and their end users where 
appropriate, planning, procurement and service commissioning officers who have 
contributed to the assessment, negotiation and implementation of the obligations 
have been in involved in the review process. 28 responses were received to the 
questionnaire seeking feedback on the policy; guidance notes and toolkits; 
application and support offered to enable implementation.      

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

  4.2.1 An Equality Impact Assessment screening was undertaken in 2012 to inform the 
revisions to the Council’s procurement policy. Increases in unemployment through 
the recession disproportionately impacted on those neighbourhoods with the 
highest levels of claimants. Obligations include minimum levels to be achieved and 
are increasingly targeted to specific communities and claimant groups as well as 
cohorts of young people engaged in employability and skills programmes. 
Achievement against these targets will be monitored and reported and continue to 
inform implementation.   

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The activity and benefits arising from this approach contribute to the achievement 
of objectives in the Best Council Plan to promote sustainable and inclusive 
economic growth by helping local residents into jobs and supporting local 
businesses to access supply chain opportunities.  The heads of terms of S106 
employment and skills obligations are reported to and agreed by Plans Panels 
prior to the determination of any planning applications.   

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 The inquiry recommendations have been implemented within existing resources 
and have delivered additional benefits to local residents and local businesses that 
may not have otherwise happened. Support offered to developers and contractors 
to implement their obligations has included access to a range of existing publicly 
funded employability and skills programmes. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 Activity to secure employment and skills obligations must comply with the Public 
Contract Regulations 2006 and not contravene the legislative framework and 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State on the use of Planning Obligations.  

4.5.2 There are no specific legal implications arising from this monitoring report.  

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The impact of introducing employment and skills obligations on developers will 
continue to be considered over the short, medium and long term and in the context 

Page 75



 

 

of prevailing economic conditions; the strength of targeted sectors within the 
economy; and the need to balance any gains with the need to encourage 
continued investment in Leeds. These issues will be monitored and kept under 
review.  

5.0 Conclusions 

5.1 The inclusion of employment and skills obligations is the first step in a process that 
can play out over a considerable period of time. The lead in time from the grant of 
planning consent to development starting on site can be up to 3 years and can be 
delayed further in the current economic climate, a matter outside of the control of 
the Council. The process of developing a tender specification, seeking and 
evaluating tenders on high value contracts will usually take more than 6 months. 
At this stage outputs reported remain modest due to the lengthy lead time on 
activity delivered through this process but are increasing.  

 
5.2 In total, 1,230 local residents have accessed jobs and 57 apprenticeships have 

been created or safeguarded to date. This number is expected to grow as the 
increasing number of contracts and developments in the pipeline commence. The 
Victoria Gate, Thorpe Park and White Rose developments will offer significant 
employment opportunities in both the construction and with end occupiers.  

 

5.3 There have been an increased number of opportunities to apply employment and 
skills obligations to contracts and planning agreements and work will continue to 
refine and more effectively target the approach to those developments with 
significant employment generating potential during construction and in end users. 
The continuous review of the framework will enable the Council and key 
stakeholders to assess the continued effectiveness of this approach and take 
appropriate action to amend the approach to meet changing circumstances and 
needs when required.  

6.0 Recommendations 

6.1 Members of Scrutiny Board are asked to note the progress made to implement the 
recommendations of the inquiry into Maximising Powers to Promote, Influence and 
Create Local Employment and Skills Opportunities. 

7.0  Background documents1 

7.1 None  

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

    

Page 76



 

 

 

 

 

       

Appendix 1     Table 1:  Planning  Period:  Sept 2012 - Jan 2014 

  Cumulative New New - End 

User Opps 

Comments 

ESP in development  3 0 0  

ESP agreed  15 1 0   

Total  18 1 0   

       

Outputs People into 

Jobs  

Jobs 

Safeguarded 

People into 

Apprenticeships  

Apprenticeships 

safeguarded 

Totals by Wards % 

Adel and Wharfedale 7 2 0 0 9 1.03% 

Alwoodley 12 5 0 0 17 1.95% 

Ardsley and Robin Hood 5 1 1 0 7 0.80% 

Armley 29 1 1 1 32 3.67% 

Beeston and Holbeck 24 12 1 0 37 4.24% 

Bramley and Stanningley 23 6 0 1 30 3.44% 

Burmantofts and 

Richmond 

28 11 0 0 39 4.47% 

Calverley and Farsley 13 0 0 1 14 1.60% 

Chapel Allerton 13 2 0 0 15 1.72% 

City and Hunslet 46 43 2 0 91 10.42% 

Cross Gates and 

Whinmoor 

15 9 3 0 27 3.09% 

Farnley and Wortley 14 8 0 0 22 2.52% 

Garforth and Swillington 9 11 0 1 21 2.41% 

Gipton and Harehills 19 1 0 0 20 2.29% 

Guiseley and Rawdon 56 7 0 0 63 7.22% 

Harewood 7 3 0 0 10 1.15% 

Headingley 21 21 0 1 43 4.93% 

Horsforth 11 2 0 0 13 1.49% 

Hyde Park & Woodhouse 14 0 0 0 14 1.60% 

Killingbeck and Seacroft 21 5 0 0 26 2.98% 

Kippax and Methley 12 4 0 0 16 1.83% 

Kirkstall 30 24 0 1 55 6.30% 

Middleton Park 54 5 1 0 60 6.87% 

Moortown 16 0 0 1 17 1.95% 

Morley North 9 16 0 1 26 2.98% 

Morley South 6 1 1 0 8 0.92% 

Otley and Yeadon 27 3 0 1 31 3.55% 

Pudsey 16 15 0 2 33 3.78% 

Rothwell 11 11 0 0 22 2.52% 

Roundhay 11 0 0 0 11 1.26% 

Temple Newsam 7 1 0 1 9 1.03% 

Weetwood 12 18 0 0 30 3.44% 

Wetherby 1 1 2 1 5 0.57% 

Totals 599 249 12 13 873 100.00% 

Page 77



 

 

Appendix 1      Table 2: Procurement   Period : Sept 2012- Jan 2014 

Procurement Meeting The Thresholds 

(£100k) 

Cumulative New End User Opps   

Assessed with Obligations 61 7 0   

Progression to Tender 6 0 0   

Awarded 8 0 0   

Not Suitable 31 4 0   

Total number of Procurement Assessed 61 11 0   

           

Outputs People into 

Jobs 

Jobs 

Safeguarded 

People into 

Apprenticeships  

Apprentices 

safeguarded 

Total by 

Wards 

% 

Adel and Wharfedale 7 0 0 0 7 1.68% 

Alwoodley 2 0 0 0 2 0.48% 

Ardsley and Robin Hood 5 0 2 2 9 2.16% 

Armley 7 0 0 0 7 1.68% 

Beeston and Holbeck 8 15 0 1 24 5.76% 

Bramley and Stanningley 8 0 0 1 9 2.16% 

Burmantofts and 

Richmond 

11 0 0 0 11 2.64% 

Calverley and Farsley 3 0 0 2 5 1.20% 

Chapel Allerton 13 3 1 1 18 4.32% 

City and Hunslet 23 1 0 0 24 5.76% 

Cross Gates and 

Whinmoor 

8 0 1 1 10 2.40% 

Farnley and Wortley 16 3 1 1 21 5.04% 

Garforth and Swillington 1 30 0 0 31 7.43% 

Gipton and Harehills 15 0 0 0 15 3.60% 

Guiseley and Rawdon 2 0 0 1 3 0.72% 

Harewood 1 0 0 0 1 0.24% 

Headingley 11 0 0 0 11 2.64% 

Horsforth 4 7 0 0 11 2.64% 

Hyde Park & Woodhouse 32 0 0 0 32 7.67% 

Killingbeck and Seacroft 12 0 1 0 13 3.12% 

Kippax and Methley 2 0 0 0 2 0.48% 

Kirkstall 11 0 0 1 12 2.88% 

Middleton Park 16 0 4 0 20 4.80% 

Moortown 11 0 0 0 11 2.64% 

Morley North 2 10 0 0 12 2.88% 

Morley South 6 0 1 1 8 1.92% 

Otley and Yeadon 5 0 0 2 7 1.68% 

Pudsey 3 0 0 0 3 0.72% 

Rothwell 5 0 1 2 8 1.92% 

Roundhay 8 0 0 0 8 1.92% 

Temple Newsam 5 0 1 1 7 1.68% 

Weetwood 3 0 1 1 5 1.20% 

Wetherby 0 50 0 0 50 11.99% 

Totals 266 119 14 18 417 100.00% 

  

Page 78



 

 

Appendix 3    Table 3: Planning and Procurement    Period: Sept 2012 – Jan 2014 

        

Outputs People into 

Jobs  

Jobs 

Safeguarded 

People into 

Apprenticeships  

Apprentices 

safeguarded 

Total by 

Wards 

%  

Adel and Wharfedale 14 2 0 0 16 1.24% 

 Alwoodley 14 5 0 0 19 1.47%  

Ardsley and Robin Hood 10 1 3 2 16 1.24%  

Armley 36 1 1 1 39 3.02%  

Beeston and Holbeck 32 27 1 1 61 4.73%  

Bramley and 

Stanningley 

31 6 0 2 39 3.02%  

Burmantofts and 

Richmond 

39 11 0 0 50 3.88%  

Calverley and Farsley 16 0 0 3 19 1.47%  

Chapel Allerton 26 5 1 1 33 2.56%  

City and Hunslet 69 44 2 0 115 8.91%  

Cross Gates and 

Whinmoor 

23 9 4 1 37 2.87%  

Farnley and Wortley 30 11 1 1 43 3.33%  

Garforth and 

Swillington 

10 41 0 1 52 4.03%  

Gipton and Harehills 34 1 0 0 35 2.71%  

Guiseley and Rawdon 58 7 0 1 66 5.12%  

Harewood 8 3 0 0 11 0.85%  

Headingley 32 21 0 1 54 4.19%  

Horsforth 15 9 0 0 24 1.86%  

Hyde Park and 

Woodhouse 

46 0 0 0 46 3.57%  

Killingbeck and Seacroft 33 5 1 0 39 3.02%  

Kippax and Methley 14 4 0 0 18 1.40%  

Kirkstall 41 24 0 2 67 5.19%  

Middleton Park 70 5 5 0 80 6.20%  

Moortown 27 0 0 1 28 2.17%  

Morley North 11 26 0 1 38 2.95%  

Morley South 12 1 2 1 16 1.24%  

Otley and Yeadon 32 3 0 3 38 2.95%  

Pudsey 19 15 0 2 36 2.79%  

Rothwell 16 11 1 2 30 2.33%  

Roundhay 19 0 0 0 19 1.47%  

Temple Newsam 12 1 1 2 16 1.24%  

Weetwood 15 18 1 1 35 2.71%  

Wetherby 1 51 2 1 55 4.26%  

Totals 865 368 26 31 1290 100%  

 

 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) 

Date: 18 March 2014 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Board’s draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1. The work schedule 
reflects discussions at the Board’s meeting in February. It will be subject to change 
throughout the municipal year. 

 
2. Also attached as appendix 2 are the Executive Board minutes of 14 February 2014. 

The minutes of the Executive Board meeting on 5 March 2014 will be circulated 
before the Scrutiny Board meeting. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 
3.    Members are asked to: 

a) Consider the work schedule and make amendments as appropriate 
b) Note the Executive Board minutes  

 

 

Background documents1 

None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

 Report author:  Kate Arscott 

Tel:  247 4189 

Agenda Item 11

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



     Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Work Schedule for 2013/2014 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review June July August 
 

Jobs and skills Inquiry    

Leeds Let’s Get Active 
Scheme Inquiry 

To agree terms of reference 
SB 18/6/13 

Session One 
SB 16/7/13 

 

Tour de France    

Call In   West Park Centre 
SB 6/8/13 

Requests for scrutiny Party in the Park  Residents’ Parking Permit Schemes 
SB 16/7/13 

 

Pre-decision Scrutiny 
  

 Draft Sports Strategy 
SB 16/7/13 

 

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

 Maximising Powers to Promote 
Influence and create Local Employment 
and Skills Opportunities 
SB 16/7/13 

 

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 

   

Performance Monitoring 
 

Quarter 4 performance report 
SB 18/6/13 

  

Contributions to the work of  
other Scrutiny Boards 

 Youth Offer (led by Children  & Families) 
WG 9/7/13 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 83



     Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Work Schedule for 2013/2014 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review September October November 
 

Apprenticeships Inquiry Scope inquiry 
WG 9/9/13 
 

Agree terms of Reference 
SB 8/10/13 

Session One 
SB 19/11/13 

Cultural organisations’ 
engagement with 
communities Inquiry 

  Agree terms of Reference 
SB 19/11/13 

Tour de France  SB 8/10/13  

West Park Centre SB 17/9/13   

Requests for scrutiny  
 

 Developers and planning process 
SB 8/10/13 

 

Pre-decision Scrutiny 
  

Community Infrastructure Levy draft 
charging schedule 
SB 17/9/13  

Residents’ Parking Permit Schemes 
SB 8/10/13  

 

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 

 Young People’s engagement in culture 
SB 8/10/13 

 

Performance Monitoring 
 

   

Contributions to the work of  
other Scrutiny Boards 

Youth offer 
WG 24/9/13 

  

 

P
age 84



     Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Work Schedule for 2013/2014 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review December January February 

Apprenticeships Inquiry  Meeting with young people 
WG 16/1/14 
 
Session Two 
SB 21/1/14 

 

Cultural organisations’ 
engagement with 
communities Inquiry 

 
 
 

 Session One 
SB 18/2/14 

Tour de France   Progress report on preparations 
SB 18/2/14 

Manufacturing Sector Briefing 
SB 17/12/13 

  

 
Requests for scrutiny 

   

Pre-decision Scrutiny 
  

  Strategic Economic Plan  
SB 4/2/14 
(Joint with Housing & Regeneration) 

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

Executive Board’s initial budget proposals 
WG 17/12/13 

Local Flood Risk Management Strategy  
SB 21/1/14  

 

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

Scrutiny of Strategic Partnership Board  
SB 21/1/14 

 

Performance Monitoring Revised performance framework 
SB 17/12/13  

  

Contributions to the work of  
other Scrutiny Boards 

Youth offer 
WG 10/12/13 

  

P
age 85



     Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Work Schedule for 2013/2014 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14  

Area of review March 1 April 15 April 

Apprenticeships Inquiry  Session Three 
SB 1/4/14 

 

Cultural organisations’ 
engagement with 
communities Inquiry 

  Session 2 
SB 15/4/14 

Leeds Let’s Get Active 
Scheme 

Session Two 
SB 18/3/14 

  

Annual review of 
Partnership 

 To undertake “critical friend” 
challenge  
SB 1/4/14 

 

Tour de France   Progress report on preparations 
SB 15/4/14 

Requests for scrutiny 20s Plenty for Us Campaign 
SB 18/3/14 

  

Pre-decision Scrutiny 
  

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking Maximising Powers to Promote Influence 
and create Local Employment and Skills 
Opportunities 
SB 18/3/14 
 
Young People’s engagement in culture 
SB 18/3/14 

  

Performance Monitoring 
 

Quarter 3 performance report 
SB 18/3/14 

  

Contributions to the work of  
other Scrutiny Boards 

  Youth Offer 
WG Date TBC 

 

P
age 86



     Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Work Schedule for 2013/2014 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Sustainable Economy and Culture) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
Unscheduled items 
 
Sustainability of events Working Group 

Site Allocations Plan – estimated June 2014 

Aire Valley Action Plan – estimated June 2014 

Community Infrastructure Levy – apportionment of spending and spending priorities – estimated summer 2014 (to include 
representative from Housing & Regeneration SB) 

Asset Management (Chair of Resources and Council Services SB to be included) 2014/15 

Local Flood Risk Management Strategy – annual scrutiny review of progress 

 

 

P
age 87



P
age 88

T
his page is intentionally left blank



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

����������	
��
�
�

���
�����������	������������
�

���������
�

�

	����
�� ���!��������	�����������

� �

	����
���"�#��!���$������������
��
	��
%�&
��
	��'�&�
�	��(�)�*����)��
�����	��
$�+��������	��)�,���
	�

�
�
�

���� �������� !"#�$�%" �&��"''%()����*)+'%" �"!��,���#�''�$ -��+()%*��
���
.��
�-�.������	����
���	���*����(��
����
	���
��.���)
����$
��
�������
/01��
�����$���	����	��2�/�����	����	��$�������
�3	�
�����
	2�/0	���	�2�
(��
����
	�������������
���������1��
������
�����������	���
��	��
�
	��������
	�
�������
��
*�	��������
���������	��������	���������1�����
	�
������

	����������������!������	����*�
������	��
���
�������
��	�����
����
���	�������
������	��
���
��������
�����	��������������������
�������
�����
*���������	��������*

�����������
�
����
������
���1������	�
�����
	��
�
�����	���������
��
*�45�
�
/�2� $���	��1� �� �
� ���� ���
��� �	�������� 67
����!�8���	�9�����������
���� 
��

���� 0	��	�� 7

��:� ��������� �
� ��� ��	
��� ;
<� �=�� ��� �����	����� ���
�1����� �	� ���
���	��� *���� ���������� ��<�/>2� 
�� %����
��� ��$/>2� 
��
���� )
���� &
���	��	�� $��� �?@�� 
	� ���� ��

	��� ����� ��� �
	���	��
�	�
�����
	�������	���
�������	�	�����
���
��	������������
���	��������
����
����
	� /�	��
��	�� ���� �
��
����� �
���	�� ����� �	�
�����
	2<� 3�� ���
�
	�������� ����� ���� �
����� �	������� �	� ���	���	�	�� ���� �
	��	�� 
�� ����
����	��1� ��� �1����� 

�*������ ���� �
����� �	������� �	� �����
��	�� ����
�	�
�����
	<�$���	��1� �� ����1��������������
��	�� ������

	��
�� ���	��
�������������� ������� ���� �

	���:�� �������� �
� ���
��� ���� ����� ��	�	�����


��
������

��������
�������
	<�
�

���� .$�������'��
����������������	��
�������������������������
���
��	����*�������������
�����
���	����	��������6)������
���%�������4�3	�����
�:�����	��
��������
	�:<��.����
���
����������	��
�����������������������
���
��	���������������
����

���	
��
����	��
����*����	��������	����
���
�������������������*���������
�
��������
	����
�������	�����
��*������������<��7
*���������*����������
����
������������#
������������*������
������*�����	�
������
	������
���
%����������	�������
������������	���
�����
	��	��������������
�������
���
%��������3	�����
�������������������
��
��
	��������
���
����
���������
������	��
�
���������
��������������������#
���������	��*�����*

����
	����������
���������
	��
���������	��
��������
	���	��
���������<�/��	
���;
<��=��������2<�
�
3	�������
	���	�
������������
	�
��$���	��1���/�����$		�1��
�
��	�2��
�
���	���������=���	��������6$		
���%��	������(��
��4�0�����,�����A

	����
	�
%������'��������	��%��
	�����%��

���'�
����
	:��������	�����
�������
�
#
�������������
���������
	��������
	<�/��	
���;
<��=B�������2<�

Page 89



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�
���� 
�*)$#$�%" �"!�
%'*)"'$()����*+ %$#/�� ��#�'�'��

.�����*����	
������
������'��
	�����3	������������������
����������	���
�
*����45�
�
3	�������
	��
��������	���������	��������6�����	��	���
���(��
����
��(
��	�
7

��'�������%��

�4�#�����;����01��	��
	��
�!�:���

	����
���
�����	�
���*�����#
���:������	��
	��
������
����
	��������������
��&
���	
������(
��	�
7

��'�������%��

��/��	
���;
<��=>�������2<�
�
$��
���	�������
	��
��������	���������	��������6+
��
���
���
	�
�����
	�
	�
'�
�
������
�3	�������'�������'�
����
	��	�A������:��

	����
��$�����������*�
����#
���:������	��
	��
������
����
	�
	�����#
����
��&
���	
����������������
��
����
��0	���	��'�������%��

��/��	
���;
<��=��������2<�
�

��0� 1% +��'��
���
.��
�2�.����������	
����
�����������

�������	�������
	���	��"�	
����
������������
����������
���������
��<�
�
.��
���
���
����.3���
���
.�
�
�

���� �% $ *%$)���$)�,�1" %�"#% 4����05�����&�1" �,�6��
.������
���������01��
������
�������������
���
	������

	���:����
C������
��	�	������
����
	��
�����>D�����������	�	���
	����
��������	�	���������<�
�
.������������	!�������
���������
	���	����
���������
	��	
������
����*���������
�����
������
���	����	�	������
����
	��������?��
	����
��������	�	���������<�
�
���
.��
�2�.����������
C��������	�	������
����
	�
�������
��
�����������	�	��
�
	����
��������	�	�������������	
���<�
�

��7� ��8� +��	+-4����#"�"'$)'�$ -��$�%�$)��#"4#$�����
/$2�)�����������

	����(���	
��#
������	���

	����.�1�����D�����
A
�������
���	
���;
<��>@���=���������������>���������
���������01��
�����
�
�������������
����������	��������
�
������
������������

	���:��(���	
��
#
������
������D������
�������*��������)����������	��
�������

	����.�1��
�
�����������	�����D����<�
�
.���#
����	
����������
�
�����
��	�������)����:������	��
�������

	����.�1�
�
������D�������<??E���	������
�����������	���
�����	�����	������
���*�����
�������	���!�	��	�
��
	��������
	�*��	��
���	���������
�
���<�
�
.���#
�������������
����
�����
���������
	���	����
������*
�!�*��������������

	�����!�	��	�������
��
�������������������
�������
������������

��

��
�����
����������	����
������
�����<��
�
���
.��
�2��
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
�����
�������(���	
��#
������
��

����D������
�����	��F�B�<@@@����������������	���1����	���*����	�����

Page 90



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�
�����������
����	�����
���	��	����������*�������<??E��	��������	�
����)����:������	��
�������

	����.�1��
������D����<�

�
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
�����
������	����
�����	��F��?�������
�

������
�������
�'���������������������*����	�����������B<��<��
������
�
�����������
��<�

�
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
�����
����	����	���	���
�����

�

	����.�1��������������������*����	�����������><���
�������
��������
���
����*���������
������
��������������������
������������<�

�
/�2�� .�����	���������
������7

��	��(���	
��$��

	����

	�������

���
���	�����
4�5�
/�2�����
��������
�����*�����	�����������	���	����������
���
���<?EG�
/��2��	�������������������
�����������	����
�F@<�=�����*��!�/������
�
	�
�����	��*��!�2G�
/���2��	������������������������	���	��*������	���/�<?E2<�

�
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
�����
������������������������������
��

(���	
��������	����������	�����
����
*�01��
�����#
�����
�����
���
������	���
���
�����1��
��
��F���������<�

�
/�2�� .����������������������������	��
���������������
����
����
��
	���������

��������������	��
	���	�����
������D����<�
�
/�2�� .��������
�����������	��
������*����	��
��(������(�������
�����

�
��	������*������������������������������

��*����	�$���	��1����
�����
�
�����������
�����
�C�����
�������
����
	��
��%�����$��<�

�
/#2���������'�
�������8����������5���@�
.������
���������01��
������
�������������
��������	��

��������
�
����
��������'�
��������
����������
������5���@��*������	��
������������
��
�
����������

������
�����������
�<�3	�������
	���������
������
���
��������
�����*�
�����>D���������������	�<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2�� .���������
��
*�	��������
���	�����
��

	���45�

/�2�.������������������
����������������	�����	�$���	��1�7��
�����
�
�����������
�����������
���G�
/��2�.����������
�
������	��
��(���	
��'�
����
	�/�('2��
��������
��
����D������������

��*����	�����������><B��	���1����	����	�$���	��1�A�

�������
�����������
�����������
���<�

�
/�2�� .��������
�����������	��
����������
����	���	����
�����������������
*	�

*����	�$���	��1����
������
�����������
�������	������
����
���	�
������
�
��	������������������������
��
����	����
���	���*���������('��
����<�

�
/�2�� .��������
�����������	��
�������������������������������
���
��
��
���

'
�������+������/�'+�2���H
������
�������������9���
����&����
��
����������	����	���	�����
������������'+����	�������������	
����

Page 91



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�������������
������
��	C�����	�������6$
��
������
�%��	�:�
	�������
�'+�������
��������������������
�������	������
������������������
�
����������
��
������������
���	�<�

�
/�2�.����
�����	�����	��%������������D�����
.������
���������01��
������
�������������
��������	��

������.����
���
��	�����	��%���������
������D�������
�������*�������������������
�������
�
��
*�	���������
	����������
��	����������*
�!<�3	�������
	���������
������
�
��
�������������*�
������������	��
������
	���	����>D����<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2�� .��������
�����������	��
������	�����������
�������������
������D���������

����

��*����	�%����
	�><>�
�������
�����������
�����	����������������*�
��
�������>D���������������	��
������
	����������

��*����	�%����
	��><��
�	��><��
�������
�����������
�������	
���<�

�
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
����������
��
*�	����������
�����>D����

����D��������D�B��	�����BD�@�������������*����	�%����
	�><��
������
�
�����������
��<�

�
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
��������������
�����	�����	��

�	�����
����
�����>D��������D��������D�B��	�����BD�@�������������
*����	�%����
	�><��
�������
�����������
��<�

�
/�2�� .�����

	����������
���	�����
����������	������	����������
�����>D����

����D��������D�B��	�����BD�@�������������*����	�%����
	�><B�
������
�
�����������
��<�

�
/.���������������������
��	���	
���;
�<��@��/$2/�25�@�/$2/�2���@�/#2/�2/�25
�@�/#2/�2/��2��	���@�/�2/�25�@�/�2/�2����	��������������������
��

	�����*����
	
������������
�������3	2�
�
/8	����������
����
	��
���

	����'�
���
���(
����B<����

	����
��$��������
��H
���������
�������
�������������������	�����
���
��	��
	�����������
	��
����������
�*����	���	
���;
<��@�/$2��	��/#2��*�������

	����
��&
��
	���H
�����
����
�������
�������������������	�����
���
��	��
	�����������
	������������
�
*����	���	
���;
<��@�/$22�
�
�
�.���
���.������
�

��9� �#�$�%" �"!�$��"*%$)�� ��#�#%'���"�-�)%8�#��,��.�$# % 4�
%'$(%)%�/�
�"��+ %�/��+��"#����#8%*���
.���������
��
��$�
���%
�����%���������
�������������
��������	��

����
�
�����
�
�������
��	����������
���	��
�����
������	����������	������
���
���������5����
�
��������������
�
����
�������������)���	�	��������������
��
	����%
��
���
%������<�.������
����

��������
�����
�
	�����!���
������
	�
�����
	�*����
�������	���	������	��*��������	���
�����!��
������
	������
��������
��
�
����<�
�

Page 92



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

.���#
�������	!�������
��������*�
��������	��	�
������	����������
���	��
��
������	����������
�������	����
������
	�	��

���
��
����
��������
�
����<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���� ���� ��
������ ����� �
� ����� �	� ������
	� �
� ���� �����
���	�� 
�� ��

�
����� �	��������� �
�� ���� )���	�	�� ����������� �
��
	���� %
��
���
%�������� �	��
��	�� ���� ��
�
���
	� 
�� �	� 3	��������� #
��	���� '��	G� �	�
�1��
����� �
������ 
�� *����� ��� ��������� �
� ���� �
�������� ���
��� ���
$���	��1�������	
���<�

�
/�2� .��������
�����������	��
��	������
������
	�
�����
	��
����
	�����!�	�

*���� ������ �������	�� ���� ��
�
���� �
� ���������� �� �
����� �	����������	���
�
�C���� �
� �� �
������� ������ ����
	���� ����
���� ��� ����	� �
� ����������
���	����
	��� ����	����	���� ��� ��������� ��� ���
�
��
	�� /�2�� /�2� �	�� /�2�
���
*<�

�
/�2� .���� �
��� �	������	�� *���� �� *���� ��

�� 
�� ���!��
������ �	��
��	��

0�����������������
��
������	��������������������
��
�����<�
�
/�2� .�������������	��
��
����%���
*�#
�����
�
����������������
���	��
��

�����
������	�������������
��
�������*�����*�����	��
����������������
��
�����

	���<�

�
/�2� .���� ���� ���������
	� 
�� �� ��������� �������� �����������
	� �	�� ����

	��
�����
	� 
�� �� �
	������ �
�� ��������� �
�� �� ����
�� 
�� �� ������� *�����
�����������������	���
����	�������	�����!���
���
��������

	�����	������
�
����� �	���������� ��� ���	������� *����	� ���� �
�������� ���
���� ���
�
��
�����<�
�

/�2� .���� ������	
���� ����� /�
�C���� �
����
������������� ����
	��� ���

��� ����
�
	�
�����
	� ��
����2� �� �
������ ���
��� *���� ��� ��

���� �
� 01��
�����
#
����� �
��	�� ���� ���	����
	��� ����	����	���� *����� *���� ��H
����
����
�����
���
	��������
������	��������<�

�
/�2� .��������	�1���������������
��������
��
*�45�

•� ������-���������4�A
������
	�
�����
	�
	�������
�
����

•� "
	������4�0����������	��
������
*�����	����	���

•� �������������4�(��
��� �
�01��
�����#
���� ��H
����	������
����
�
���
	��������
������	���������

•� 0���������4�)�
	���
���
������	���������
�
/�2� .���� ��� ��� 	
���� ����� ���� 7���� 
�� %������� �
�� ���� )���	�	�� �����������

�
��
	����%
��
���%�������������������
��������
���������
C���<�
�


���.
�1������
�������
�
1��
�

���� ��'�" '���"�
��+�$�%" �&�:��3'��)� �/�!"#��':��$��$%4 ��
.���������
��
������������
���	���	������������
��
��'
�����7�������
��������
��C
�	�����
��������	��

�������

	���:������
	����
��������
����
	������	�����
�

Page 93



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�����

	���������	��
�������>���;
����������>��������I��:��'��	����
��8�J�
�������	���

�<�
�
��������*���
������������
�������	����!�	���������

	�����	���������
��
��������
���	����������������
��
�������������������	������������
�%��
��	��
#
����/%
����	�����0�
	
����	���
��
��2��
���
�������
	��������
	<�3	�
������
	������#
����*���
����������	���
����	���������	�������������������
���

�������	����������*�������������������	������	��������
�������
�
��
	�
���
���
��������	�����������
�����
����
��������<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
�����
�������*���������
������
��

�����
���	����
���������	������
	��1��
������
��������
�������������
���
�
��)���������	
���<�

�
/�2� .���� �����
	��	
���
	�
�� ���� �������������
���� �
� ������
��������� �
���



�� 
�� ��� ���� ������ ������� �	� ���� ����� ��� �	�
������ *���� �� ���*� �
�
�1��	��	������
��
��
	�����
�����������	�����������������

�����������<�

�
/�2� .���� ����
���� ��� ����	� �
� *
�!� ���	�� 
	�����!�	� *���� ����	���� �
���

��
��*����	��	��

������
�������

	����/�
����������6��:��'��	����
��8�:�
��

�� �	�� '
����� 7������ ��������2� 
	� ���� ��
�
��
	� 
�� ���� ������
��������������*���������*��
���1�����	����������������	������������
��	��
���� ��������� �
������� �
����� �
��
��� �	�� �
�����	��<� 3	� ������
	��
����
���� ���
� ��� ����	� �
� �1��
��� 	�*� ���	
��� �	� 
����� �
� 
����	�
�
	��	���
�������	��
�
���
	�
������������
���������	�����!���	�<�

�
/�2� .���� ���� 6��:�� '��	��� �
�� 8�:� �������	� ��

�:�� *
�!� �	� �����	�� ����

��
�����
����������
�������!	
*���������
�������*����������

�:����H
����
����� ������������������
��	�������	������
���� ����� ���
����� ��������� �
�
���� %��
��	�� #
���� /%
����	����� 0�
	
��� �	�� �
��
��2� �
��
�
	��������
	<�

�
/�2� .����������	
�������������7����
��.��	��
���'��		�	��*�����������
	������

�
�������������	����
	�
���
����������<�
�

��;� 	#%-4�<$��#��)$*���
A
�������
���	
���;
<�����/B���;
����������>2������������
��
�������
�����
���	���
�������������
���*������

��������
�����
��������������������
)�����������

	������
�
�
��
	�����
	���
������!�	�*��	������*�	���*����
�
��������	�������
	��
�#�����*�����'������	�������
������$������	���
�
	��:��
���
���	����
	��
������

	���<�3	�������
	���������
������
��

��������
�����
�
����������
��������
	����
�����$������	���
�
	��<�
�
��������	
����������������*����	������
�����������
����	���������
�������1�����
�������*������������	�����������	�������	�����=���������������������	������
�����
���	�:���������
�
	��1����	��*�	���
	����
	�<�
�

Page 94



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

(���
	��	���
���������:���	H
�����
���������	�
���������#
�������������
����
	����������
�����	��	�	���
���������������*
�!����
�
����*��������
����
�������	��<���
�
3	��
	��
��
	��
	��������
�������

	���������#
����
�������������������
�
	�
��	�����
������������
��������������%��	�����	�����*�������������������
�����

	����*���*
�!�	���1��������������
��	�
������������$������	��
�
�
	��:�����
���	����
	���
�����)
����$
��
�����*�������	�����������
<�3	�
������
	�����*���	
��������������

	�����������	��	�

�����������������
����
*�����*������	����!�	���������
����	�:��
*	����*������������
���������
	��
��H
������
������
���������*�	�����������
�������#�����*�����'����<���
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���� ����$������	���
�
	��:�� ���
���	����
	� ��
�� ���� 3	H
����*�����

�
	��
����
	�>���������������>����	
���G��	�����������������
	�����
�
*��������
	���

������ ��!�	� �	� ����
	��� �
� �����
	���	� ������� �
�
���
����������
��
�������	���
����������
�������

	��������
����	
���<�

�
/�2� .���� ��� ��� 	
���� ����� ���� �

	���� ��� �
�C���� �
� �
��� ����
�
��� �	��

���������� �
	�����	��� �	� ���� �1������� 
�� ���� ����*��� ��	�����	��
�
	���
	���	���	�����
	������������	��	��������!���
�����
����
	����
	���
��
���������	���������	�����������<�

�
/�2� .���� ���� ��
�
���� ������
	�� �
� )����� ����� �

	���:�� 7���� ��	���

'�
�
�
�� �	� ������
	� �
� #�����*����� '������ ��� ��������� *����	� �����
	�
><���
�������
�����������
�����������
���<�

�
/�2� .����$���	��1�$��
������
�����������
����������
�����������������
����

����
	����
�����$������	���
�
	����
�������
�	������@�������������<�
�
/�2� .��������������
��
������������
���	���	������������+�������/7���*����

�	��.��	��
�����
	2������������������	����������
��
������
����	������
7���� ��	��� '�
�
�
�� �	� �
	�
�����
	� *���� ���� 01��
����� ������� �
��
�����
���	���	������0�
	
�����

�������
����	�����	���1�����	����

	� ����� ����� ��� 	���������� �	�� �
� ���
� �1������� ���� *
�!� �
� ��
�����
���������	�����������	�� ��������
�������.�������(��
����
	�+����/�2� �	�

����� �
� ����������� ���� ���
���	����
	�� ��� �
	���	��� *����	� ����
�
�����������
����	��*����	��1����	����	�	���������
����<�

�
/�2�� .���������
��
*�	�����	
���45�

/�2��������������������
�
�
��*��������������	����*��	�����
�������
���	�����������01��
�����#
���G�
/��2�����������������
	�*������!������������������G�
/���2����������������+�������/7���*�����	��.��	��
�����
	2�*�������
����
	�������
���������	��	��������
�
�
���	��
	�
�����
	�*��������
'������	��0�����	���'��		�	��8	���/'0'82��	������'
����G�
/��2�����������	��������
	�
���������������	���������*��������1��������
�
�C�����
��	����	���
������		�	�������*�����	����
�
����	�����
���
*��������������1������������D$���������<�
�

Page 95



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

��6� �#"4#�''�% �
�)%8�#% 4��"+'% 4�" ��"+ *%)�	#"< !%�)-�.$ -��
A
�������
���	
���;
<���>��?���"�	
�������>������������
��
������������
���	��
�	������������
��
��0	���
	��	���	��7

��	���
����������C
�	�����
���
��
����	���	�
������
	������

	���:��������������
���������	�*��

��	��
	�
�����

���������
������	���	�����
*	��������������
	����
��
	��
*���������
���������
������#���������������
	��
��)����<�3	�������
	���������
����	��
������
��
������
������
	����������������
������#�
*	������)�	��'�
��������	������


����
�
������
���
*�����	�1���������
�������*
�!��

��������!�	��
�*���<�
A�	�������������
��������	��������
��
��
	�����
������������
�����������	�����	��
�
	��	���
��
��
������
��������

��	����������<�
�
(���
	��	���
��������:��
���	����	���
	���	��������

	���:���
������	��
�
��������������	�����
��������
	�
����
*	������������
��������	������������*���
����������<�A
������
��������#
��������������	�
������
	���������
	�����	��
��!�	��
��	�

��������������
���	��
����
�����
*	������������*����	�����
�

	���:��
*	�������*�����*�����
���������

��

�������������
����������	��
���

���
��������
���	��������������������	����
�������
�����
��
	���<���������
	
����������
�������
	���	��
������
�����������
���
	��*���������
������*������
����#
�����
	��������*�����
����������
	���

��������!�	��
��	�
������������
�����
���	��
����
�����
*	������������*����
������
������������<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���� ���� ��
������ ����� �
� ����� �	� ���	��	�� ���� �

	���:�� ��
*	������

��	�� �
�*���� �
�� �����
���	�� ���

��� ���� 7

��	�� 3	������	�� )�	��
%�����������	
������
�������*����������
�����������
	�����������������

�� �
�� ������	��� �	�� ����
����� ��
����� 
	���� ���� #�
*	������ )�	��
'�
���������������

��*����	������������><=�-�><�?�
�� �����
��������
���
��<�

�
/�2� .����������
�
�������!���	���	�������	��
������
�����
	��������

#�
*	������)�	��'�
�������
�������������	����
�����>D����	��
����D�����
������!�	��
�*�����������������$�������	�����	��K�
(���	�����
	�+���������������

���	������������><���-�><�B�
������
�
�����������
��������
��
����<�

�
/�2�� .��������
�����������	��
������������$�������	�����	���	��

(���	�����
	�+��������
	��������
������������
��
��0	���
	��	���	��
7

��	����
��
�����������
�������

	����7

��	��&�
*���'�
��������	�

������
��	��
�������
�
�����
�������!����
���	������	�����

��������
*

����	��������������
���	��
���1��������	������������	���

��	���
��
	�����������
��	������
���������	�������	�����������������

��*����	�
�����������><�@�-�><�?�
�������
�����������
�����	����������
������
���
���
	�������
�C��������
���������
����
�
��������	��
��01��
�����
#
���<�

�
/�2�� .��������������$�������	�����	���	��(���	�����
	�+����������

��H
�������
����
������!��
���������������������	��
��01��
�����
#
����*������������
����������
�
�����
�����
����
	��
���������5�=�
$��
�������7

��	��'�
��������
�������
��
����
����1�����	�����	��

Page 96



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�	���	������	���
������������������

��*����	������������><>��-�><>B�
��
�����
�����������
��<�

�
/�2�� .�����
��
����������	��
�������
�
�������������������$�����

��	�����	��K�(���	�����
	�+�������
��������7
����K��
��
	������
$��	��:�������
���	��'���	���'�	����
���
�
�����������	
�����
��
�����
�����	���������
�*
�!�*���������

	������
������D����	���������	��
����#�
*	������)�	��'�
���������������

��*����	������������><>=�-�
><���
�������
�����������
��<�

�
�;�� �")(�*=��#($ ��%))$4���
%'�"'$)�"!��,��� 4% ���"+'���

.���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
���*������

��������
�����
�
��������
������	����������
��
������
�����
������0	��	��7

����	�
������
�
!��!5����������	�����
	����
�����	�7
����!�8���	�9�������/7892<�
�
��������*���
����������
�
��������������*����	������
�����������
�����	��
������������������
���������	��������
��
����
	�
	����������*

������
����
*���
���<�
�
A
��
*�	���
	��������
	�
��$���	��1����
������
�����������
���������	��������
�1�����
	����$�������
�3	�
�����
	�'�
���
���(
�����<�/>2��*�����*���
�
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������*���
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2�� .��������������
��
������������
���	����
����������������
����
������

0	��	��7

���������
�������������
	�
������������������������

�����
��
�
����	���1��������*
�!�	���	�����	�������*��������7�$�������������
���	�����������

��*����	�����������><���
�������
�����������
����	���	�
��	��*���������	��������������������

���	���*����	�����������><�@<�

�
/�2�� .����������	
�������������0	��	��7

������������
�����		�	���
��
����


	��������.
*	��	���

	����'��		�	��$����??����	�����������������
���������
	����������

���	������
	��<��
�������
�����������
������
����
	
���<�

�
/�2�� .���������������
��
����������
�������
�����������
��
�������

�����
���	���*���������
	�
���	���
���������
���������01��
������	��
01��
�������������
�������
���	���	������0�
	
�����	�
������
��	����
�	�
��������
���	���������	���	�����	���������	��*������������������
���������
��
���
�������1��
���
������������*����	��1�����$���	��1���
�
������
�����������
��<�

�
/�2�� .����������	
�������������������$�������	�����	���	��(���	�����
	�

+�������*�����������
	�������
�������������	����
	�
����������
	�����������
��
��<�

�
�
�
�
�

Page 97



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

���>�	
���


����.�����>���
�����
������������
�

�;�� .��-'��"#����#$��4/��� '��*�"#3'�1$% �1"-%!%*$�%" '��
.���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�
������
������������	���������
�������
���%���������*����������
����������	����
�
����	���
�����
	��	��������������
�������
���%��������3	�����
�<�3	�������
	��
�������
����
	��������������
�
��������	�1����������	�������
������
�
�����
	��	�����������<�
�
��������*���
���������	�
�����	���*������������	������������
������
3	�����
��
	�����	���
�����
��<�7
*����������#
����*����	�
��������������
3	�����
����H
�����
	�����	����	���������
�������

	���:����
�
�����������	��
��6������	��
�:�
�������

��	����H
�����	����	�����*���	
����������
������
��������
	�������������*���������
�����
�����
���������
�����#
�����	������<�
�
.���#
�����������������������
���	����
��)������
��������������
���%��������
�	������
���������������

��	��
���
������@������	����*����	��������<�3	�
������
	������#
�����
	�������������
���
�������

	����*������������
�����
������
	������*�������������
�����
��
	���<��
�
�������������
��������
��
��������������

��	����	���
��������������	
����
����������	�����	���
����1���������
�������*�����������
�������
*���������
���
���	���
�����
�
�����������

��	����	���
�����*��������������<���������
���
�	
����������1�����	���
	��
�����������*

����
	��	
���
�����������
���*��	�
�����)
����$
��
��������	���������
�������

��	���
�������
������	��
���*��������������������)�����	�������
�*
�!�*�����
����������
	��
���
�������<��
�
3	��
	��
��
	������#
�������������
����
���
���
��������*����	�����������
���	��
�
���������	�����	��*
�!�*������������	�
	�����!�	��
�������	���
������	������
)������
���%���������
������
���	���
����
	<��
�
���
.��
�2�.���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
������	
������
�������
*���������	��	��
	���������
���������
���*��������
���������
��������������������
�����	��
������#
���<�
�
���.
���3�����������
�

�;�� ��-$��-���$���� ��"!��+#�"'��!"#��,���#%8$����"'��#% 4���#8%*��"!�
.��-'��%�/��"+ *%)��
.���������
��
���������	:��%���������
�������������
��������	��	������
�������
%������	��
��'
��
����
������'�������A
�����	��%�������
��)�����������

	����
�
�������
��
����
������
���<�
�
���
.��
�2�.��������%������	��
��'
��
����
������'�������A
�����	��
���������
��)�����������

	�����������
���<�
�
�
�

Page 98



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�;0� 
�'%4 �$ -��"'�����"#��!"#��"(% ��""-��#%�$#/��*,"")�&�	$'%*����-�
���$ '%" �?"#='��
.���������
��
���������	:��%���������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
�����
	�

	�������
�
����#�����;�����1��	��
	����(
��	�7

��'�������%��

���	�

������
��	����������������
	��������
��	���������
������
�B���
����<�3	�
������
	���������
����

�����
��
������
��	�
�����������1��	���
���
��F����?�=���
�
�
	�����!��������
����	��
	���*
�!�<�
�
��������*���
����������
�
��������������*����	��������
����*�������������
������	������	��������
�������������������������������*���������
����*����	�����
�����	<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���� �1��	���
��� 
�� F����?�=��� ��� �
��
������ ��
�� �������� �������

	
����� �B�=�D(+#D���� �	�� ����� ����
���� ��� ����	� �	� �������� 
��
6�
��
����� �
� ��	���:�� �	� 
����� �
� �	����� ���� �
	���
���
	� 
�� ������
	���
���
��
����
	����(
��	�7

��'�������%��

�<�

�
/�2� .���� ���� ��
������� ������� ��� ���	������� �	� �����
	� �<�<�� 
�� ����

�
�������� ���
��� �	� ������
	� �
� ���� �������	����
	� 
�� �����������
	�� ���
	
���<�

�
/�2� .���� ������	
���� ����� ����
������� ����
	������ �
�� ���� �������	����
	�
��

�
������������������������
��
���������	:��%�������<�
�

�;�� 
+�*"���"!�*" '+)�$�%" �" ��#"�"'$)'��"�% *#�$'���#%�$#/��#"8%'%" �% �
�$#')�/��
A
�������
���	
���;
<������@���"
������>������������
��
���������	:��%��������
�
�������������
�����
����	����������
������	!�����
�
������

�����
�*�����
�
����������
�����
��
����:���
����
��	�
����
������	���
�����

��������<�
%��������������������
����

������������
	��
��
������������
�
���	
������	�
������
	��
������1��	��
	�
��A������������
���3	��	��%��

���	��A�������
%���	���	!�"
	�
��%��

�<�
�
$����������������
�������������
	���	���	���������
��������
�
������
����������	���������*�������
�����������	�������
������������������������������

��
��
	���<���
�
���
.��
�2��
/�2� .��������
�����������	��
������
�������
	�
��������
�
���	
������
4�

•� �1��	��A������������
���3	��	��%��

����
�������������
���=��
�
������
������
������	������������
�����������������
��@��
����
*�������������
��%�������������G��	��

•� �1��	��A�������%���	���	!�"
	�
��%��

����
�������������
��
�����
������
������
������	�����	��������
*���������������
��@��
�
��*�������������
��%�������������<�

�
/�2� .����������	
�������������
�����������
	�������
���������	����
	�
���
���

�������������������������'��		�	���	��%
������	���)���<�
�

Page 99



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

/8	����������
����
	��
���

	����'�
���
���(
����B<����

	����
��$��������
��H
���������
�������
�������������������	�����
���
��	��
	�����������
	��
����������
�*����	��������	
��2�
�

�;7� 
�'%4 �$ -��"'�����"#��!"#�.$ ��� -��#%�$#/��*,"")�	$'%*����-�
�#"@�*���
.���������
��
���������	:��%���������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
�����
	�
�������	������#�����;������������
��
	���
�������	�*�)�	��0	��'�������
%��

�<�%��������������������
����

�����
��
������
��	�
�����������1��	���
���
��
F@����������	�
������
�
	�����!������*
�!����H
������
���
�����
���
��
����
	��
��
��
�����	�*��A0������������

��*�����B�������	
������
�	�����
��������1���	�������������<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���� �1��	���
��� 
�� F@��������� ��� �
��
������ ��
�� �������� �������

	
������B�=�D%)0D�����	�
������
��	����������
	���
���
	�
������	�*�
)�	��0	��'�������%��

�<�

�
/�2� .����������
����������������	�������*����	������
	��<��
�������
��������

���
��� �	� ������
	� �
� ���� �������	����
	� 
�� ���� �������� ������
	��� ���
	
���<�3�����
����	
���������������	������������������
���
�����
������
	�
��
��������������%�������������<�

�
/�2� .����������	
�������������������
��
���������	:��%���������������
	������

�
���������	����
	�
���
����������<�
�

�;9� �  +$)���$ -$#-'����"#����$#)/���$#'��"+ -$�%" ���$4����#%�$#/�$ -�
��*" -$#/��*,"")'��#"8%'%" ��
.���������
��
���������	:��%���������
�������������
����
�������	������
���������	��
������	����������� ���%�������	����>��	������������	�������

��
��
������������	��������������

	����
	��������	�����������	�����
	�����
��
����
	��	�)����<�3	�������
	���������
������
�

���	�����������
	���!�	����
�����

	�����
��
��������������
	������������
��
��
�����
	��
���������	����	��
�	�����	�����	��������<�
�
$	�
������������
	�
��$���	��1���/�����$		�1��
�
��	�2��
������
��������
���
����������	�����
�������
�#
�������������
���������
	��������
	<�
�
$�������
�������	��
�
���
	��
��������
��������01��
�������������
���������	:��
%�����������������
����
�����
�������

	����
�����	�����������

��

��)�����
*�
������
	����
�����
*����������1�����	�����
����*������������	�����������	�
���><��
�
3	��
	������	������6;���
*�	������&��:��	�����������	��	
��	��������C
��
������	���*�����	�������
���������������	���������
�����������	��	������
���*��	������
*���������������	���������������������0�����,�����A

	����
	�
%����������01��
�������������
���������	:��%��������
	����

!�����������
���
�
	������	���
������
����	����������
	�����	����!�	��
��������������*

���
����
���������
����
�
��������	��
������#
���<�(���
	��	���
���������:��
�	H
���������#
����*�����
������*���������������
	��������	��)����:�

Page 100



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

�
��������������
���	����	���������
�������	��	������������0�����,�����
A

	����
	�%����<�
�
��������	
�����	��*���
���������
	�����������
������*������������	�
����������	�����
��	������

��
����
���������	�*�
�*����6)

!���$����:<�3	�
������
	����������*������������
����������
	��*�����*�������	����!�	��
�
�	�
�����������

���*����
������	������6'
����'����
�:��
�������1��
��������<��
�
.���#
���������������������
����������
	�����	����!�	�*����	�����������
��'
�����
7�������
��������
������

	����
����*��������������
��������	���
	��	���
��
����	�	�<�A
������
����������������������	�
������
	������
��	����
�
��
	���:������������
����
����
�������	�
������	��	�����������
��������*����
�

	����
���:������	�	���	���!����������
���	����	��	
���������*
�!�*��������
�
��	�����
��
	����*

����
	��	
��
	��
����������<�
�
���
.��
�2��
/�2� .��������#
�����	�
�����	���
��
��������
��
*�	�45�

•� .�����
������������������	�������������!�����������	������
�����������	�����
����������
����	�G�

•� .����
�
�����
����
	�
���
��
����������	����	���	�����	��
	��	�
)������
��	�
����������
�������
	��	
����
��������G�

•� .����
�����������
���	���	�����	����
������)�����0�
����
	�
������	�����
��������	���
������	�������������
�����
��	��
����
����	�G�

•� .�����������
���	����
	����
������%��
��	��#
����/�������	�
�	��A�������2������*��	���������
��0	�������	������������������
�������	���<�

�
/�2� .���������
����������	������������	���*������1�������	���������
������

�����	��	���������*��	������
*���������������	���������������������
0�����,�����A

	����
	�%��������������
	��*�����*�����
���	�������	��
��!�	��	���
����������
	��*������

��������!�	��
����������
���
���
��������
���������
����
�
��������	��
������#
���<�

�
�;�� ��'�" '���"��,$ 4�'�% ��*,"")�
#4$ %'$�%" �.�4%')$�%" ��

.���������
��
���������	:��%���������
�������������
�����
����	����������
��
�
������	����������
����������
	��������	��%��

��+���	�����
	���
�
�����
*�����������	�
��������
	��=���"�	
��������<�3	�������
	���������
����

����
��������
	��
����	���
��������������������	���
��
������	���<�
�
���������
	���������
��������
��������	��	�����������������
	�������	����
��
��������	�����������������	���<�
�
���
.��
�2�.���������
��
*�	�����	�����������
�����	���������
���
����
���������45�

•� '�������
	�*����	
��
	��������

�����
���
	�
�����
	�
	����

��

���	�����
	����	�����*�����	
�����
�
����
	�
�����
	������H
�������
��
��������
	�*�����
	��	
���
������H
���������
����
�������
	�
����
����
�
���	
����<�

Page 101



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

•� '�������
	�*��������

����
��01��
�����#
�����
�����
����	��
�1��	��
	�
�������

����

�����
�*����������
���	�	���
��������
��H
����������
�����
��
������
���
��������������
	��	�<�

�
.���������
��A�..��
�

�;;� �+4(/�?"#)-��+�����7��
.���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�
��������:���
�������
���
�����������(
�����
�����
����	��*������

����
����
�����
������
��������������	��*������������
���1������������	�������
��
��������<�
�
3	������	��	���������
��������01��
�������������
��)���
����	��%!�����
����������������1����	��
��
��
	������*��������	�����
���������
������(
����
�
�����
������������	�����
��)����<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .���� ��� ���	
���� �����)������������	� �
������
�� �	� ���
��	���� �
���

������
������(
�����
�����
������<�.����
��	�������	������������
���	��
�����

�	���	��*�������	���
����������� �
�������*����������H
�����	���
��
�����

	����������
����
�����
��
���������
����	
���<�

�
/�2� .���� ����
���� ��� ����	� �
�� ���� ������ �
��
��� �	�� %�
��� +������� �
�

�����
�� ��������� ���	�� �
�� ���� ����:�� �
���	�� 
�� ����(
�����
�����
��
������	������
�������
��������	��
�������������
��
����	��%�
���+�������
�
��
��������
���������
�
������*���������
	�
���	���
������01��
�����
������� �
�� )���
��� �	�� %!������ �
� 0	���	�� (
���� ����� ��� "�	
����
����<�

�
�;6� �;&����"+ 4��$)� �����$-���$#���#"4#$����% �.��-'��

.���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
���*������

�����
��
������
�
���	��
���
�F������==��
���1���	����
	��	���
��������������=5���,

	��.���	�4�
7����%�������
��������	�)����<�
�
.���#
����	
�����	��*���
���������	�
�����	��
���
�����
��	�������	�����
�	��������<�(���
	��	���
���������:���	H
�����
��������
	����

!��
���
���������
��������	�H
����
	�*�����
�������������
	�������
�����������������
������
�
���	�����	�
������	������	���������������������������L��
�������
���	�����	��
������������	�*����������
�������<�
�
���
.��
�2�
/�2� .��������
�����������	� �
� �����1��	���
���
��
�� �
�F������==���*�����

���� ���	� ���
������ �
� )������ 
	� ���� ����������� ��� ���� 

�� *����	� ����
�
�����������
��<�
�

/�2� .���������
��
*�	�����	
���45�

•� �������������H
������
��������	������������
	�����

���	���*����	�
����������>��	��$���	��1��
�������
�����������
��G�

•� ���� ��
�
���� ����������� �
�� �������	����
	�� ��� 

���	���*����	�
������������<��
�������
�����������
��G��	��

Page 102



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	�����������������������

�

•� ����� ����7����
��'�
C������	��'�
��������*���� ��� ����
	������
�
�������������	����
	�
���
����������<�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

����
����	.�����
���� .80%�$,���=.7�A0#(8$(,������
�
.����
�����
����..����

���.�>�	.��
�����
���� .80%�$,����.7�A0#(8$(,������$.��<���
'<�<�
�
/%��
��	��%
��
���*����	
�����������
���
���	����������������	������<��	

	�
	�
���	��������B���A���
��������2�
�
�
�

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 18 February 2014
	7 Request for Scrutiny
	20s Plenty Deputation Cover Report 040214
	20s Plenty deputation SPEECH 17 01 14
	20s Plenty Deputation Report Appendix EIA 040214
	Extract from EB minutes 14 Feb 2014

	8 Scrutiny Inquiry - The role of the Leeds Let's Get Active Scheme in promoting public health
	Final terms of reference Leeds Lets Get Active
	Final comments on LLGA scheme proposals
	Scrutiny Board March 2014 LLGA

	9 Quarter 3 Performance report
	Q3 performance App 1
	Q3 performance App 2

	10 Recommendation tracking
	recommendation tracking flowchart v2
	Recommendation tracking table March 2014 Breeze
	Scrutiny Tracking table March 2014
	Employment and Skills Obligations Scrutiny Board March 2014

	11 Work Schedule
	March work schedule
	Printed minutes 14th-Feb-2014 13.00 Executive Board


